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Financial Highlights

MBRE

Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
BZ2019F EHZE20185F
12A31H 12H31H
IEEE IEAEA
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARBTTT
Revenue = - 4,241,040 3,058,707
Gross profit ESA! 2,745,410 1,949,805
Gross profit margin FEF = 64.7% 63.7%
Operating profit & E Z A 1,728,811 1,287,750
EBITDA margin EBITDAXR 47.0% 46.9%
EBIT margin EBIT= 40.8% 42.1%
Selling and marketing expenses to sales HERMSHERIGHEEL X 8.4% 6.8%
Administrative expenses to sales THEBRGHSELE 20.5% 18.8%
Profit before income tax b T Al 22 A 1,745,817 1,374,957
Profit from continuing operations S T 2 B 1,373,741 1,054,152
Profit from continuing and discontinued ARAEEFEARERELE
operation attributable to the equity holders BRLX PSR TE 2 BT
of the Company 1,112,004 1,017,959
Basic and diluted earnings per share (RMB cents) EFRERLEBZEF (ARED)
— Continuing operations — B EES 35.78 27.78
— Discontinued operation — IR = 4.97
35.78 32.75
Net cash generated from operating activities BEERHELACES T 1,559,583 1,232,906
Net cash* FIE 2,723,298 3,452,252
Total equity b 13,599,473 13,745,418
Final dividend per share (HK cents) FRREIARAR S GBI 10.0 8.8
Special dividend per share (HK cents) BRI S (B = 18.9
Total dividend per share for the KAE HAR A% 48 R% B GBAL)
year/ period (HK cents) 18.8 37.7
Dividend payout ratio for the year/ period RE AR 4E IR B K 47.3% 100.9%
Debt ratio* B AL & 25.4% 31.4%
Current ratio (times) TRED L & (%) 4.9 4.2
Liquidity ratio (times) REPLEL R (£F) 4.4 3.8
Inventory turnover (days) FEFE#E=E(H) 220 199
Trade receivables turnover (days) FEWERR AR (H) 88 98
Trade payables turnover (days) FERTERFREHE X (H) 77 78

& “Net cash” means “Short-term time deposits” plus “Cash and cash

equivalents” minus “Borrowings”.

L “Debt ratio” means “Total borrowings (include current & non-current

EEYIRIEFK °

TS £

borrowings” divided by “Total Equity (exclude non-controlling B
interests)”.

* FE2 | ERRHERFZI M EEREL

” [BELFIERTHREX (EERRBRFRE
I [/ e (T8 HFZE ) -
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Company Profile and Corporate Culture

CORPORATE PROFILE

Huabao International Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”), consisting of flavours and fragrances segment, aroma
raw materials segment, tobacco raw materials segment, condiments
segment, is mainly engaged in the R&D, production, distribution and
sales of flavours and fragrances, aroma raw materials, tobacco raw
materials, as well as condiments. The Group also makes diversified
investments around its core businesses. It is an industrial holdings
group based on China’s taste-based consumer goods market.

SEEMTREEL

SEEN

EERFERERAFEMBLAR ([AEE])
TRERBRE - FRERHRGE - E A REHR R
EFAKRmikE T2RERRE TR E
ARAMBRBOHE LEMHFEE  LE
BZLEXBETZIIERE  B—KRER
TERERHEMMBENERERER -
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Company Profile and Corporate Culture

The Group is a market leader in China’s flavours & fragrances
industry. It owns many famous flavour brands, including “Huabao
Flavours” on the A-Shares platform, “Hedon”, “Huabao”, "H&K",
“Tianhong”, “Huafang”, "Owada”, "Amber” and so on. The Group
has internationalised product development and manufacturing
capabilities, owns production bases in regions such as Shanghai,
Guangdong, Jiangsu, Yunnan, Jiangxi, Fujian, Hong Kong and
Botswana, etc., has a R&D centre in Holzminden, Germany, a
state-level enterprise technology centre in Shanghai, and R&D
departments in Guangdong, Yunnan and Fujian. Member(s) of the
Group takes on leadership roles in a number of industry associations
which are relevant to flavours and fragrances business, including the
Vice Chairman of China Food Additives & Ingredients Association,
Deputy Director of China Association of Fragrance & Flavour and
Cosmetic Industries, Deputy Director of China Association of Bakery
& Confectionery Industry, and Chairman of Shanghai Food Additive
& Batching Association.

The Group is also one of the market leaders in China’s tobacco raw
materials field, where its production capacity and sales revenue
account for a significant market share and its production technology
and product quality have taken the leading position at domestic
level and reached advanced international level. Guangdong
Jinye, a subsidiary of the Group, is one of the RTL R&D bases
authorised by the STMA. In November 2012, the second phase of
RTL production line of Guangdong Jinye was completed, put into
production and accepted by the STMA, which became the first
landmark of paper-making RTL production line certified by the
STMA. Its production technology has been recognized by the STMA
to have reached the highest technology level in terms of domestic
paper-making RTL production, while its major technical parameters
have also reached advanced international level. In 2016, the “Key
Laboratory for RTL Technology Research in Tobacco Industry”, which
was jointly founded by Guangdong Jinye and Guangdong Tobacco,
was recognized as the sole key laboratory in the RTL field in China. In
terms of new materials, Shanghai Huabao Biological Technology Co.,
Ltd. has developed rapidly in the cigarette new materials field, which
is represented by flavour capsule and core line. Newly established
bases Jiangxi Huabao Xinhui Technology Co., Ltd. in 2017, as well
as Yunnan Dianhua Benxiang Technology Co., Ltd. which was
established by joint venture with Yunnan Tobacco New Materials in
2018, became two flavour capsule business bases. Both of the bases
expanded the Group's flavour capsule production capacity.

SEEMTREEL

AEBATHEBABTENREE HIEHR
Al EmFeEERMRIEE] - [EE] -
[fL&) TRE]TEF ] DREE] - [53A)
E-RIMNEERRE - AKEHEABERL
MEMMBENLEEEN ELE BRI
#OEROIHE BE BERBEUEMF
WRELEEN ARBERRXASTRAM
BhL o ELBEABRRAEERMP L
SEER EEHMEERAHELPT - KE
Bk BEMRBITREBT RIS EEERA
BREGTEREANBMESGEIIEEE
THEEREMMARIEXHEAEER F
BEERAEERTIXHERIEERMLE
mREANBEMESTEHEERS -

AEEDRTPEERREBEENEEEZ —
HEEROMHERRGETREEEEZD
HhE MEEAETEREMESHED
BABREMBERLEENRF AEENTER
AERSERHERBEEEMEREZ — -
—E-F+-A BEReE_HBEEX
EERRIRE WEBEERBRW KA
BABKRESRENEMEIBEZEERRNT
TEG HEETZEEERIERBEE
MEBEBEERMRREKF  ETERMER
MEEBREEKRF - —TE—RF - ERD
HEERTEAZNBEETXBEREER
MAREHERE | BESRERAE  KAB
EEREEME-—EHERE -HMMATE -
FREFBEMHEERQAEARIK B
ERRERNBEFVHBHERIFFTLR -
TE LA FEHROIAEECEMRERA
ARZE-N\FEREFRENMHQENTL
MEMEEARMZARQANKBBRKRER
HIRR¥TE M - 2 EIDRBEIRER °
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Company Profile and Corporate Culture

The Group is also one of the leading enterprises in China’s aroma
raw materials field. The principal products include many natural
aroma and synthetic aroma products. Its production capacity and
sales revenue account for a significant market share in the industry,
and its production technology and product quality have reached
the leading domestic and international level. In 2017, the Group
successfully acquired Jiangxi Xianghai. The acquisition played a
positive role in the establishment and layout of the Group’s aroma
raw materials segment. The Group, by virtue of its own industry
advantages of the leading position and strong scientific research
strength, plans to build a leading aroma raw materials production
base in Asia and even the world.

In 2018, the Group made strategic adjustments to its business.
Through the acquisition of Jiahao, the Group entered into the
compound condiment market that is of great growth room, and
also further completed the Group’s business structure and sources
of income. At present, the Group has successfully established an
industry chain with full coverage from raw materials, processing,
to consumption, which brings the Group’s competitive strength
in taste-based fast-moving products industry to a new level. The
Group will also combine its industry expertise and integration
capability with the social capital, through the multi-capital
platforms, multi-collaboration channels, as well as multi-investment
collaboration models, to create more value for the shareholders.

SEEMTREEL

AEBERTEERHMBENBELEZ —
TEEMBERZEBERABHAMAKER - &
EERINMBEERETENEEEEM SN
HMOAETENEREEDNEIBAIEL
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MEER - AEBRKEEEFETERLD
WAL BEMBROMAES  TEZMHE
EREAENBRAEEEM

“E)N\F AGEEHEHETREMEHE -
BREWERR AEEEAEBERERET
BNEAHEKmME - P ZEEEXH
R RERRAIEEZWRARIE - BRI A
SERNTRT IR I B8] — 1t
MEEXBREEZ ERBRHERMENR
FENE- SRR AKEREBERREZE
AEG ZRERE REBRESHERA
HEFNEZNS BAgt hEHSELRE
& RERRBIEEAEE-
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Company Profile and Corporate Culture SEENMREEL

Leader to a better life

SPIRIT
15 1
Innovative, pragmatic,

loyal and cooperative

L ABR AT B e

KIFHEESIRE

g

Client first, value creation and
shlEr'ed achievements
BEFEZL EBEAE AZHE

STRATEGY
ﬁi

B

Adhere to the “concentric diversification strategy” and develop into the world’s leading
taste-based consumer product industrial holdings group

Consolidate the existing market of flavours and fragrances and explore new markets with
product and technology innovation

Seize the opportunity of integration in aroma raw materials industry and strives to achieve the
goal of “Being the global leader in the aroma raw materials industry”

Closely monitor international markets and expand the market of tobacco raw materials

Consolidate the Group's leading role in the niche segment in the condiment industry, leverage
innovative sales platform and enriched product mix to build condiment business as the Group'’s
growth point

BERFIALZTERE]  ERERAERELNKEZBEREXEREE
REEBEFNFEMS  EBEMNMRMAIF - FHIEEMS
TEBRBTEERGNRE  AIKAEKRAENERAEBLER | E—BREE
ZYREBR ™S - MRER R TS E

EERAEARETSAN RENBEML - FBAFUBEEFENELLEENERSE -
HEFARMEBRSREXERRMN
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Chairlady’s Statement

CHU Lam Yiu
K

Chairlady & CEO
FTEFEEHTE

Dear Shareholders,

In 2019, China’s economy recorded a year-on-year increase of 6.1%
under the pressure of both the Sino-US trade war internationally as
well as the cyclical adjustment experienced domestically. However, in
comparison to the same period in 2018, the economic growth rate
decreased by 0.5 percentage point in 2019. The rise of CPI eroded
consumer confidence to some extent, while the fall of the industrial
producer price index increased the pressure on business operation.
Amid the uncertainties and changes in external environment, the
Group maintained steady growth of the profit by cost reduction and
optimizing strategies. For the financial year ended 31 December
2019, the Group’s revenue amounted to approximately RMB4,241
million, and net profit attributable to the shareholders of the
Company amounted to approximately RMB1,112 million.

During the Current Reporting Period, each business segment of
the Group had made development. While the sales of traditional
cigarettes slowed down and the food flavours and fragrances
industry was increasingly competitive, our flavours and fragrances
business remained steady amid the competitive market. Tobacco
raw materials business was provided an injection of human
and financial resources by the Group in researching innovative
tobacco-related materials, which aims to be prepared for seizing the
next development opportunity. Aroma raw materials business saw a
boost in development, production and management efficiency as the
aroma raw materials production base in Jiangxi Xianghai was further
standardized and systematized. Condiments business was on the
track of achieving its performance target by optimization in product
mix, distribution channels, and marketing and brand positioning. |
am pleased with the achievements of each business segment.

ETFEHRES
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Chairlady’s Statement

From the perspective of competition and development, the
consolidation of flavours and flagrances industry is accelerating. In
2019, world-renowned flavours and flagrances giants have made a
number of acquisitions to enrich their business portfolios through
upstream and downstream extensions of their presence in the
industry, and they aimed to grow their performance by shifting from
organic growth to external mergers and acquisitions. Adopting a
product differentiation strategy, some of the large enterprises in
flavours and flagrances industry in mainland China have developed
their businesses closer to the end consumers, thereby breaking away
from the limited market size by diversifying their business structures
and sources of revenue. During the Current Reporting Period,
through post-acquisition integration, our condiments business have
built up an optimized system integrated with functions in research,
production and distribution, demonstrating our determination in
implementing the Group’s “concentric diversification” strategy.

In January 2020, the outbreak of COVID-19 pneumonia in mainland
China has spread to other regions and countries across the world,
causing massive impact to both China and global economies.
Due to the expected slowdown in both domestic and global
macro-economies and the further weakening market demand,
competition among businesses will further intensify to compete
for consumers and customers, and the capabilities of businesses in
bargaining, pricing and making profit will be challenged.

Against the backdrop of such adversity, the Group will improve its
products, services and market research capabilities to consolidate its
market share. At the same time, it will cautiously look for emerging
trends and choose projects that can propel the Group's performance
in the long run. We believe that cyclical economic downturn is both
a challenge and an opportunity. As long as we stick to our business
vision “Leader to a Better Life”, implement our existing development
strategy and prudently optimize our business structure, we can
establish our comparative advantage, occupy a favourable position in
the market, and create value for the shareholders and the society.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my sincere
gratitude to our shareholders, customers, suppliers, and business
partners for their continuing support. | would also like to earnestly
thank all the directors, management, and employees. With a
challenging 2020 ahead, we look forward to working together
side-by-side in guiding Huabao to achieve a leading status in the
taste-based fast-moving products industry.

CHU Lam Yiu
Chairlady & CEO
Hong Kong,-27 March 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Overview of the tobacco industry

In 2019, China’s economic growth slowed down to 6.1%,
representing a decrease of 0.5 percentage point as compared to
the corresponding period in 2018. During the period, there were
voices in the society proposing an increase in cigarette taxes.
The social awareness of tobacco control and smoking ban was
further strengthened. According to the data from National Bureau
of Statistics, the cigarette production volume in China reached
47.285 million cases in 2019, representing an increase of 1.23%
year-on-year while sales volume reached approximately 47.353
million cases, representing a slight decline of 0.17% year-on-year.
According to the data from the STMA, the tobacco industry
realized industrial and business tax and profit of RMB1,205.6
billion, representing an increase of 4.3% year-on-year; the tobacco
industry has paid RMB1,177.0 billion to the treasury department,
representing an increase of 17.7% year-on-year. The total profit
and the amount paid to the treasury department by the tobacco
industry reached record-high, which contributed to the increase of
local governments’ fiscal income and the overall development of the
economy.

In the area of innovative cigarettes, thin cigarettes, short cigarettes,
medium-length cigarettes and capsule cigarettes continued to play
an important role in optimising product mix and are well received
by the market. At the same time, regulators imposed stricter
regulation on these innovative cigarettes such that the promotion of
these products to the market is more regulated so as to protect the
interests of the public.

During the Current Reporting Period, the promotion and sales of
innovative tobacco products in overseas and Chinese markets were
subject to more stringent supervision and restrictions. Entry barriers
are getting higher for the innovative tobacco industry in terms of
capital, technology and talents. The development of the industry
has become more standardized and centralized. At the same time,
changes in regulations and policies also posed uncertainties to the
development of the innovative tobacco industry.

As for tobacco leaves, the STMA committed to further the supply
side reform to enhance the quality of tobacco leaves, thereby
propelling the tobacco leaves industry to develop toward high
quality. (Source: Tobacco Online)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Overview of the food, beverage and fragrances industry

In 2019, as affected by the escalation of the Sino-US trade war
and the domestic structural economic reform, the GDP of China
has further slowed down as compared to the corresponding period
last year to an increase of only 6.1% year-on-year. Amid such
unfavorable macro-economic environment, macro adjustment
measures were adopted by the Chinese government in order
to encourage consumption, such that the food and beverage
industry has maintained a steady growth. According to data
from National Bureau of Statistics, in 2019, the gross industrial
output of enterprises of industrial scale remained stable growth,
among which the agricultural product processing industry rose
by 1.9% year-on-year, the food processing industry rose by 5.3%
year-on-year, and the alcohol, beverage and refined tea processing
industry jumped by 6.2% as compared to the corresponding period
last year. During the Current Reporting Period, consumers not only
increased their demand for natural, healthy and functional foods and
beverages, but they were also concerned about the brand values and
beliefs that the food and beverage brands delivered. As a result, the
food and beverage manufacturers have been paying more attention
to ensure that their marketing strategies and brand positionings
were kept abreast of the times.

In respect of fragrances industry, according to the figures of the
National Bureau of Statistics on enterprises of industrial scale, from
January to November in 2019, the revenue of those with soap and
detergent as main business was RMB114.3 billion, representing a
drop of 0.21% year-on-year; the revenue of those with cosmetics as
main business was RMB113.4 billion, representing a drop of 3.6%
year-on-year; the revenue of those with oral cleansing products as
main business was RMB23.1 billion, representing an increase of
8.56% year-on-year. Despite the slowed growth rate experienced by
the soap and detergents industry, it accounted for the largest market
share in the fragrances industry. Although there was a sluggish
growth for the revenue of cosmetics industry, it still demonstrated a
burgeoning growth thanks to the promotion of new business models
including beauty makeup, new retail and social e-commerce.

EEENWR DT
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Overview of the condiment industry

According to the data of the National Bureau of Statistics, the total
revenue of the catering industry reached approximately RMB4.67
trillion with a year-on-year growth of approximately 9.4% in 2019,
demonstrating a steady and healthy growth as compared to the
7.7% growth rate in 2018. Following the successful achievement of
standardization, economies of scale and chain-store deployments
by a number of Chinese catering enterprises, the catering industry
not only demanded better product qualities and supply capabilities,
but also attached importance to the ability of providing integrated
solutions by the condiment suppliers. The current situation of low
concentration ratio in China’s condiment market has attracted
capital investment and intensified the competition in the condiment
industry, in which the big industry players will become even stronger.
In addition to the advantages in their respective market segments,
condiment enterprises also begin to develop product mix to cover
all categories of product. The competition in the condiment industry
will become more intense.

RESULTS

For the twelve months ended 31 December 2019, the Group's
sales revenue reached approximately RMB4,241 million; the gross
profit margin was approximately 64.7%; operating profit reached
approximately RMB1,729 million, operating profit margin was
approximately 40.8%. The profit attributable to the equity holders
of the Company amounted to approximately RMB1,112 million, and
the basic earnings per share was RMB35.78 cents.

SPECIAL NOTE

The Group'’s subsidiaries incorporated in PRC are statutorily required
to prepare their accounts with the financial year end date of 31
December. On 11 December 2018, the Board resolved to change
the financial year end date of the Company from 31 March to 31
December to align the Company’s financial year end date with that
of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries and to facilitate the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements of the Group. The financial
statements for the current financial period covered the twelve-month
period from 1 January to 31 December 2019 (“the Current Reporting
Period”) with the comparative figures covered the nine-month
period from 1 April to 31 December 2018 (“April 2018 to December
2018"). In order to let our shareholders and other stakeholders
better understand the Group’s operating results, the Group also
presents the unaudited financial results for the twelve-month period
from 1 January to 31 December 2018 (“the Corresponding Period
Last Year”) on a voluntary basis for year-on-year comparison.
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The results for the Current Reporting Period (Audited) and the
Corresponding Period Last Year (Unaudited) are summarized below:
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For the twelve months
ended 31 December

BZ12A318L+=@A

2019 2018
20194 20184
(Audited) (Unaudited)
(FEER) (REEZ)
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR® T ARBFIT
Continuing operations BEREER
Revenue =F 4,241,040 3,981,536
Gross profit E7 2,745,410 2,590,939
Gross profit ratio EAE 64.7% 65.1%
Other income and other gains — net HEa A M H b zs — 558 225,509 180,464
Selling and marketing expenses HERMEBHERS (358,305) (264,169)
Administrative expenses THEHR (867,398) (760,668)
Net impairment losses on financial assets SREEREBEEKXFHE (16,405) (1,616)
Operating profit EERR 1,728,811 1,744,950
Finance (costs)/income — net (RAERAK) BB A —F58 (12,028) 112,892
Share of results of associates and a jointly JEIGEE & N A R RS B 8
controlled entity ZEEE 29,034 14,272
Profit before income tax BRE AT Z R 1,745,817 1,872,114
Income tax expense Frig#i (372,076) (430,529)
Profit from continuing operations FREREXEK2
for the year/period KEE HERF 1,373,741 1,441,585

Segment Revenue

DR R

Segment Result

DERE

For the twelve months
ended 31 December

HZE12A31BL+=@EA

For the twelve months
ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLE+=@EA

2019 2018 2019 2018
20194 20184 20194 20184

(Audited) (unaudited) (Audited) (unaudited)

(RER) (R&EZ) (RREZ) (RegE%z)

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T AREF T AR®BT T ARBFIT

Continuing operations:  FEZE XK

Flavours & Fragrances 5B 2,163,927 2,149,369 1,287,737 1,229,883
Tobacco Raw Materials & A IR A 754,424 954,528 311,052 455,784
Aroma Raw Materials B IRE 620,409 706,469 82,124 117,649
Condiments EELNEE 700,386 170,979 144,816 23,451
Others EHAh 1,894 191 (96,918) (81,817)
4,241,040 3,981,536 1,728,811 1,744,950
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Review of flavours and fragrances business

During the Current Reporting Period, sales revenue of the flavours
and fragrances business of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB2,164 million, accounting for approximately 51.0% of the
Group's total revenue. Operating profit of the business segment
amounted to approximately RMB1,288 million, EBIT margin was
approximately 59.5%. In comparison to the Corresponding Period
Last Year, revenue of the flavours and fragrances business for the
Current Reporting Period increased by 0.7% year-on-year, operating
profit increased by 4.7% year-on-year, and EBIT margin recorded an
increase of 2.3 percentage points year-on-year. The revenue of the
business segment was stable, with increases in EBIT margin mainly
attributable to the reasonable cost management and control by the
Group as well as increased government grants.

(1) Flavours

In 2019, the sales volume, selling price and market share of
the Group's tobacco flavours business remained stable, which
were in line with the stable development situation in China’s
cigarette market. The business team and R&D team of tobacco
flavours provided customised and stable products to customers
based on their different products and brands, and assisted in
helping to make customers’ products more tasty. In terms of
food flavours, the Group adjusted its product mix according
to the growing trend in the food and beverage market with
an emphasis on the concepts and the functions of products,
which were being developed toward a natural, healthy and
functional direction. At the same time, the Group increased
investments in the R&D and sales team to enhance product
and service quality to meet customers’ demands.

(2) Fragrances

Xiamen Amber has continuously maintained a leading market
share in the areas of incenses and household disinfection
and insecticide. During the Current Reporting Period, Xiamen
Amber successfully expanded its sales regions by exporting
products to Africa region. In addition, the Group also increased
its efforts in R&D and market surveys in the areas of personal
care and cosmetics fragrances, aiming to tap into the demand
of domestic small and medium enterprises.
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Investment Progress of the Proceeds Raised by the Flavours
and Fragrances Segment

As at 31 December 2019, the cumulative amount of the funds
raised from the initial public offering of Huabao Flavours in 2018
and dedicated for the “Huabao Yingtan Flavours and Ingredients
production base project” (“Huabao Yingtan Project”) was
approximately RMB97.8449 million, representing an investment
progress of approximately 9.46%; the cumulative amount of
IPO Proceeds and dedicated for the “Huabao Lhasa Pure Land
Healthy Food project” (“Huabao Lhasa Project”) was approximately
RMB17.7184 million, representing an investment progress of
approximately 3.77%; the cumulative amount of IPO Proceeds and
dedicated for the “Huabao H&K Food Flavours and Food Technology
Development project” (“Huabao H&K Project”) was approximately
RMB169,700, representing an investment progress of approximately
0.11%. As of 31 December 2019, the balance of unused proceeds
(including accumulated interest income received) amounted to
approximately RMB1,640 million.

The construction progress of the Huabao Yingtan Project was not
as expected because of the excessive rainfalls during the initial
stage of the project. Meanwhile, Huabao Flavours adopted an
optimised approach of gradual investment with an aim to adapt
to changes in market demands and control project investment
risks. Currently, the construction work for Huabao Yingtan Project
Phase | has been completed, and the tender for the design of the
construction work of Phase Il has been completed. Huabao Flavours
is currently implementing specific optimisation designs for the
subsequent construction work. The progress of the initial stage of
the Huabao Lhasa Project was slow because of the high-altitude
climate in Tibet and that the time available for construction
work was short. At the same time, there were factors such as
market and raw materials, as well as Huabao Flavours’ controlled
investments, resulting in slowdown of project constructions. As
the initial construction progress of the Huabao Yingtan Project was
not satisfactory, Huabao Kongque was only able to complete the
corresponding production transition in February 2019, resulting in
the delay of the commencement of the project. In 2019, Huabao
Flavours further optimised its design on the specific implementation
of the Huabao H&K Project. After a comprehensive consideration
of the current industrial support provided by local governments and
the development strategies of itself, Huabao Flavours intended to
change the site for the implementation of the Huabao H&K Project.
Huabao Flavours will speed up the implementation once the site is
confirmed.
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Review of the tobacco raw materials business

During the Current Reporting Period, sales revenue of the Group’s
tobacco raw materials business was approximately RMB754 million,
accounting for approximately 17.8% of the Group's total revenue.
The operating profit of the segment amounted to approximately
RMB311 million, EBIT margin was approximately 41.2%. In
comparison to the Corresponding Period Last Year, the revenue of
the tobacco raw materials business for the Current Reporting Period
decreased by 21.0%, operating profit of the segment recorded a
decrease of 31.8%, EBIT margin decreased by 6.5 percentage points.
The decrease in sales revenue and the decrease in EBIT margin
were mainly attributable to the decrease in market demand and the
intense competition in the industry, which resulted in the decrease in
sales volume and selling prices of the products.

(1) RTL

In 2019, the production and sales volume of cigarette industry
remained stable, but there was overcapacity in the RTL
industry, which led to the drop in sales volume for the Group'’s
RTL. During the Current Reporting Period, sales volume
and sales amount of RTL achieved significant growth in the
overseas markets, which also optimised and broadened the
income sources of the Group’s RTL business.

In 2019, licenses for sale of heat-not-burn (“HNB") tobacco
products were granted by more regulatory authorities in
overseas, which provided the opportunity and momentum for
the development in HNB tobacco related materials. During the
Current Reporting Period, the Group built up a professional
team to develop products and analyze the market, with an aim
to seizing commercial chances related to HNB tobacco related
materials in the future.

(2) Tobacco new materials

Flavour capsule cigarettes was popular in the market. New
competitors continued to enter the market, resulting in
a rapid growth in the supply of flavour capsule, which
exceeded the growth of market demand and led to declined
prices. Although the flavour capsule cigarettes industry has
developed considerable market size and demand, the increased
competition in the industry has put pressure on the profitability
of market participants. During the Current Reporting Period,
the Group demonstrated its flexibility in adjusting the price to
consolidate its market share.
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Review of aroma raw materials business

During the Current Reporting Period, the Group’s aroma raw
materials business recorded a sales revenue of RMB620 million,
accounting for approximately 14.6% of the Group's total revenue,
the operating profit reached approximately RMB82.12 million,
EBIT margin was approximately 13.2%. In comparison to the
Corresponding Period Last Year, the revenue of the aroma raw
materials business for the Current Reporting Period decreased by
12.2%, operating profit decreased by 30.2%, EBIT margin decreased
by 3.5 percentage points. The decrease in sales revenue of the
segment was mainly attributable to the overcapacity in the maltol
industry, increase in competition and the maintenance work on the
factories of Yancheng Chunzhu.

In 2019, as affected by the escalation of the Sino-US trade war and
global economic growth slowdown, demand for aroma raw materials
declined in both overseas and domestic markets. To maintain market
share, some companies in the industry engaged in price competition,
putting pressure on the prices of the industry’s products. In addition,
government authorities had commenced rectification work on the
chemical industry, which required chemical enterprises to allocate
more resources to environmental protection and safety facilities and
services, resulting in certain impact on the profitability of chemical
enterprises. However, from a long-term perspective, government
regulations can be conducive to regulate the production and
operation of chemical enterprises and thus can provide a more
promising development prospect for the chemical enterprises in the
future.

During the Current Reporting Period, Jiangxi Xianghai Phase | Project
was completed and put into production. Land development and
equipment installation of Phase Il Project and the land development
work in Phase Ill Project were close to completion. Jiangxi
Xianghai produces various types of products with high standard of
craftsmanship. It is expected to contribute more revenue and profit
to the segment of aroma raw materials.

The price of maltol declined due to overcapacity and fierce
competition in the industry. Guangdong Zhaoging adopted the
sales strategy of “Big Customers, Big Brands” to strengthen the
partnership with big clients to maintain market share and pricing
power.

While Yongzhou Shanxiang continued to cooperate with
world-renowned flavours and fragrances companies, it was also
engaged in the development and production of other products such
as benzaldehyde. During the Current Reporting Period, Yongzhou
Shanxiang has optimised its production lines for the production
of benzaldehyde and provides quality products and services to
customers with improved efficiency.
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Chemical enterprises in Jiangsu Province have all re-evaluated their
own environmental protection and safe production capability due to
a chemical accident occurred in Jiangsu Province in March 2019. As a
leading manufacturer in the market segment of aroma raw materials,
Yancheng Chunzhu has allocated resources for the re-inspection
of its production facilities and education of its employees on safety
and environmental protection training, with an aim to achieve a
sustainable development.

Review of condiment business

During the Current Reporting Period, the sales revenue of the
Group’'s condiment business was approximately RMB700 million,
accounting for approximately 16.5% of the Group'’s total revenue.
Its operating profit reached approximately RMB145 million, EBIT
margin was approximately 20.7%. The Group completed the
acquisition of Jiahao on 4 September 2018. Therefore, the financial
figures of the Corresponding Period Last Year only covers the period
from the date of completion of the acquisition to 31 December
2018. In comparison to the Corresponding Period Last Year, the
operating profit margin of the condiment business for the Current
Reporting Period increased by approximately 7.0 percentage points.
The increase in the operating profit margin of the segment was
mainly attributable to the Group’s enriched product mix, expansion
in distribution channels and optimization in marketing strategies.
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Jiahao launched new products such as “Light Flavoured”
chicken bouillon, “Chilli Liquid Seasoning”, etc
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In terms of product mix, the Group strengthened the market position
of the core products. At the same time, the Group upgraded the core
products by dividing them into sub segments. The Group launched
two types of chicken bouillon including “Rich Flavoured” chicken
bouillon and “Light Flavoured” chicken bouillon to satisfy different
needs of chefs in the catering industry. The Group launched the
“Light Salted Chicken Powder” with the “Low Sodium, Full Flavour”
feature in the southern China market according to its marketing
strategy, while “Rich Flavoured Chicken Powder” was promoted
to the northern market to suit the taste of the local consumers.
Sichuan cuisine has become widely accepted and popular in China.
The Group launched the “Chilli Liquid Seasoning” and swiftly gained
market share with its exquisite quality and reasonable price.

In terms of distribution channels, the Group has set up flagship
stores on Taobao Tmall to boost online sales. In terms of offline
sales, the Group’s sales team has covered seven large sales regions
in China to work closely with distributors to develop business. In
addition, the Group also took advantage of the online and offline
distribution channels of Weizhijia to increase the sales revenue of
Jiahao.

In terms of marketing strategy, the Group positioned Jiahao
Foodstuff as the “Chinese tastes expert” to strengthen its
professional brand image. The Group also invited master chefs
and other chefs to compete with each other in their culinary skills
in the hope of enhancing Jiahao's awareness, recognition, and
influence among professional chefs. The Group aims to leverage
these marketing strategies to turn the chefs into users and thereby
increasing sales.
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Review of R&D

During the Current Reporting Period, the Group’s investment in
R&D was approximately RMB291 million. R&D expense accounted
for approximately 6.9% of sales revenue, which was 0.4 percentage
point higher than the 6.5% for April 2018 to December 2018.

In terms of flavours and fragrances, the Group was granted 10
invention patents and four utility patents, among which four
invention patents were granted to Huabao Flavour, including
“A tobacco flavour preparation method and its application” and
“A method of extracting ophiopogonin for the enhancement of
antioxidant activity”. The invention patent for “A preparation
method for geranyl acetone sustained-release material” was jointly
granted to Guangzhou Hua Fang, China Tobacco Yunnan Industrial
Co., Ltd. and South China University of Technology. Guangzhou
Huabao obtained three invention patents for “A preparation method
of water-soluble capsicum oleoresin of high pungency degree”,
“A crab flavour preparation and its application” and “An analytical
method for capsicum characteristic index compound”. Huabao
Kongque obtained two innovative utility patents for “A type of filter
press” and “A type of stirred tank for flavours and fragrances”.
Xiamen Amber obtained one invention patent for “A preparation
method for natural extracts and its application” and two innovative
utility patents for “A quality testing device for flavour blending”
and “A highly effective swinging preparation tank for aroma
manufacturing”. In addition, Huabao Flavours obtained the “High
and New Technology Enterprise Certificate” jointly issued by the
Department of Science and Technology, Department of Finance, the
State Administration of Taxation of the Tibet Autonomous Region in
March 2019.

In terms of RTL, Guangdong Jinye applied for 46 new patents,
including 42 domestic patents and four international patents.
During the Current Reporting Period, Guangdong Jinye obtained
13 new authorized patents. Guangdong Jinye also completed the
re-evaluation of four important enterprise qualifications, three of
which have been completed successfully. These are the “Certification
of Shantou Province Reconstituted Tobacco Leaves Technology
and Development Centre”, “Re-evaluation of National Intellectual
Property Outstanding Enterprise” and “Guangdong Province
Academician Experts Enterprise Workstation Expansion Assessment”.

In terms of tobacco new materials, Huabao Biological Technology
Co., Ltd. applied for 11 new patents and was granted nine
authorized patents; Yunnan Xinyun applied for one new patent
and was granted two new authorised patents. Yunan Xinyun also
obtained the qualification as a “Kunming Municipal Enterprise
Technology Centre”.
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In terms of aroma raw materials, Jiangxi Xianghai obtained a total of
six patents, including “Patent no. of a drying tank”, “Patent no. of
a reactor” and “Patent no. of a new type of filtration device.” These
patents demonstrate the high requirements of the Group in regards
to the craftsmanship of aroma raw materials.

For condiments, Jiahao applied for three patents, namely, “A
preparation method for a highly flavoured composite seasoning
based on the evaluation of the degree of seasoning flavouring”, “A
preparation method for moisture-resistant chicken powder” and “A
preparation for thermal-resistant wasabi pastes condiment and its
application”. Jiahao also established the “Jiangnan University-Jiahao
Food Oriental Flavour Research Center” with Jiangnan University to
leverage on the R&D advantages of Jiangnan University and Jiahao
in the field of condiment products, with an aim of developing more
tastes that are accepted and preferred by consumers in China.
In addition, Jiahao was also awarded the “Top 100 Innovative
Enterprises” by the “2019 China Science and Technology Innovation
Summit”.

Human Resources and Corporate Culture Construction

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed 3,544 employees
in mainland China, Hong Kong, Germany, Botswana, the U.S.
and Korea. During the Current Reporting Period, the labour
costs (including pension and mandatory provident fund, pension
insurance, etc.) amounted to approximately RMB604 million.

In 2019, following the Group's strategy “Concentric Diversification”,
the Group has systematically promoted the management work of
human resources. The Group is committed to the values of growing
together with its employees, providing a development platform for
the employees with ability and integrity, sincerity and passion to
fully develop their talents. During the Current Reporting Period, the
Group vigorously introduced professional talents with management
and industrial experience in the fast moving consumer goods
industry, aiming to enhance the operation and management of
Jiahao and strengthen the breadth and depth of Jiahao's business
expansion. The Group also actively introduced talented personnel
with overseas education and working background to study overseas
business model and to facilitate the development of the Group’s
international development strategy.
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According to the development stage and characteristics of each
business segment, the Group seeks to improve the incentive
mechanism to maximise the value of talents and improve the
Group's core values of “Value Creation and Shared Achievements”.
In addition, the Group also organised a wide range of cultural and
entertainment activities for its employees so that they can enjoy a
balanced work life with physical and mental developments, which is
the best condition for productivity.

During the Current Reporting Period, the Group actively fulfilled its
social responsibilities and continued to carry out activities such as
poverty alleviation, donation and education to win the trust of the
society and achieve sustainable development.

Outlook

In the area of flavours and fragrances, the Group will continue to
expedite the construction of investment projects and improve the
Group’s competitive edge in the area of food flavours. The Group
will take advantage of the economic downturn to identify M&A
targets that are of high quality, low prices, and potential synergies to
expand the scale of the flavours and fragrances business. For tobacco
raw materials, the Group will consolidate the leading position of the
RTL segment in R&D and technology in China, continue to boost
the sales volume in overseas market, and rigorously carry out R&D
projects and analysis of innovative tobacco related materials. For
aroma raw materials, the Group will comply with the government
and regulatory departments’ requirements, strengthen the training
in safe production and achieve sustainable development, as well as
to focus on big customer relationship, improve pricing power and
profitability. As for condiments, the Group will further promote new
products and strengthen distribution channel penetration. Through
offline interaction with the chefs, Jiahao's brand image of “Chinese
tastes expert” would be delivered to customers to enhance Jiahao's
brand recognition among them.
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The Group is actively engaged in social welfare activities
and received recognition from the government
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In the year ahead, phase | of the trade deal has been made
between China and the U.S. However, the uncertainty of the trade
relationship between China and the U.S. brings economic growth
slowdown risk to China. In addition, the spread of the COVID-19
Pneumonia has further weakened market demand and lead many
industries’ development to slow down and even decrease, of which
the catering industry was hit the most. In the short term, the Group’s
condiment business will face challenges due to the sluggish catering
industry, but the management will monitor market, assess impact,
and devise strategies to tackle these challenges ahead. In the long
term, the size, demand, and growth potential of Chinese catering
industry remain robust, the management remains confident in the
development prospect of Chinese catering and condiment industry.
The management believes that, with clear operation strategies of
each business segment, the Group will be able to maintain stable
growth and development. The Group will be committed to its
“Concentric Diversification” strategy, closely monitor the impact of
COVID-19 Pneumonia on operation environment, market demand,
and clients, flexibly adjust its sales strategies, and optimize resources
allocation to rise to the challenges and create value for shareholders
and society.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Analysis of annual results for the year ended 31 December
2019

Sales revenue

The Group's sales revenue amounted to RMB4,241,040,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2019 (for the nine months ended 31
December 2018 from continuing operations: RMB3,058,707,000),
of which sales revenue from flavours and fragrances reached
RMB2,163,927,000, contributing approximately 51.0% of total
sales revenue; sales revenue from tobacco raw materials reached
RMB754,424,000, contributing approximately 17.8% of total
sales revenue; sales revenue from aroma raw materials reached
RMB620,409,000, contributing approximately 14.6% of total sales
revenue; sales revenue from condiment reached RMB700,386,000,
contributing approximately 16.5% of total sales revenue.

For the Current Reporting Period, sales revenue was increased by
6.5% as compared with RMB3,981,536,000 (unaudited) for the
Corresponding Period Last Year from continuing operations. The
increase in sales revenue is mainly attributable to the consolidation
of twelve months’ sales revenue of condiment business acquired
last year in the Current Reporting Period, whereas the sales revenue
of condiment business in the Corresponding Period Last Year
only included the sales revenue from 4 September 2018 (date of
completion of acquisition) to 31 December 2018. However, part of
the increase was offset by the decrease in sales revenue of tobacco
raw materials and aroma raw materials.
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Cost of goods sold

The Group’s cost of goods sold amounted to RMB1,495,630,000
for the year ended 31 December 2019. The Group's cost of goods
sold amounted to RMB1,108,902,000 for the nine months ended 31
December 2018 from continuing operations.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

For the year ended 31 December 2019, gross profit of the Group
amounted to RMB2,745,410,000 (for the nine months ended 31
December 2018 from continuing operations: RMB1,949,805,000).
Gross profit margin was approximately 64.7%, representing an
increase of 1.0 percentage point from 63.7% of the nine months
ended 31 December 2018.

Gross profit of the Current Reporting Period was increased by
6.0% as compared with RMB2,590,939,000 (unaudited) for the
Corresponding Period Last Year from continuing operations, it is
mainly attributable to the consolidation of twelve months’ figures
of condiment business in the Current Reporting Period, whereas
only four months’ figures was included in the Corresponding Period
Last Year. However, part of the increase was offset by the decrease
in gross profit of tobacco raw materials and aroma raw materials.
Gross profit margin of the Current Reporting Period was slightly
decreased by 0.4 percentage point from 65.1% (unaudited) of the
Corresponding Period Last Year. It was mainly because sales revenue
of products with relatively lower gross profit margin accounted for a
higher proportion than that in the Corresponding Period Last Year.

Other income and other gains - net

Other income and other gains (net) of the Group was
RMB225,509,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019,
representing an increase of RMB45,045,000 as compared with
RMB 180,464,000 (unaudited) for the Corresponding Period Last
Year from continuing operations. The increase in other income and
other gains was mainly due to the increase in government grants for
the Current Reporting Period.
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Selling and marketing expenses

The selling and marketing expenses of the Group mainly comprised
travelling expenses, transportation costs, advertising and promotion
expenses, salaries and office expenses. The selling and marketing
expenses of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
were RMB358,305,000 (for the nine months ended 31 December
2018 from continuing operations: RMB208,417,000). Selling and
marketing expenses to total sales revenue of the Current Reporting
Period amounted to approximately 8.4%, representing an increase of
1.6 percentage points as compared with 6.8% for the nine months
ended 31 December 2018. The increase of such ratio was mainly
attributable to the selling and marketing expenses to sales ratio of
condiment business acquired last year was higher than that for the
other businesses of the Group, which caused the Group’s composite
ratio increased.

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses amounted to RMB867,398,000
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (for the nine months ended
31 December 2018 from continuing operations: RMB574,345,000).
Administrative expenses to total sales revenue for the Current
Reporting Period amounted to approximately 20.5%, representing
an increase of approximately 1.7 percentage points as compared
with 18.8% for the nine months ended 31 December 2018. The
increase of such ratio was mainly due to the amortisation expenses
of intangible assets related to the acquisition of condiment business
and higher employee benefit expenses of the Group.

Operating profit

Operating profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 was RMB1,728,811,000 (for the nine months ended 31
December 2018 from continuing operations: RMB1,287,750,000).
The operating profit margin was decreased by 1.3 percentage points
from approximately 42.1% for the nine months ended 31 December
2018 to approximately 40.8% of the Current Reporting Period.

Operating profit of the Current Reporting Period was decreased
by RMB16,139,000, representing a decrease of approximately
0.9% as compared with RMB1,744,950,000 (unaudited) for the
Corresponding Period Last Year from continuing operations, mainly
due to the decrease in operating profit of tobacco raw materials and
aroma raw materials.
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Income tax expense

Income tax expense of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 was RMB372,076,000 (for the nine months ended 31
December 2018 from continuing operations: RMB320,805,000).
Income tax rate for the Current Reporting Period was approximately
21.3%, which was slightly decreased by approximately 2.0
percentage points as compared with 23.3% for the nine months
ended 31 December 2018. It was mainly attributable to the decrease
in withholding income tax.

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the
Company

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company was
RMB1,112,004,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019, while
profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company was
RMB1,017,959,000 for the nine months ended 31 December 2018.

Net current asset value and financial resources

As at 31 December 2019, the net current asset value of the Group
was RMB6,957,179,000 (31 December 2018: RMB7,734,866,000).
The Group generates its working capital mainly through its
operating activities to maintain a sound financial position. As at 31
December 2019, the Group’s cash and bank balances amounted
to RMB5,722,074,000 (31 December 2018: RMB7,142,391,000),
over 80% of which was held in RMB. In addition, the Group held
bank financial products of RMB726,191,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB515,177,000) which was classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.

Bank borrowings and debt ratio

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had bank borrowings of
RMB2,998,776,000 (31 December 2018: RMB3,690,139,000), of
which secured loan amounted to RMB2,310,474,000 (31 December
2018: RMB2,888,092,000) was due within four years, and the
unsecured loans amounted to RMB688,302,000 (31 December
2018: RMB802,047,000) were due within one year. For the year
ended 31 December 2019, the average annual interest rate of the
secured loan was 5.70%, and the average annual interest rate of
the unsecured loans was 3.63% (31 December 2018: 3.72%). As at
31 December 2019, the Group’s gearing ratio (total debts, include
current and non-current borrowings, divided by total equity (excludes
non-controlling interests) was 25.4%, which was lower than the
31.4% as of 31 December 2018. It was mainly attributable to the
repayment of approximately RMB578 million secured loan related to
the acquisition of Jiahao during the Current Reporting Period.
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Investing activities

The Group's investing activities included the purchase of property,
plant and equipment, financial assets investment and merger
& acquisition activities related to the strategical development
strategies. For the year ended 31 December 2019, the net cash
used in investing activities amounted to RMB1,072,514,000, mainly
used for new placement of short-term time deposits, purchase of
properties, plant and equipment and financial assets investment. For
the nine months ended 31 December 2018, the net cash used in
investing activities amounted to RMB5,375,678,000.

Financing activities

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the net cash used in
financing activities amounted to RMB2,671,539,000, mainly
comprised of cash dividends of approximately RMB1,279,486,000
paid to shareholders of the Company, cash dividends of
RMB479,367,000 paid to non-controlling interests, repayment of
bank loans of RMB1,461,703,000 and addition of bank loans of
RMB756,607,000. For the nine months ended 31 December 2018,
the net cash generated from financing activities amounted to
RMB2,940,612,000.

Trade receivables turnover period

Trade receivable turnover period is calculated on the basis of the
average amount of trade receivables as at the beginning and end
of a relevant financial year divided by the total sales revenue for
the corresponding period and multiplied by 360 days (nine months
ended 31 December 2018: 270 days). The Group generally offers its
customers a credit period of approximately 0-180 days, depending
on the business volume of, and the length of business relationship
with the customers. For the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Group's average trade receivables turnover period was 88 days,
decreased by 10 days as compared with 98 days for the nine months
ended 31 December 2018. It was mainly attributable to the very low
balance of trade receivables of condiment business acquired last year
which cause the Group's average figures decreased.

Trade payables turnover period

Trade payable turnover period is calculated on the basis of the
average amount of trade payables as at the beginning and at the
end of a relevant financial year divided by the cost of goods sold for
the corresponding period and multiplied by 360 days (nine months
ended 31 December 2018: 270 days). Credit periods granted by
suppliers to the Group ranged from 0-180 days. For the year ended
31 December 2019, the Group’s average trade payables turnover
period was 77 days, remaining stable as compared with 78 days for
the nine months ended 31 December 2018.
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Inventory and inventory turnover period

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's inventory balance amounted
to RMB931,385,000 (31 December 2018: RMB896,243,000). For
the year ended 31 December 2019, the inventory turnover period
(calculated on the basis of the average amount of inventory balances
as at the beginning and end of a relevant financial year divided
by the total cost of goods sold for the corresponding period and
multiplied by 360 days (nine months ended 31 December 2018:
270 days) was 220 days, increased by 21 days as compared with
199 days for the nine months ended 31 December 2018. The
increase in inventory balance was mainly due to the flavours and
fragrances segment increased its inventory balance in response to
the fluctuation in raw materials market price.

Foreign exchange and exchange rate risk

The principal businesses of the Group are located in Mainland China
and the majority of the sales revenue is denominated in RMB, with
the exception of only a certain amount of imported raw materials
and equipment which are denominated in foreign currency such as
USD or EUR. The Group's bank deposits are mainly denominated in
HKD, USD and RMB. Management concurs the views of the People’s
Bank of China on the RMB exchange rate, that is, the RMB exchange
rate has the capability to continuously remain basically stable within
a reasonable range of equilibrium.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s equity interest in Jiahao
Foodstuff Limited and Guangdong Jiahao Foodstuff Co., Ltd, and its
land and buildings in Zhongshan China were used as collateral for a
bank loan of approximately RMB2.31 billion.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had capital commitments in
respect of the purchase of property, plant, equipment, financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, investment
in associate, etc., contracted for but not provided in the financial
statements amounting to approximately RMB265,106,000 (31
December 2018: RMB363,516,000), which was mainly investment in
domestic and overseas funds amounted to RMB109,790,000.

Contingent liabilities

Based on the information available to the Board, the Group had no
material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2019.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS #{TE=%

Ms. CHU Lam Yiu, aged 50, the Chairlady of the Board, CEO, Executive
Director and the Chairlady of Nomination Committee of the Company.
Ms. Chu has been a member of the Board since March 2004. Ms. Chu is the
mother of Mr. LAM Ka Yu (Executive Director of the Company). Ms. Chu is
also a director of the Company’s principal subsidiaries marked with “C1”
as set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. Ms. Chu
has extensive experience in formulating strategies and making executive
decisions on business operation, investments and market development. She
was a member of the Fourth and Fifth Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference Committee (Shenzhen, Guangdong province). Ms. Chu, through
the corporations controlled by her, is the beneficial owner of shares of the
Company as set out on pages 72 to 73 of this annual report headed under
Directors' Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures.
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Mr. XIA Liqun, aged 53, an Executive Director, Vice Chairman and a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Xia has been
a member of the Board since September 2006. Mr. Xia is also a director
of the Company’s principal subsidiaries marked with “X1” and the legal
representative of those companies marked with “X2" as set out in Note 35
to the consolidated financial statements. Mr. Xia holds a Bachelor’s degree in
economics and is a certified accountant, certified tax specialist and certified
appraiser in China. Mr. Xia has over 20 years of financial and corporate
management experience. He previously worked in domestic accounting
firms in China and was a senior management member of a foreign invested
enterprise in China. Mr. Xia is currently the honorary chairman of the Food
Additives and Ingredients Association in Shanghai City.
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Mr. POON Chiu Kwok, aged 57, an Executive Director, Vice President and
the Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Poon has been a member
of the Board since March 2004. Mr. Poon was awarded the postgraduate
diploma in laws by the University of London. He holds a Bachelor’s degree
in laws, a Bachelor’s degree in business studies and a Master’s degree in
international accounting. He is a fellow of CPA Australia Ltd., The Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly known as Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators), and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
a member of its Technical Consultation Panel, China Focus Group and Audit
Committee and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment
Institute and its associate instructor. Mr. Poon has extensive experience
and knowledge in areas of compliance, corporate finance and corporate
governance of listed companies.
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Mr. LAM Ka Yu, aged 27, an Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Lam
has been a member of the Board since November 2013. Mr. Lam is the son
of Ms. CHU Lam Yiu (the Chairlady of the Board, CEO, Executive Director
and controlling shareholder of the Company). Mr. Lam is also a director
of the Company’s principal subsidiaries marked with “L1” and the legal
representative of those companies marked with “L2" as set out in Note 35 to
the consolidated financial statements. Mr. Lam was educated in the United
Kingdom and the United States of America. For corporate management
experiences, Mr. Lam is currently a managing director and legal representative
of a private company, which is engaged in e-commerce business in China.
He previously served as a director and the general manager of a company
which is engaged in advertising media business in China, and a director of a
non-profit foundation in China.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS By f#HTESE

Mr. LEE Luk Shiu, aged 62, an Independent Non-executive Director, the
chairman of both of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee
and a member of the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Lee has
been a member of the Board since May 2006. Mr. Lee is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom
and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Lee has over 30 years of experience in commercial accounting and
corporate finance. Mr. Lee has principally engaged in corporate finance and
regulatory aspects in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. He was an assistant vice
president of the Listing Division of the Stock Exchange, and his duties included
regulating and monitoring the Hong Kong listed companies in relation to their
compliance with the Listing Rules and processing new listing applications.
He also served as a senior consultant of an investment bank for more than 5
years.
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Ms. MA Yunyan, aged 59, an Independent Non-executive Director and a
member of both of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Ms. Ma has been a member of the Board since September 2004.
Ms. Ma graduated from the Law School of Peking University in 1984 and
obtained qualification as a lawyer in China in 1986. She is the senior Partner
of Shu Jin Law Firm. Ms. Ma is currently an independent director of Shenzhen
Techand Ecology & Environment Co., Ltd. and Jiangsu Nata Opto-Electronic
Material Co., Ltd. (both of the companies are listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange). She was a member of the Fourth, Eighth and Ninth Listing
Committee of Shenzhen Stock Exchange. From August 2009 to August 2011,
she was a member of the Growth Enterprises Board Public Offering Review
Committee of China Securities Regulatory Committee. She has been dedicated
to teaching and doing research in the Law School in relation to international
commerce and investment aspects for 10 years. She has years of experience
in the legal field in relation to the capital markets, including investment,
merger and acquisition, issuance of securities, etc., and has lead-managed the
issuance of shares and convertible bonds and major restructuring of numerous
companies listed in PRC and Hong Kong.
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Mr. WU Chi Keung, aged 63, an Independent Non-executive Director and
a member of both of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee
of the Company. Mr. Wu has been a member of the Board since August
2013. Mr. Wu is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the United Kingdom and an associate of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Wu has over 30 years of
experience in financial audit, corporate restructuring and merger and
acquisitions. He was a partner of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu until he retired in
December 2008.
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Mr. Jonathan Jun YAN, aged 57, an Independent Non-executive Director
and a member of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr. Yan has been
a member of the Board since May 2019. Mr. Yan graduated from University
of Technology, Sydney with a Master of Management. Mr. Yan previously
served as the Director of the MBA (Mandarin International) Education Centre
of the University of Technology, Sydney from 1998 to 2000, the General
Manager of Insearch Consulting (Shanghai) Ltd. from 2001 to 2005, and the
General Manager of Ecole Fashion Consulting (Beijing) Ltd. from 2006 to
2013. He is the Director of Global Finance Development Education Center of
PBC School of Finance, Tsinghua University since 2013. Mr. Yan is currently an
independent director of Haisco Pharmaceutical Group Co. Ltd., Beijing Shuzhi
Technology Co. Ltd. and Guangdong Baolihua New Energy Stock Co. Ltd. (all
are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange) since January 2017, September
2018 and May 2019, respectively.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT SR EEE

Ms. YUAN Xiao Qin, aged 51, a president of Huabao Flavours, joined the
Group since August 2006. Ms. Yuan is also a director of the Company’s
principal subsidiaries marked with “YX1” and the legal representative of those
companies marked with “YX2" as set out in Note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements. Ms. Yuan holds an MBA degree and is a qualified
engineer. Before joining the Group, Ms. Yuan served as executive in a Hong
Kong listed state-owned enterprise. She has over 20 years of experience
in senior management position. Ms. Yuan is currently the deputy director
of China Association of Fragrance Flavour and Cosmetic Industries, deputy
director of China Association of Bakery & Confectionery Industry, chairman of
the Food Additives and Ingredients Industry Association in Shanghai City and
consultant of the Federation of Industry and Commerce in Chaoyang District,
Shantou City. She was a representative of the People’s Congress in Shantou
City, Guangdong Province and a member of the National Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference in Chaoyang District,
Shantou City.
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Mr. CHOY Man Fai, aged 56, a vice president of Huabao Flavours, joined
the Group since August 2006, responsible for marketing and sales of tobacco
flavours. Mr. Choy is also a director of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
marked “FC1" and the legal representative of those companies marked “FC2"
as set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. He holds a
diploma of applied chemical technology of Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
Mr. Choy served as a marketing manager in a number of world renowned
flavours and fragrances companies. Mr. Choy has over 20 years of experience
in flavours and fragrances marketing and management.
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Mr. Alan DAVIES, aged 72, the chief flavourist of Huabao Flavours
and general manager of Aromascape Development Centre in Germany,
joined the Group since February 2007. Mr. Davies is also a director of the
Company’s principal subsidiaries marked with “AD1" as set out in Note 35
to the consolidated financial statements. Mr. Davies holds a Higher National
Diploma in food science of Grimsby College of Technology, United Kingdom.
Mr. Davies served as a senior flavourist in charge of creation and applications
in a number of world renowned flavours and fragrances companies and
tobacco factory, including BBA, Carreras Rothmans, Dragoco and Symrise.
Mr. Davies has over 35 years of experience in tobacco flavours.

Alan DAVIES 4 - 7255 - EBRM B AEAD - EBIAromascapefft
B OBAEIE - B2007F2 A BB INA KK B - Daviesst £ TN B & A 4R
A BHRERMAIRNAIADI I FRZARBETEWNBERAGINES -
Daviesst £ A H B Grimsby College of TechnologyH) & fa £HE = 4 [
EAXE TEABRZHRERANEZNEBERARMER - 21EBBA
Carreras Rothmans * Dragoco X Symrise * i E T RAFTM L EE
FEFER ' Davies k EMEABB=+THAFNEAEBERER -

Mr. LUO lJing, aged 41, a vice president and chief human resources officer
of the Company, joined the Group since September 2017. Mr. Luo is also
a director of the Company’s principal subsidiaries marked with “LJ1" and
the legal representative of those companies marked with “LJ2"” as set out in
Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. Mr. Luo graduated from
the Department of International Politics at Fudan University with a bachelor’s
degree in Law, and then obtained a master’s degree in Management from
University of Leeds. Mr. Luo also holds a senior human resources management
qualification. Prior to joining the Group, he held the position of chief
human resources officer and some other senior management positions in a
number of large group companies, as well as accumulated rich management
and consulting experiences in enterprises human resources planning and
organizational strategic development.
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Mr. REN Miao, aged 40, a vice president of Huabao Flavours, joined the
Group since September 2016. Mr. Ren graduated from Taiyuan University of
Technology with a bachelor's degree in Machinery Design, Manufacturing
and Automation. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ren held several executive
positions such as marketing director, vice president, etc. at various companies,
and has extensive practical experience in marketing strategy management.
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Mr. GAO Xu, aged 36, the president of Tobacco Raw Materials Business
Division and general manager of the Company’s subsidiaries named —
Shanghai Huabao Biological Technology Co., Ltd., Guangdong Jinye and
Hunan Jishou Minzu Materials Co., Ltd joined the Group since April 2007.
Mr. Gao is also a director of the Company’s principal subsidiaries marked with
“GX1" and the legal representative of those companies marked with “"GX2"
as set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. Mr. Gao
holds a bachelor's degree in Food Science and Engineering from Nanjing
University of Finance and Economics and a master’s degree in Food Science
from Jiangnan University. Since joining the Group in 2007, Mr. Gao has held
different positions, namely technician of tobacco flavour market service center,
deputy general manager of Yunnan Tianhong Flavor and Fragrance Co., Ltd.,
assistant to the chairman of Guangdong Jinye, vice president of Tobacco Raw
Materials Business Division and president of Tobacco Raw Materials Business
Division. He has extensive operational and managerial experience in tobacco
raw materials.
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Corporate governance refers to the rules and incentives by which the
management of a company is directed and controlled to maximize
the profitability and long-term value of the firm for shareholders
while taking into account the interest of other legitimate
stakeholders (UK Cadbury Report 1992). The Board recognizes the
importance and benefits of good corporate governance practices
and has adopted certain corporate governance and disclosure
practices aiming at a high level of transparency and accountability.
The Company is committed to continuously improving its corporate
governance practices as part of its own corporate culture.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2019 (the
“Financial Year”), the Company had complied with the code
provisions in the CG Code and, where appropriate, adopted the
recommended best practice as set out in the code provisions, except
for code provisions A.2.1 and A.4.1:

Code provision A.2.1 provides that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. Ms. CHU Lam Yiu, Chairlady of the Board and
Executive Director of the Company, took up the position of CEO
starting from 9 April 2013. As the Board meets regularly to consider
matters relating to business operations of the Group, the Board is of
the view that the above arrangement will not impair the balance of
power and authority of the Board and the executive management.
The effectiveness of corporate planning and implementation of
corporate strategies and decisions will generally not be affected.

Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election. The
INEDs of the Company were not appointed for a specific term as
they are subject to retirement by rotation no later than the third
annual general meeting of the Company since their last appointment
or re-election and are eligible for re-election in accordance with the
Company’s bye-laws. As such, the Company considers that sufficient
measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are no less exacting than those set out in the
CG Code.

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying
and complying with the CG Code but about promoting and
developing an ethical and healthy corporate culture. The Directors
will continue to review and, where appropriate, improve the current
practices of the Company on the basis of the experience and
regulatory changes to enhance the confidence of shareholders of
the Company, and to safeguard Shareholders’ interest for assuring
healthy business developments.
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Changes in Information in respect of Directors

In accordance with Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, no changes
to information required to be disclosed by Directors pursuant to
paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) between 23 August
2019 (being the date of approval of the Company’s 2019 interim
report) and 27 March 2020 (being the date of approval of this
annual report) of the Company.

THE BOARD

Board Composition

The Company has a well-balanced Board. The Board comprises four
Executive Directors and four INEDs. The members of the Board are as
follows:

Executive Directors

Ms. CHU Lam Yiu (Chairlady and CEQ)

Mr. XIA Ligun (Vice Chairman)

Mr. POON Chiu Kwok (Company Secretary)
Mr. LAM Ka Yu

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LEE Luk Shiu

Ms. MA Yunyan

Mr. WU Chi Keung
Mr. Jonathan Jun YAN

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other
material relationship) between any members of the Board, except
for Ms. CHU Lam Yiu is the mother of Mr. LAM Ka Yu (both are
Executive Directors of the Company). Biographies of the Directors
are set out on pages 30 to 33 of this annual report. The present
Board has experience, expertise, and qualifications in aspects of
production and operation, management, accounting and finance,
legal and regulatory both in Hong Kong and China. Two out of four
INEDs possess recognized professional qualification in accounting.
The INEDs bring independent judgment, professional knowledge and
experience appropriate for the Board'’s deliberations. All Directors
have relevant qualifications in relevant field of expertise and have
exhibited personal and professional ethics and integrity. The diversity
of experiences and backgrounds enables the Board to enhance
better corporate governance and performance standard and to bring
in valuable contributions and objective advices for the development
of the Group's businesses.
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During the Financial Year, the Board met the requirements of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of independent
non-executive directors representing at least one-third of the Board,
with at least one independent non-executive director possessing
appropriate qualification, or accounting or related financial
management expertise (in compliance with Rule 3.10 of the Listing
Rules). During the Financial Year, Mr. Lee Luk Shiu (“Mr. Lee"), one
of the INEDs, retired by rotation and, being eligible, offered himself
for re-election at the AGM of the Company held on 3 May 2019.
Mr. Lee joined the Company since May 2006 and has been serving
as an INED for more than nine years. The Company has complied
with the code provision A.4.3 of the CG Code that the election
of Mr. Lee as the INED was subject to a separate resolution and
the relevant circular contained reasons why the Board was of the
view that Mr. Lee was still independent and should be re-elected.
The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Board has assessed their independence and concluded
that all the INEDs are considered to be independent pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer

Ms. CHU Lam Yiu is the Chairlady of the Board (responsible for the
management of Board’s operation and development of the Group’s
strategic planning) and Executive Director of the Company. She took
up the position of CEO (responsible for important management
and business decisions making of the Group) since 9 April 2013.
Ms. Chu has extensive experience in business operation and strategic
planning. The Board believes that Ms. Chu, by taking up the roles
of the Chairlady and CEO concurrently, is beneficial to the business
development and management of the Group.

Mr. XIA Liqun as Vice Chairman, is responsible for the daily
operational management of the Group and reports to the CEO
directly. With the support of Mr. XIA Liqun as the Vice Chairman,
Mr. POON Chiu Kwok as the Company Secretary, and the Qualified
Accountant, the Chairlady shall ensure that all Directors are properly
briefed on issues arising at board meetings and receive adequate,
complete, reliable and timely information for making decisions.
Apart from the above, the Chairlady is also responsible for the duties
as specified in code provisions A.2.4 to A.2.9 of the CG Code.

EEERBRE

RAGHREERN EFSFELMAUER
ZRELEEENEAREL =S 22— B
FRITEE WAEFEL—BHEILIEHT
ETEABEENEEER EHEHEBE
ENSHNERNTKEEREERZRTE (B
FEMHRAEIN0EMETE) - RABMERFE
W FkEE((FxE])  HEfP—UBL
JEHTTEE > M2019F5A3H BITHRE R
FRAELHESE HEEFEER  TREE
BB o LR AF2006F5 M MAKRRAT
EABIYFRNTEZTELBBENTF - KQF]
EETFTREERTAEXEALIGHTE - N
B R ERFAEEFTAERBIUIIFNTE
EWREBEBREINEETEAMNRAETEAE
TBBIATREEEENRE -BELM
MAIE3IIME ARFIEEBSBILIERTT
BEEFERYUMERE EEQETHE
E2BIM URAEZEBIINTESRR
BEMARAUEER BB -

FEHREEHTE
SAMELZLEARREESEIF (AEEE
EEeNEERAEBMNERAE) FHNT
EEMBE2013F4A9B ERTEHENITE
(BEAEBEATENERRE)BRS - XK
TR ELBENRERIATTAELEL
B EEeMEAXLIRBEEIRERER
HOTEZE  BEFRASENERERERE
I8 o

BENBELERERER AEAKERES
BEREI( YEEXNEFRRTEE®R T
FREIEFEMELELE  RRWEERBEL
ARGERGONET  ARMAE
ERNEFSERRBNFTABIEEHRA -
VEBSTETE A EMRENERUIEL
RE o fr Latsh TR TBELEERTA
R EA2AEA2 RIETE 2 BT5 -

39




40

Huabao International Holdings Limited Z8 BEIEUZAYAR AR 2019 Annual Report 3

Corporate Governance Report

Roles and Responsibilities of Directors

The primary objective of the Board is to maximize the profitability
of the Company and to safeguard and enhance long-term value of
the Company for the Shareholders. To this end, the Board assumes
the responsibilities for leadership and control of the Company and
oversees the businesses, strategic development direction, financial
performance and corporate governance of the Group. All new board
members have been given information on the general business
background and policy of the Company on joining the Board. All
Directors have been provided with regular trainings by external
experienced lawyers to update and refresh the applicable legal and
other regulatory requirements and enhance the knowledge and skills
required by directors to perform their duties.

The Board, led by the Chairlady, is collectively responsible for
formulating and approving the business strategies of the Company,
setting objectives for management, overseeing its performance and
assessing the effectiveness of management strategies.

The Executive Directors are responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Company’s operations and conduct meetings
with senior management of the Group at which operational issues
and financial performance are evaluated.

The bye-laws of the Company set out the responsibilities and
proceedings of the Board. Significant operational policies have to
be discussed and approved by the Board. To enable the Directors to
meet their obligations, an appropriate organizational structure is in
place with clearly defined responsibilities and limits of authority.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for the
Directors and senior management of the Company in respect of legal
action that may be brought against them in the course of execution
of their duties in good faith.

Board Meetings

The Board conducts scheduled board meetings on a quarterly
basis to discuss strategies and business issues, including financial
performance of the Group. Details of attendance of the Directors at
the physical meetings are set out on page 56 of this annual report.

Notices of board meeting are given to each member of the Board
at least 14 days prior to the meeting, whereby the Director can put
forward his/her proposed items into the agenda. The agenda and
the relevant board papers are then circulated to the Directors at least
3 days before a board meeting is convened to enable them to make
informed decisions at the meeting.
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Drafts of the board minutes and board committee meeting minutes
are circulated to all Directors and the relevant board committee
members respectively for their review and comments before
finalization. The final version of such minutes will be kept by the
Company Secretary and are open for inspection by the Directors
and committee members. If a Director has an interest in a matter
to be considered at a board meeting, the Board will ensure that
an adequate number of independent directors are involved in the
consideration of the relevant resolutions, and the relevant director(s)
having an interest in the matter will abstain from voting.

Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers and relevant
materials and have unrestricted access to advice and services of the
Company Secretary/Legal Department and Compliance Department
of the Company with a view to ensuing that board procedures and
all applicable rules and regulations are followed. Directors are able
to seek independent professional advice as and when required at the
Company’s expense. INEDs are encouraged to take an active role in
board meetings and serve on the sub-board committees.

During the Financial Year, the Chairlady has held a meeting with the
INEDs without the presence of other Directors.

Directors’ Appointment and Re-election

Although all the Directors were not appointed for a specific term,
every Director shall, in accordance with bye-law 87 of the Company,
retire from office by rotation no later than the third annual general
meeting of the Company since their last appointment or re-election
and are eligible for re-election.

Directors’ Interests and Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct
regarding dealing in the securities of the Company by the Directors.
Having made specific enquiries of all Directors, the Company has
received their written confirmations that they have complied with
the required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the
Financial Year. Full details of the Directors’ interests in the Shares are
set out on pages 72 to 73 of this annual report.

Delegation of Directors

The Board may from time to time delegate all or any of its powers
that it may think fit to a director or member of senior management
of the Company. The Board has formulated specific rules and
policies on such delegation of power to facilitate efficient operation
of the Company and is supported by three committees which are
the Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has maintained the Remuneration Committee, Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee. Each of these committees
has specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with their
authority and duties. The chairman of the committees will report
their findings and make recommendations to the Board after each
meeting.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of three INEDs, namely
Mr. LEE Luk Shiu (the chairman of Remuneration Committee),
Ms. MA Yunyan, Mr. WU Chi Keung, and one Executive Director,
Mr. XIA Ligun.

The Remuneration Committee’s responsibilities include making
recommendations for approval by the Board with respect to
matters relating to the remuneration of Executive Directors and
senior management. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee was published on the Company’s website at
www.huabao.com.hk and on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s
website at www.hkexnews.hk. In discharging its responsibilities, the
Remuneration Committee has performed the following works:

o To review and make recommendations on the Company’s
policies and structure for the remuneration of the Executive
Directors and senior management;

o To evaluate remuneration packages of the Executive Directors
by reference to market conditions, performance of the Group
and the individual and corporate goals and objectives as set by
the Board from time to time, and make recommendations on
the remuneration of the INEDs for the Board's approval; and

o To review and evaluate the Company'’s share option scheme (if
any).

Directors will abstain from voting in determining their own
remuneration packages. During the Financial Year, the Remuneration
Committee met four times to, among other things, review the
emolument packages of the Directors and senior management.
The individual attendance of Remuneration Committee members
at meetings is set out on page 56 of this annual report. Details
of the emolument of the Directors are set out in Note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements while details of the Share Option
Scheme to the Directors and senior management are set out on
pages 67 to 70 of this annual report.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises four INEDs, namely Mr. LEE Luk Shiu
(the chairman of Audit Committee), Ms. MA Yunyan, Mr. WU Chi
Keung and Mr. Jonathan Jun YAN.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include assisting
the Board in maintaining a high standard of corporate governance,
developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and making recommendations to the Board,
particularly by providing independent review of the effectiveness
of the Company’s financial reporting process and material internal
controls, including financial, operational, compliance and risk
management controls and, to maintain good and independent
communications with the management as well as auditors of the
Company. The Audit Committee is also responsible for performing
the corporate governance duties set out in the terms of reference
under code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code as delegated by the
Board. In discharging its responsibilities, the Audit Committee has
performed the following work:

o To review the financial budget and planning including
the annual and interim financial statements and results
announcements during the financial year/for the reporting
period;

o To discuss with the external auditors and the management on
possible accounting risks;

o To review the effectiveness of the Group’s financial controls,
corporate governance, internal controls and risk management
systems;

° To review the sufficiency of manpower, resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions;

o To approve the audit fees and terms of engagement of the
external auditors;

o To review the independence of the external auditors and make
recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of the
external auditors; and

o To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with corporate governance and other legal and
regulatory requirements, and to report to the Board on their
decisions or recommendation.

EEERBRE

EZEE®
ERLZECHNABBIIERNTES
Kt (BBERZESEE) MEHMRLL -
B 558 5t 4 FlJonathan Jun YANZE 4 4B AK ©

EZZESTIERERMBESTSEHFTSK
FREER GIELRRESARANEEER
BERER YREFTGROEZ LEZ
RARBNHBERREZARENEARN
MEEBREYE  EF - | RMERER R
HBYIER  AREARDFEERE Nz EAD
RERMNMEBINER BRZEQCRE
ZERE RERUTHICBESLENEGR
PEERTAMRXED. 3152 Bift - BITH
BER BEXZESCETIIIIE:

o EHYHREFE MEPANZHBRE
SEFE BREFMTHMBRREK
ES - W/NiE

. ENERBARTEEREESHAR
It T3

« BEAKEZHBEE 2EEH R
BB R R AR IR R A2 AR

o RHREEF  AEMERLYBEERRE
EETEHMNAF BR -BIEELERK
BEXNEIREREHRERLRR

o HUENNERBEZBERNZELH:

o EHIMBZEEN 2B R REEINE
REMREFTSFLHERER &

s RHAERARREETEEREARE
MARELREERETEOBRRER -
YRAEESERLRENESR ©




44

Huabao International Holdings Limited Z8 BEIEUZAYAR AR 2019 Annual Report 3

Corporate Governance Report

The terms of reference of Audit Committee was published on the
Company's website at www.huabao.com.hk and on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk.

The Audit Committee meets regularly with the Company’s external
auditors to discuss accounting issues, and reviews the effectiveness
of risk management and internal control systems. During the
Financial Year, the Audit Committee met twice for reviewing the
financial reports for 2019 audited annual results and 2019 interim
results (including the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
the contents disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report) and the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal controls
system. The individual attendance of Audit Committee members
at meetings is set out on page 56 of this annual report. Members
of the Audit Committee were satisfied with the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems and the financial reporting
disclosures.

The Audit Committee of the Company has reviewed the Group’s
audited annual results for the Financial Year.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises an Executive Director,
Ms. CHU Lam Yiu (the Chairlady of Nomination Committee) and two
INEDs, namely Mr. LEE Luk Shiu and Mr. WU Chi Keung.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
formulating nomination policy for the Board’s consideration
and implementing the Board’'s approved nomination policy,
considering the development targets and strategies of the Company
and the skills mix needed in respect of the Board, and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of directors
and succession planning for directors. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee was published on the Company’s website
at www.huabao.com.hk and on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s
website at www.hkexnews.hk. In discharging its responsibilities, the
Nomination Committee has performed the following work:

. To review the structure, size and composition of the Board and
diversity of Board members, and make any proposed changes
to the Board according to the Company’s corporate strategy;

o To consider the development targets and strategies of the
Company and the skills mix needed in respect of the Board,
and make recommendations to the Board;

o To assess the independence of INEDs and review the INEDs’
annual confirmations on their independence; and make
disclosure of its review results in the Corporate Governance
Report;

o To review the time required from a Director to perform his/her
responsibilities; and

o To make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re=appointment of directors.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company adopted a board diversity policy in September 2013
(the “Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity
on the board by considering a number of factors and measurable
objectives, including without limitation, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional skills, knowledge, experience
and length of service, in order to maintain an appropriate range and
balance of talents, skills, experience and background of the Board.
Appointments of Board members shall be based on merit, and
candidates will be assessed based on objective criteria. The Company
will also take into account factors based on its own business model
and specific needs from time to time. The Nomination Committee
will monitor the implementation of the Policy, review the Policy
from time to time, report to the Board on their decisions or propose
recommendations on any amendments for the Board's review and
approval, in order to ensure the effectiveness of the Policy.

During the Financial Year, the Nomination Committee met once for
reviewing the board structure, the diversity of Board members and
the commitment of Directors and making recommendations to the
Board. The Nomination Committee considered that the composition
of the Board is well balanced and diversified in terms of gender, age,
educational background, professional skills and experience. It meets
the needs of the business operations and development of the Group.
The Board is of the view that every Director has dedicated sufficient
time and attention to the affairs of the Company. Each Director had
disclosed to the Company at the time of his/her appointment of
the directorships held in other listed companies or nature of offices
held in public organizations and other significant commitments.
The Company has also requested Directors to provide in a timely
manner any change in such information. The individual attendance
of Nomination Committee members at meetings is set out on page
56 of this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has full responsibility for maintaining an integrated and
effective risk management and internal control systems of the
Group, which includes the establishment of a defined management
structure with specified limits of authority. The internal control
system is designed to assist in the achievement of business objectives
of the Group, safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or
disposition, ensuring the proper maintenance of accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information for internal
use or for publication and ensuring compliance with relevant
legislation and regulation. The internal control system is designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss. The internal control system (embedded in
the operations of the Company and forms part of the Company’s
culture) includes:

effectiveness and efficiency of operations;

o capability in responding quickly to evolving risks to the business
arising from factors within the company and to the change in
business environment; and include procedures for reporting
immediately to appropriate management levels regarding any
significant control weakness that are identified together with
details of corrective action being undertaken;

o reliability of financial reporting; and
o compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

The key procedures that the Board established to provide effective
internal controls are as follows:

Organizational Structure and Risk Management

An appropriate organizational structure is in place with defined
operating policies and procedures as well as responsibility and lines
of authority.

The Company has set out Internal Audit Department with scope of
works advised by the Audit Committee.

The Legal Department and Compliance Department are led by
experienced professional legal staff, together with other business
functions (including Internal Audit Department) of the Group,
monitor and assess risk regularly, boost related management
standards and evaluate investment projects. The Company has
engaged a reputable law firm, Herbert Smith Freehills, as its annual
retainer counsel for provision of legal advice relating to compliance
of Listing Rules and regulatory requirements.
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Authority and Control

The Executive Directors and senior management are delegated with
respective levels of authorities to carry out the corporate strategies
and policies and related matters formulated by the Board.

Budgetary Control and Financial Reporting

The Group implements budget management and the financial
budget is executed upon approval by the Board. Relevant procedures
have been established to assess, review and approve major
capital and recurring expenditures, and regular review and make
comparison between operating results and the budget.

The Group has established appropriate internal control procedures to
ensure accurate and complete accounting and management records
are kept on a timely basis. Examination and review are carried
out regularly to ensure that the financial statements are properly
prepared in conformity with the generally accepted accounting
principles, the Group’s accounting policies and the applicable laws
and regulations.

Risk Management and Internal Control Review

During the Financial Year, the Internal Audit Department had carried
out an annual review on the internal control system including
financial, operational and compliance control, and risk management
functions. The review adopts a risk-based approach to create and
review the effectiveness of an internal control system and includes
the following works:

(i)  To follow up the enhancement progress in response to the
previous recommendations from an external independent
expert in respect of internal control system;

(i) To carry out a high level review on the internal control system
of new members/businesses of the Group under the principles
set out by The Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Committee (“COSO") covering major control
aspects;

(i)  To arrange site visit and perform focused walk through test
on the internal control system of members of the Group on a
selective basis pursuant to the principles of COSO; and

(iv)  To design and review the questionnaires on the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems submitted
by the head offices of the Group, subsidiaries, business sectors
of the Company.

The Company has adopted a set of risk management and internal
control policies and procedures to safeguard the Group’s assets, to
ensure proper maintenance of accounting records and reliability of
financial information, and to ensure compliance with relevant laws
and regulations.

EEERBRE

REMEEE
BRYRATEENSAEEBBENEINT
CERRMRBANE=TSHENHEBESR -

T8 B 42 5 A0 B 75 BE 3R

AEBERBEEER BERELE=SH
BEEBTT - ERAMBREFFE  mag Mt
EERBEAZEMEE M H - MEHER
MHEBEEXEREBE -

AEBRAEE AR IEIR 7 RERIR %
MM B CHEM B ERE - EHRE
MR RS RRIE —RAR ST ER
AEESFTBRENERAERRUERS -

[ B 3 I P B BE AT A

RAMBFEAR - AEBEF B FIY A e
A (BRMG  £EMSREENRREE
WEe) ETF RN - FHERARRERT A
BEMB S NERE R RAAR - B NIT
1

() CEERBFIBBIZERNER  RER
FTHAMEZRRRNEE

(i) MR ¥#EThe Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway
Committee ([ COSO ) FRET 2 R Al » &
PEERNSEAZERESRE  HEE
MK BN EBNANBEERRETSE

RIE

Gi) B8 1% 51 35 % % B 2 B8 70 4R J§COSOR
A0 3 P 2 B 1 R T R BT
5 A

(iv) REthieEEBEAE S FXEHM LM
BRrsEREERABEZRRENE
MR R FHERE -

ARFERN-—EARERRNBERRE
REF AR AREEE BRI
ZEREFRGEENOTEY - U RERSY
FHRMERRER -




48

Huabao International Holdings Limited Z8 BEIEUZAYAR AR 2019 Annual Report 3

Corporate Governance Report

The Directors and senior management of the Company received
the information about local, market and the competitors’ dynamic
movements each week and their understanding of the risk
assessment is enhanced through the on-the-job training and regular
senior management meetings, at which they discuss cases of the
potential risk management.

Identification, assessment and management:

- The head of each department such as the Investment
Department, Finance Department and the Board of the
Company will inform and report to the relevant Directors
regarding the factors that have impact on the profit and price
based on the nature of business and their own experience.
During the course of execution, the concerned project teams
of the Company will handle relevant documents and report to
the relevant personnel (including the Directors).

- As for the matters as required to be disclosed under the Listing
Rules, the Compliance Department will present the issues to
the Board for review and discussion, and the Legal Department
and Compliance Department will inform relevant members of
the project team that dealing in the shares of the Company is
prohibited.

Review prior to the transactions:

- Generally, the price sensitive information forms regarding the
daily operation and connected transactions of the Company
will be circulated to relevant departments at the beginning
of every month by the Finance Department, and the Finance
Department will combine and submit the forms to the
Compliance Department for overall review in the middle of
each month, ensuring that there are no material omissions.
The Legal Department and Compliance Department will also
confirm with the Compliance Department for any material
contracts.

During the Financial Year, Internal Audit Department has presented its
review report and make recommendations to the Audit Committee
and the Audit Committee has discussed with the management
and reported the progress of the work plan and related findings,
particularly those related to new members of the Group to the Board
at board meeting.
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Measures to further enhance Internal Control Systems and
Corporate Governance practices

In compliance with the requirements of the Listing Rules and for
the purpose of reinforcing the Group’s internal control system, the
Company has established a whistleblowing policy and system for
employees to raise concerns, in a confidential manner, with the
Audit Committee about possible irregularities in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters related to the Company. The Audit
Committee is responsible for reviewing the relevant policy and
system regularly.

The Directors has further strengthened corporate governance
practices, including execution of the internal reporting policy
throughout the Group in monitoring the operation and business
developments of the Company so as to capture potentially
price-sensitive information on an on-going basis, monitoring the
continuing disclosure obligation. The Board has further strengthened
corporate governance practices by establishing lending policy to
monitor its credit level. In addition, the annual retainer counsel of
the Company has provided the Directors (existing and new board
members) and the relevant senior executives with training on Listing
Rules, regulatory requirements and cases of enforcement at least
twice a year.

During the Financial Year, the Internal Audit Department of the
Company has carried out internal control audits in respect of those
risk areas, such as business operation, financial system, project
investment and management, corporate governance, etc., and also
head offices, business sectors and certain subsidiaries of the Group.
The Internal Audit Department has reported to the Directors in respect
of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
system and significant risks. The Board reviewed and evaluated the
effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems of the
Company and its subsidiaries by considering reviews performed by
the Audit Committee with the assistance of the management team,
the Internal Audit Department and the external auditors.

As a result of the above review, the Board confirms, and
management has also confirmed to the Board, that the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems are effective and adequate
(including the resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions are adequate) and have
complied with the CG Code provisions on risk management and
internal control throughout the Financial Year and up to the date of
this annual report.
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Directors’ Training

All Directors participated in appropriate continuous professional
development and provided the Company with their records
of training they received during the Financial Year. Directors
participated in the training which included reading regulatory
updates, attending seminars or conducting training sessions and
exchanging views.

Executive Directors HITEE

Ms. CHU Lam Yiu KMEL L

Mr. XIA Liqun BAEEE

Mr. POON Chiu Kwok & R B 5 A

Mr. LAM Ka Yu MEFEE
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHTES

Mr. LEE Luk Shiu FrKESE

Ms. MA Yunyan it E# 2+

Mr. WU Chi Keung FARR AR SE A

Mr. Jonathan Jun YAN Jonathan Jun YANZL 4

Company Secretary’s Training

Mr. POON Chiu Kwok, the Executive Director, Vice President and
Company Secretary of the Company, is responsible for assisting
the Board for facilitating communications among Directors as well
as ensuring that the Board’s policy and procedures are followed
properly. The Company Secretary also provides professional advice
and services to the Board on corporate governance and other
matters. He is also responsible for organizing general meetings and
facilitating the induction and professional development of Directors.

During the Financial Year, Mr. Poon has obtained over 60 hours of
relevant professional trainings.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibility in Preparing Financial Reporting
The Board is responsible for the preparation and timely publication
of financial statements. In preparing the financial statements,
relevant statutory requirements have been complied with, applicable
accounting standards in force in Hong Kong have been adopted,
appropriate accounting policies have been applied on a consistent
basis, going concern basis has been adopted and reasonable and
prudent judgments and estimates have been made.

Auditors’ Report and Remuneration

The Company’s external auditors are PricewaterhouseCoopers. There
has been no change in the Company’s external auditors for the
preceding three years.

The external auditors have a primary responsibility for auditing and
reporting on the financial statements. The Auditors’ Report to the
Shareholders is set out on pages 81 to 88 of this annual report.

During the Financial Year, the remuneration paid/payable to the
Company’s auditors (including statutory auditors of the subsidiaries)
in relation to audit services and non-audit services provided to the
Group are as follows:
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81%88H -
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FFRBRE - O BN B ZERNT

Nature of Services REMHE Amount
k]
(RMB'000)
(ANRETFT)

Audit services ZE R
— for the audit of the Group — S EEE 4,200

— for the statutory and other audits

of the subsidiaries —FRENEE R EMER 5,456
Non-audit services FEAZ BAR 75 100

Please also refer to Note 25 to consolidated financial statement
set out on page 190 of this annual report for details of Auditors’
Remuneration.

RBEMMEFBH2ETHNAFREI0R
B M HmARMTES -
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS R SR AE R

Shares with voting rights in the Company are ordinary shares. The B AR ZEMNRNH AR AR L BAAIKD
number of issued ordinary shares as at 31 December 2019 was 20194128318 ' 2 BT L EEKRMHE R
3,107,836,876. Details of share capital of the Company are set out  %3,107,836,8768% o 2~ A 7] i% 28 £ & & A &
in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements on page 180 of F#HFEI10BE LA MR EM F18N - A

this annual report. Shareholders holding issued ordinary shares of AR AR TEL @R ZREBHT -
the Company were set out below:

Full details can
be found on
the following

page of Total number Percentage

this report of issued of the issued

FHE R Shares held share capital

HRAFH CE 3ot HE BT

Category/Name Ll et LTEH EBRTROHAR N o

Ms. CHU Lam Yiu (Nete) SRR 2 4= ) Pages 72 to 73 2,293,408,900 73.79%
EWVEVE

Public NRAT 814,427,976 26.21%

Total &&t 3,107,836,876 100.00%

Note: BT -

As defined in the Listing Rules, any person (including a holder of depositary % F i RIiE% (T ARERQATREAE L17(F
receipts) who is or group of persons (including any holder of depositary s H|1T7{30% (KA T EE - & 0F A% D B < Bl
receipts) who are together entitled to exercise or control the exercise of 30% T2 EEGH T AHENMENEMBE S L)
(or such other amount as may from time to time be specified in the Codes on  5{30% A FIFZ M A+ (BIFTELBEIZIAA) ©
Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-backs as being the level for triggering

a mandatory general offer) or more of the voting power at general meeting

of the Company.
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Procedures for shareholders to convene a special general
meeting

Pursuant to bye-law 58 of the bye-laws of the Company,
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary
of the Company, to require a special general meeting (“SGM") to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business transaction
specified in such requisition.

The requisition shall state clearly the matters required to be
considered and approved at the SGM and must be signed by the
requisitionist(s) (with contact details) and submitted to the Board in
written form to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong at least 21 days before the proposed date of the SGM.

The SGM shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such
requisition. If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date
of the deposit of the requisition proceed to convene a meeting,
the requisitionists may themselves do so in accordance with the
provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1982 of the laws
of Bermuda (as amended) (the “Companies Act”), but any meeting
so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months from
the said date.

Shareholders’ right to propose resolutions at general
meeting

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act, (i) any
number of shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth
(5%) of the total voting rights of all the shareholders having at the
date of the requisition a right to vote at the general meeting to
which the requisition relates; or (ii) not less than 100 shareholders,
may submit to the Company a written request stating the resolution
intended to be moved at AGM or a statement of not more than
1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at a particular general
meeting.

The written request/statement must be signed by all the
requisitionists and may consist of several documents in like form,
each signed by one or more of the requisitionists, and must be
deposited at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong, not less than 6 weeks before the AGM in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution or not less than one week before
the general meeting in case of any other requisition. Provided that
if an AGM s called for a date 6 weeks or less after the requisition
has been deposited, the requisition though not deposited within the
time required shall be deemed to have been properly deposited for
the purposes thereof.
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Shareholders’ right to propose a person for election as a
director

Shareholders shall have the right to propose a person for election
as a director at the Company’s general meeting. Please refer to the
detailed procedures for such right on the Company’s website www.
huabao.com.hk.

Making enquiries by Shareholders

Shareholders shall have the right to examine the relevant information
of the Company according to the Bye-laws. Shareholders should
direct their questions about their shareholdings to the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited.
Shareholders may also direct questions or requests for information
through the Company’s website at www.huabao.com.hk or by
contacting the Head of Investor Relations Department of the
Company (email: ir@huabao.com.hk).

ACCESSIBLE AND TRANSPARENT COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

In addition to the on-going Investor Relation Department’s efforts
mentioned in the next section, the Board values the importance of
communications with the Shareholders. The Company uses a range
of communications tools, such as AGM, annual report, various
notices, announcements and circulars, to ensure its Shareholders are
kept well informed of key business imperatives of the Company.

The Company has maintained a website www.huabao.com.hk which
serves as a forum for corporate communication with its Shareholders
and the general public. All corporate communications required
under the Listing Rules are displayed and can be downloaded (for
documents published in the previous 7 years) from the Company’s
website and there is established procedure to ensure timely update
in compliance with the Listing Rules.

Open Communications

The Group is committed to acting in good faith and in the best
interests of its Shareholders at all times and in all areas of its
operations. The Group actively promotes open communication and
full disclosure of all information needed to protect and maximize
transparency.

Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The shareholders’ communication policy is available for viewing on
the Company’s website at www.huabao.com.hk.
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Shareholders’ Meetings held during the Financial
Year

The general meeting provides a forum for the Board to communicate
with the Shareholders. To facilitate enforcement of the Shareholders’
rights, significant issues were dealt with under separate resolutions
at the general meeting, including the election and re-election of
individual Director. Details of general meeting(s) held during the
Financial Year are summarized as follows:

Meeting Date Venue

=k H & ih 24

AGM 3 May 2019 Boardroom 6, M/F
[ RBFRKE 201995 83H  (Above Florist),

Renaissance Hong Kong
Harbour View Hotel,

1 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
EHREBEE R
EREEBRERBIE
MEeRE 81T

ERERB|E
REMRFERNBTORAAR

BRAGAEECHBREE —[EEBERE -
BHERREERRERNG L{TEERN EZ2S
ENRBEENRZEARREASLEREE &
FEBRVEZREANES - RATRFERE
TZRERESEBIFNT

Resolutions

RER

1. To receive and consider the audited
financial statements and the reports
of the directors and of the auditors for
the nine months ended 31 December
2018;
HEHE2018F12A31HIENEA L
EZMBEHEK  EFFWME RZBAD

s

2. To declare the final and special
dividends for the nine months ended
31 December 2018;
FIREZE2018F12A31HILENEA K
MARRERIRE

3. To re-elect Directors and to authorize
the Board to fix their remunerations;
BEREF UEREFSETRSE
pd )

4. To re-appoint the auditors and to
authorize the Board to fix their
remunerations; and
BEZEA IREEESETH
M

5. To grant general mandates to buy back
shares, to issue shares and to exercise
the buy-back mandate
BT —MEENEBRG - B1TR
D RATEE R o
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MERGERS & ACQUISITIONS

No mergers and acquisitions of the Group were carried out during ¥

the Financial Year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the continuing connected transactions of the Company

can be found on pages 75 to 79 of this annual report.

ATTENDANCE RECORD

Details of attendance of the Directors (either in person or through
telephone conferences) at Board regular meetings, meetings of
Board committees and general meetings during the Financial Year

are set out below:

AEBZHEBERFHBIANRANFERETS
Z79H o
i E e 8%

P
= AR
P
ElE

EEFERAVMBEEARBLENEBER
TALFEFeEHeR EFLEE
RERAEHHERFBHINMT -

Board Audit Remuneration  Nomination
Regular ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Annual
Meeting(s) Meeting(s) Meeting(s) Meeting(s) General
T8y EnzEgE HMzEE REZEE Meeting(s)
EE EE EE ] €2 RREFXE
No. of meeting held EE S 9 2 4 1 1
Executive Directors BTEE
Ms. CHU Lam Yiu (Chairlady and CEO) IMERT(ZEEBEHTTE) W NAER NATER 111 0
Mr. XIA Liqun (Vice Chairman) BRIBEE (F2E) 9/9 NATEF 33 NATER n
Mr. POON Chiu Kwok (Company Secretary)  ERBI% 4 (A F#E) 99  NATER NATEA NAREA 7
Mr. XIONG Qing (CFO) et RALE(BEYFE) 66 NATER  NATEE  NAMER N
Mr. LAM Ka Yu HEFLE W NAMER NANER NATER 11
Independent Non-executive Directors BUkHTES
Mr. LEE Luk Shiu ks 99 22 44 N N
Ms. MA Yunyan MERLL 9/9 2 4a - NIATER 11
Dr. DING Ningning "2 TEEF LM 33 171 NANER  NANER  NATER
Mr. WU Chi Keung it ik 99 22 44 /1 11
Mr. Jonathan Jun YAN twe3 Jonathan Jun YANSE A (3 414 M NATER  NATER  NATER
Notes: B 5T -
1. Ceased to act as Executive Director and CFO with effect from 25 May 1.  F2019F5A25H BT HITEEREHEVKE
2019
2. Ceased to act as Independent Non-executive Director with effect from 2. 201943 A28 A BHE B I IEHITESE
28 March 2019
3. Appointed as Independent Non-executive Director with effect from 17 3.  R2019F5A17THEEEAB I EHTES
May 2019
MAJOR CHANGES TO THE BYE-LAWS REAMAERBE

During the Financial Year, the Company did not make any
amendments to the Company's Bye-laws.

RAMBFEAR - N2 R 2R BA R E1E
HAERMERT -
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The Company is committed to upholding an open and proactive
investor relations strategy with an aim at optimizing the knowledge
and understanding of the investment community with respect
to the Company’s corporate mission and vision, development
strategies, competitive position in the industry and operating and
financial performance, so as to enable public investors to make
informed decisions on their investments. The Company fulfils
the above-mentioned through a designated Investor Relations
Department.

The Investor Relations Department acts as an intermediary between
the Company and public investors. The Company abides by the basic
and fair disclosure guidelines to ensure that communication with
Shareholders, investors and media is conducted in a fair manner and
that no material non-public information is made available to any
individual on a selective basis.

INVESTOR RELATIONS REVIEW

During the Current Reporting Period, the Company proactively
communicated with investors by multiple channels to convey its
latest developments, performance, and strategic goals so that
investors could have a better understanding of the Group and sets
solid foundation for the Group’s activities in the capital market in
the future. Investor relations activities conducted by the Group are
as follows,

Details Frequency

Results presentation 1

Non-deal roadshow 4 (London, Toronto,
Montreal, Beijing)

Investor meeting 2 (Shenzhen)

Conference call

° Results presentation

On 13 March 2019, the Group hosted annual results
presentation. At the presentation, the management answered
investors’ questions in regard to the Group’s operating and
financial performance.

o Roadshows and investor meetings

The Group proactively attended reputable investment
banks’ roadshows and investor meetings, and leveraged
every opportunity to illustrate the Group’s performance and
development strategies to investors so that the Group could
enhance its reputation and image in the capital markets.

REEMFERE

ARBABOERF AR REHENREERER
B EEAERSRELBMELERABAN
RAZEERERER BEREE XABR
F R EEMM B RR - U EXNREE
RBEENREFELABRE - ARBEBE
RO EEBERIBFIADGERS

A EBIESBFIAAA R RITE R ZHIEER -
AATRBATREMEARA - AHERE
BE - REEREEZEBA—EAFSR
1T U 4 AR R 1 2 A 1 4 MR B A £
U EAEARES -

REZEFRIEDRE

AREH ARABEBR—RIKREEBRA
B BRREBHRIER KE - BEKAE
BEETREE URCKRERBARIFMN
W RARBARKEEAT SN EHEE
RUFNER ARARFANKEERETD
EACEUNNE

EEIEA] RE
Xeume 1

XA A(fmE - 2wm% -

SEAMER - 4B

rREEGH 2GRN
%Eé & 1

== =24
o HEBME

ARAR_E—NF=ZA+=HBHE
EEBBRHE NEME L RAREE
BEHRELEREAREINEBARRE
BRBTBERIFAME -

e BWERREESZE
NAER2ENLRERTERBNORER
kEEEEam THE - EARERRE
ERMEARRAEERERRE  RAQF
EEAMENHNBERER

57




58

Huabao International Holdings Limited F & EIF = AR A E 2019 Annual Report F#§

Investor Relations Report

Annual general meeting

It is important that the Shareholders have access to clear and
meaningful data which enables them to have a constructive
dialogue with the Company. Shareholders can raise any
questions and comments on the performance or future
business directions of the Company and on any resolutions
to be considered at the AGM. The Company’s Chairlady and
the Audit Committee’s Chairman were present in person or
through telephone/video conferences and available to answer
questions raised at the AGM.

Analyst coverage

In order to let investors better understand the Group’s
business, the Group proactively communicated with industry
analysts with an aim to gain more attention from the capital
market.

At present, the Group are covered by the analysts of research
institutions below,

° First Shanghai Securities Limited
o Tianfeng Securities Company Limited

Detailed financial statements

The Company attaches great importance to annual reports
and interim reports, put a lot of resources for these two
reports’ preparation, and uses them as one of the major
communication bridges between the Company and investors.

Through this approach, the latest information of the Group
can be transmitted to investors, aiming to convey the Group’s
comprehensive strategy, operating principles, business and
financial performance and future prospects in a detailed and
accurate manner.

E-Communication via Websites of the Company and
Professional Investor Relations Website

The Company’s website at www.huabao.com.hk contains
information such as important corporate data, biographical
details of Directors, organizational structure and press releases.

In addition, the Company also has professional investor
relations website (http://huabao2.aconnect.com.hk/sc/home.
aspx) to publish interim and annual reports, announcements
and circulars that enables the Company’s shareholders and
members of the investment community to have timely access
to the most updated information about the Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACTS

For inquiries, please contact:

Investor Relations Department
Huabao International Holdings Limited
Suite 3008

30th Floor, Central Plaza

18 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2877 8999
Fax: (852) 2511 8229
E-mail: ir@huabao.com.hk

Information for investors (as at 31 December 2019)

1. Huabao International Holdings Limited
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2. Huabao Flavours & Fragrances Company Limited (a non-wholly 2. EBEERH AR QT (AR T —BEHE
owned subsidiary of the company listed on the ChiNext of the JEBEFZXGHBIER ETMHIEZEFRAD
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Directors’ Report

The Board is pleased to present its annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019 (the “Financial Year").

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Company did not undertake any material acquisition and
disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
Group is principally engaged in the R&D, production, distribution and
sales of flavours and fragrances, tobacco raw materials, aroma raw
materials, condiment products and other segments in the PRC. The
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in Note
35 to the consolidated financial statements. Further discussion and
analysis of the operating activities of the Group during the Financial
Year, and an indication of likely future developments in the Group's
business, as required by Schedule 5 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, can be found in the sections headed “Chairlady’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” as set
out on pages 9 to 10 and pages 11 to 29 of this annual report
respectively. Such discussion forms part of this directors’ report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's financial condition, results of operations and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group's businesses. To the best
of knowledge and belief, the Directors consider that the following
are the key risks and uncertainties identified by the Group as at the
date of this report.

The risk of downstream industry control and policies on
tobacco industry

Following the promulgation and implementation of the Advertising
Law of China in 2015, the restrictions on cigarette marketing have in
turn become more rigid, and consequently the room for marketing
the tobacco market becomes narrower. On the other hand, the
tax-induced price hike policy has raised the consumption tax and
wholesale price, and subsequently escalated the consumption
cost of cigarettes, which to a certain extent have suppressed the
demand for cigarette consumption. With the tightening of tobacco
control policies by the international health organizations and local
governments, and the increased awareness of the public on health
and tobacco control, it is possible that the production and sales
volumes of cigarette will further decline in the future, which in turn
will cause the reduction of sales income and operating profit of
the tobacco-related products of the Company. In this regard, the
Company will continue to pay attention to the impacts of industry
and policy changes on the business, and will adjust our business and
development strategies in a timely manner.
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The risk of consumer behaviour changes and the impact on
the downstream industries

With the continuous progress of society and the improvement of
people’s living standards, consumers have increased their awareness
of health and environment protection. On the other hand, the
age structure and level of consumers continue to evolve. New
consumption trend as well as consumption concept and consumption
behaviour keeps changing. The demand for the Group’s downstream
tobacco, food, daily chemical industry continues to change, thus
affecting the Group's flavours and fragrances and food ingredients
related products and we may face the risk of market share shrinking.
The Company will continue to focus on and enhance the insight into
consumer behaviour, and further optimize the product structure to
meet the requirements of a new generation of consumers.

The impact of food safety policy

At present, the PRC implements an authorized management system
for the food industry. The main laws, regulations and standards
involved are the Food Safety Law of the PRC and the Announcement
on the Production License of Food Additives. At the same time,
international organizations such as the International Standards
Organization (I1SO), the Codex Alimentarius Commission (CAC),
and the International Organization of the Flavor Industry (IOFI) have
formulated and promulgated product standards and industry norms
to provide industry management systems and industry standards.

To a certain extent, the new law will increase the operating costs
of enterprises. Should there be any further changes in the above
policies and standards, it will have a direct impact on the Company’s
future development. The Company will make corresponding
adjustment, investment and improvement in product structure,
production technology and product performance and other aspects
to ensure our products and operation comply with food safety
standards.

The impact of environmental protection

With the increased awareness on the environmental protection
by the society, the government’s continuous improvement in
environmental protection may lead to more stringent environmental
protection standards and requirements in the future; if the Company
is unable to upgrade the production facilities in time to improve
the handling of wastage, this will have an adverse impact on the
Company’s production and operations.
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The risk of core technology and formula leakage

The Group, having always highly valued R&D work, owns a
state-certified enterprise technology centre and an overseas R&D
centre. Through long-term development, the Group has developed
numerous core technologies and flavours and fragrances formulas
which have intellectual property rights. The Group faces the risk
of technology leakage since there are difficulties in protecting
most of the Group’s core technologies, especially flavours and
fragrances formulas, by using patents so that the Group had to rely
on its confidentiality mechanisms for protection. The Group has
adopted extremely stringent confidentiality measures to some of the
core technologies and strictly follows those measures. The Group
implements process segregation to important production aspects
which only allows the core formulas of the various flavours and
fragrances products to be known to a few core technicians (who had
been bound by Confidentiality Agreements), thereby minimizing and
controlling the risk of core technology and formula leakage.

The risk on production and operation affected by the
COVID-19 Pneumonia epidemic

Since early 2020, the COVID-19 Pneumonia epidemic has been
spreading all over the country and until this moment, the battle
for the prevention and control of the epidemic is still in-going.
Recently, the widespread of the COVID-19 Pneumonia epidemic
is affecting many countries around the world. The World Health
Organization declared that the COVID-19 Pneumonia has become
a public emergency of international concern. In the event that
the COVID-19 Pneumonia epidemic continues, there exists an
uncertainty of its impacts on the production and operation of
the Company. The Company will continue to closely monitor the
situation of the COVID-19 Pneumonia epidemic, assess its impacts
on the Company in areas such as financial position and operating
results, and will continue to enforce strictly the prevention and
control measures to protect the safety of employees in accordance
with the national epidemic prevention and control requirements.
In the meantime, we will continue our best efforts to ensure the
smooth execution of production, operation and management work
for the stable operation of the Company, and to satisfy the needs
of our customers, in order to minimize the impacts of the COVID-19
Pneumonia epidemic on the Company.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group plays an important role in protecting our environment
and is committed to minimizing our impact on the environment
and natural resources. We educate and train our employees on
environmental issues and proper handling of hazardous substances
and require adherence to corporate guidelines on environmental
protection measures. Our plants have basically installed equipment
and procedures designed to comply with business operation.

In addition, the Group installed video conference and telephone
conference facilities for convening board meetings, committee
meetings and management meetings. It enhances the efficiency of
business travelling and convening meetings for the management so
as to reduce the energy consumption.

The Group promotes awareness towards environmental protection
to the employees. It implements green office practices such as
utilizing emails for internal and external communication, adopting
e-filing in server; minimizes documents printing and copying; and
reduces energy consumption by switching off lightings and electrical
appliances when not in use.

We have completed our Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") report which contains our ESG information in 2019 and
the requirements under the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide of the Listing Rules. The ESG report of the
Company for 2019 will be published no later than 3 months after
the publication of this annual report on the websites of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and of the Company
(www.huabao.com.hk).

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Directors recognize that employees, customers, suppliers and
business partners are the keys to the sustainable development of the
Group.

Regarding employee salary and incentive system, the Group has
formulated a set of remuneration system referenced to the market to
attract and retain key personnel and talents with appropriate skills,
experience and competence which would complement and meet the
corporate and business objectives of the Group. The Group ensures
all employees are reasonably remunerated and the remuneration
packages of employees are reviewed regularly and necessary
adjustments are made to the remuneration packages to align with
the market standards. Further details on the Group's staff are set
out in the “Human Resources and Corporate Culture Construction”
section of this report.
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The Group adheres to its core value of “client first” for years to
maximize client value, maintains good relationship with its customers
and suppliers, and has ongoing communication with the customers
and suppliers through various channels such as telephone, emails
and physical meetings to obtain their feedback and suggestions.
Besides, the Group has entered into related agreements to promote
probity and environmental protection with respective suppliers and
conducted an appraisal of its suppliers, with a view to maintaining
business relationships with suppliers and customers based on
principle of mutual benefit.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Company has complied with the requirements under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended from time to time),
the Listing Rules and the SFO relating to, among other things, the
information disclosure and corporate governance.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group's performance for the Financial Year by
business segment is set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Financial Year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 91 of this annual report.

Dividend Policy

The Group is committed to sharing its development and
achievements with Shareholders through proactive, stable and
sustainable dividend policy. The Group would strive to strike a
balance between meeting Shareholder’s expectations and managing
funds prudently. When considering the dividend policy, the Group
will comprehensively observe the macro-economic operation,
the competition pattern of the industry and the Group’s own
development strategy. Under the premise of ensuring that the
Group has sufficient working capital to implement the development
strategy, the Group will distribute surplus funds to Shareholders
and reward their support for the Group. If the Company pays
dividends, the dividend payout ratio is expected to remain at 50% or
thereabout.
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Proposed final dividend

The Board proposes to declare a final dividend of HK10.0 cents
per Share (nine months period ended 31 December 2018: final
dividend of HK8.8 cents and special dividend of HK18.9 cents) in
cash amounting to approximately HKD310.8 million (equivalents
to approximately RMB278.4 million) (nine months period ended 31
December 2018: approximately RMB756.8 million in aggregate)
for the Financial Year, which are expected to be paid on or about
5 June 2020 to Shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on 25 May 2020. The payment of the
final dividend is subject to Shareholders’ approval at the AGM which
is scheduled to be held on 18 May 2020.

The payout ratio declared by the Board for the Financial Year
was 47.3%. The Board took into account the macro-economic
indicators and the Company’s actual performance, and intends to
deploy funds to repay bank loan in part to optimize the Company’s
capital structure and reduce financing cost to create more value for
Shareholders.

CLOSE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR AGM

In order to determine the entitlement of Shareholders to attend and
vote at the AGM of the Company which is scheduled to be held
on 18 May 2020, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from 13 May 2020 to 18 May 2020, both days inclusive,
during which no transfer of shares will be effected. All properly
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level
54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later
than 4:30 p.m. on 12 May 2020. Shareholders whose names are
recorded in the register of members of the Company on 18 May
2020 are entitled to attend and vote at the 2020 AGM.

CLOSE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR PAYMENT
OF FINAL DIVIDEND

In order to determine Shareholders who qualify for the proposed
final dividend, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from 22 May 2020 to 25 May 2020, both days inclusive,
during which no transfer of shares will be effected. All properly
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level
54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not
later than 4:30 p.m. on 21 May 2020. Shareholders whose names
are recorded in the register of members of the Company on 25
May 2020 are entitled to receive the final dividend in cash for the
Financial Year.
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RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the Financial Year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 93 to 94 and in Note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the distributable reserves of the
Company amounted to RMB3,683,013,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB2,745,620,000).

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
Financial Year amounted to approximately RMB847,000 (nine
months ended 31 December 2018: RMB415,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set
out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 221 to 222.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to a share option scheme (the “2016 Share Option
Scheme”) adopted on 9 August 2016 (“Adoption Date”), the 2016
Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
ten years commencing on the Adoption Date. The following is a
summary of the 2016 Share Option Scheme:
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Purpose

The 2016 Share Option Scheme aims at encouraging the
participants to make contributions to and promote benefits
of the Group and developing and maintaining business
relationships with participants for the benefit of the Group.

Participants

The Directors may, in accordance with the provisions of
the 2016 Share Option Scheme and the Listing Rules, invite
person(s) who or which is/are eligible to participate as
grantee(s) and receive options under the 2016 Share Option
Scheme, to take up share options to subscribe for Shares.

Maximum number of shares available for subscription

The total number of share options to be granted under the
2016 Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued
Shares of the Company as at 9 August 2016. Upon approval
by the Shareholders, the Company may renew the Scheme
Mandate Limit, provided that each renewal shall not exceed
10% of the issued Shares as at the date of approval by the
Shareholders, and a circular regarding the proposed renewal
of the Scheme Mandate Limit has been dispatched to the
Shareholders in a manner complying with, and containing
the matters specified in, the relevant provisions of Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules. The aggregate maximum number of
Shares which may be issued upon exercise of share options
granted under the 2016 Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme(s) of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the total number of Shares in issue from time
to time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant (including
both exercised and outstanding options under the 2016 Share
Option Scheme) in any 12-month period must not exceed
1% of the issued share capital of the Company. Any excess
over 1% shall be subject to the approval of the Shareholders
at general meeting with such participant and his/her close
associates abstaining from voting and the Company shall issue
a circular pursuant to relevant provisions of Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules.
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(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Time of acceptance and exercise of a share option

The grantee may accept the offer of the share option within
30 business days from the date of the offer letter issued by
the Company. The grantee shall pay HKD1 as consideration
for accepting the offer of the share option granted. The
grantee may subscribe for Shares during such period as may be
determined by the Board (the said period shall not in whatever
case be later than the last day of the 10-year period after the
day on which the offer relating to the option is duly approved
by the Board in accordance with the 2016 Share Option
Scheme (subject to early termination).

Minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

Unless the Directors determine otherwise and state in the offer
of the grant of option to the grantee, the 2016 Share Option
Scheme does not provide for any minimum period for which
share options must be held before it can be exercised.

Basis for determining the exercise price

The exercise price of share option granted pursuant to the
2016 Share Option Scheme shall be determined by the Board
and shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheet on the date of offer, which must be a business
day; (ii) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of the offer;
and (iii) the nominal value of the Shares.

The life of the 2016 Share Option Scheme

The 2016 Share Option Scheme will remain in force for ten
years starting from 9 August 2016 (can be terminated before
expiration).

As at 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this report, the
share options granted under the 2016 Share Option Scheme,
which were valid and outstanding amounted to 11,000,000.

EXERE

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

BARITEBRE 2GR
EREARARARAELNROHEE B
EEB0EZXANEMEREZELN - M
BEMLRBREZOR B EE
TTHRE - ARARREZSEEZH
B AR (% HIMHE &R R ER
E=ZgRE2016BERTSIEALER
MERRENERRTFHEZRE —
B E R (AT ATAR 1)) o

BREAJTOEANEASAZRENE

BRIBEEZTATEIREARARLZ
BREZAORERA - SRI2016H K ERT
W B IGSUOR EBRER] TITRAIAR
BZ&REHME -

BETEENEE

RAR201658 B M 5T 8 AT LI /0 BB A # -
HIEEAREFTSETE  BAEER
THERPZEEE  (EREZLA
HWAREER) BEMIAE B ®RE
RAH 2B THE - (NVEEZRELN B
HahEZEXBEETEBXMEARE
RATFIWTHERFHE R mEE -

2016 IR T B B MU
2016BE AGAE 5T 81 7R2016F8 HOH 5T+
FRABR(ATERATLRLE) o

MR2019F12A31BREARKEH -
BIE20160E REFT SR B 2 BRED
REBRABEITEOBRESRE &K
11,000,0000% °

69



70 Huabao International Holdings Limited Z8 BEIEUZAYAR AR 2019 Annual Report 3

Directors’ Report EEERE

Details of share options granted, exercised, cancelled and lapsed AXRBIKEER » IRIE2016EE RS 2H#HEFZ -
during the Financial Year under the 2016 Share Option Scheme are  1T{F ~ T R KB BEAREL SO T -
set out as follows:

Number of Share Options
BREHAE
Cancelled/
Balance as at Granted Exercised lapsed during  Balance as at
Grant Exercise Exercisable 1January  duringthe  duringthe the Financial 31 December
Grantee Date Price  Period 2019 Financial Year Financial Year Year 2019
R2019%  AHBEE AMBEE FHBFER 20198
AR RHAH TEE TTEEH 1A18 468 akigsd AT E#/%% 12ANBEH
HKD
BE
Other Participants 6 May 2019 3.708  5/11/2019- - 5,500,000 - - 5,500,000
EtoRE 2019568 30/6/2020
(Both days
inclusive)
(BRMHA
BEER)
6 May 2019 3,708 5/5/2020- - 5,500,000 - - 5,500,000
201955H6H 30/6/2020
(Both days
inclusive)
(BRMH
BEER)
Total - 11,000,000 - - 11,000,000
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Financial Year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Ms. CHU Lam Yiu (Chairlady and CEO)

Mr. XIA Liqun (Vice Chairman)

Mr. POON Chiu Kwok (Company Secretary)
Mr. XIONG Qing (CFQO) Mot

Mr. LAM Ka Yu

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. LEE Luk Shiu

Ms. MA Yunyan

Dr. DING Ningning ote2
Mr. WU Chi Keung

Mr. Jonathan Jun YAN (ote3)

Notes:

1. Ceased to act as Executive Director and CFO with effect from 25 May
2019

2. Ceased to act as Independent Non-executive Director with effect from
28 March 2019

3. Appointed as Independent Non-executive Director with effect from 17
May 2019

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) and (2) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Messrs. POON Chiu Kwok, LAM Ka Yu and Ms. MA Yunyan shall
retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and, all of them
being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election. In accordance
with Bye-law 86(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Jonathan Jun
YAN shall retire from office at the forthcoming AGM and, being
eligible, has offered himself for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than disclosed in Note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company, its ultimate holding company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the Financial
Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

None of the Directors and their respective close associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) is considered to have an interest in any
business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of directors and senior management as at 31
December 2019 are set out on pages 30 to 36 of this annual report.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Particulars of the remuneration of the directors and the five highest
paid individuals during the Financial Year are set out in Note 37 and
Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:
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EXERE

Long position in ordinary shares of the Company RKANFIZzEBARETE
Percentage
Number of of the issued
issued Shares held share capital
Name of Director(s) Capacity BEE®IT e &1T
o= &6 RO#E RAEB DK
CHU Lam Yiu Held through controlled corporations Mot 2,293,408,900 73.79%

RANEE BRI G A AEAE W

Note: 2,293,408,900 ordinary shares of the Company were held by
Mogul Enterprises Limited, Resourceful Link International Limited,
Power Nation International Limited, Jumbo Elite Limited, Raise Sino
Investments Limited and Real Elite Investments Limited, respectively.
Ms. CHU Lam Yiu is the sole beneficial owner of the aforesaid six
companies.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Company is
not aware of any of the Directors or their respective associates had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or associated
companies as defined in the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than disclosed in Note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the Financial Year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Financial Year and up to the date
of this report.

DIRECTORS’ PERMITTED INDEMNITIES

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company and subject to the relevant
provisions therein, every Director shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which he/she may incur in or sustain by the execution of his/her duty
as a director of the Company or otherwise in relation thereto. The
Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for the Directors
and senior management of the Company in respect of legal action
against them in the course of execution of their duties in good faith.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
above and Note 19 to the financial statements, no equity-linked
agreement was entered into by the Company during the Financial
Year.

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2019, other than the interests disclosed in the
section headed “Directors’ interests in shares, underlying shares and
debentures”, the Company is not aware of any other person who
held interests or short positions in 5% or more of the issued share
capital of the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING
RULES

On 17 August 2018, the Company entered into a facility agreement
with a PRC bank (the “Lender”) for a loan of approximately
RMB2,888 million for a term of 5 years (“Loan Facility”).

Pursuant to Rule 13.21 of the Listing Rules, so long as the facility
agreement is still in full force, the obligation to disclose exists. As
one of the precedent conditions of the facility agreement, Ms. CHU
Lam Yiu, the ultimate beneficial controlling shareholder of the
Company, shall, directly or indirectly, maintain her controlling stake
in the Company throughout the term of the Loan Facility. Breach of
such undertaking will constitute an event of default which entitles
the Lender to, among other things, demand immediate payment
and/or repayment of all amount outstanding under the Loan Facility
from the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Financial Year, the percentage of revenue from sales of
goods or rendering services attributable to the Group'’s five largest
customers combined accounted for approximately 30.50% and the
largest customer contributed approximately 10.86% to the revenue
from sales of goods or rendering services of the Group (Yunnan
Tobacco Materials (Group) Company Limited being the largest
customer), and the percentage of purchases attributable to the
Group'’s five largest suppliers combined accounted for approximately
12.55% and the largest supplier contributed approximately 3.19%
to the purchases of the Group.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their close associates
or any Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group’s continuing connected transactions are primarily
classified based on (I) the continuing connected transactions with
each of Hongta Tobacco Group and Guangdong Tobacco Company,
which are further classified according to the independent operation
of the Group’s business segments, i.e. Huabao Flavours is principally
engaged in the flavours and fragrances business and the Remaining
Group (including Guangdong Jinye Group) is principally engaged
in business segments of tobacco raw materials (including RTL and
new materials products applicable to tobacco industry), aroma raw
materials, condiment products and other segments; and (Il) the
continuing connected transactions between the Group and Weizhijia
Group.

In addition, to align with the change of the financial year end date
of the Company from 31 March to 31 December, the Company had
revised the annual caps of certain continuing connected transactions
with each of Hongta Tobacco Group and Guangdong Tobacco
Company, such that the revised annual caps, to the extent possible,
will cover the reporting period ending 31 December, which being
the same financial year end date of the Company. Please refer to
the announcement dated 15 January 2019 (the “Announcement”)
published by the Company for details.

() Transactions with each of Hongta Tobacco Group and
Guangdong Tobacco Company

Transactions with Hongta Tobacco Group

The Company, through its subsidiaries, indirectly owns 60%
equity interest in Yunnan Tianhong. The remaining 40% equity
interest in Yunnan Tianhong is held by Yunnan Hehe. Hongta
Tobacco owns 75% equity interest in Yunnan Hehe. By virtue
of such 40% interest in Yunnan Tianhong, Hongta Tobacco
Group are regarded as connected persons at the subsidiary
level of the Company under the Listing Rules. Transactions
between each of Huabao Flavours Company and Guangdong
Jinye Group with Hongta Tobacco Group constitute connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the Hongta HB Flavours Framework Agreement
entered into between Huabao Flavours and Yunnan Hehe on
26 May 2017 in relation to the provision of tobacco flavours
products and related services by Huabao Flavours Company to
Hongta Tobacco Group, the term of the Hongta HB Flavours
Framework Agreement shall be for a term of 3 years from 1
April 2017 to 31 March 2020 (both days inclusive).
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Pursuant to the Hongta JY Framework Agreement entered
into between Guangdong Jinye and Yunnan Hehe on 26 May
2017 in relation to the provision of RTL, stem powder, auxiliary
materials and related services by Guangdong Jinye Group
(except for Huabao Flavours Company) to Hongta Tobacco
Group, the term of the Hongta JY Framework Agreement shall
be for a term of 3 years from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2020
(both days inclusive).

Transactions with Guangdong Tobacco Company

Huabao Flavours is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, while Guangdong Jinye is an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Guangdong
Jinke is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of Guangdong Jinye.
Guangdong Tobacco holds more than 10% equity interest
in Guangdong Jinke. Guangdong Tobacco Company are
regarded as connected persons at the subsidiary level of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Transactions between each
of Huabao Flavours Company and Guangdong Jinye Group
with Guangdong Tobacco Company constitute connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the HB Flavours Framework Agreement entered
into between Huabao Flavours and Guangdong Tobacco on
1 March 2017 in relation to the provision of tobacco flavours
products and related services by Huabao Flavours Company to
Guangdong Tobacco Company, the term of the HB Flavours
Framework Agreement was for a term of 3 years from 1
January 2017 to 31 December 2019 (both days inclusive).

Pursuant to the JY Framework Agreement entered into
between Guangdong Jinye and Guangdong Tobacco on 1
March 2017 in relation to the provision of RTL products and
related services by Guangdong Jinye Group (except for Huabao
Flavours Company) to Guangdong Tobacco Company, the
term of the JY Framework Agreement was for a term of 3
years from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019 (both days
inclusive).

Pursuant to the JK Framework Agreement entered into
between Guangdong Jinke and Guangdong Tobacco on 1
March 2017 in relation to the provision of auxiliary materials
and related services by Guangdong Jinye Group (except for
Huabao Flavours Company) to Guangdong Tobacco Company,
the term of the JK Framework Agreement was for a term of 3
years from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019 (both days
inclusive).
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MASHEE  BAREESERER

As disclosed in the Announcement, the annual caps for the

continuing connected transactions with Hongta Tobacco FEANTSEAIERGZE NETHNEES
Group and Guangdong Tobacco Company under the relevant ESSNFE LREEEIET -

framework agreements were revised as follows:

Aggregate Transaction Amount

RAXZEH
for the
for the three months
nine months period from
period from for the 1 January
1 April 2018 to financial 2020 to
31 December year ending 31 March
2018 31 December 2020
(RMB) 2019 (RMB)
20185 (RMB) H20205F
4R1BEZE BZE 1B81B&ZE
20184 2019F 2020F
12A31H 12A31H 3A31H
LEAE A E I REFE =18 B 8 &
(ARM) (AR#) (AR®)
(A) Transactions with Hongta Tobacco Group
BATAEEREBHIX S
Hongta HB Flavours Framework Agreement 13,600,000 26,350,000 6,600,000
B EBRMIER HE
Hongta JY Framework Agreement 80,100,000 155,000,000 40,000,000
A EER R
(B) Transaction with Guangdong Tobacco
Company
HERFPELAHXS
HB Flavours Framework Agreement 85,400,000 120,000,000 N/A
EERNIERDZ T iE A
JY Framework Agreement 46,450,000 110,000,000 N/A
SEERBZ i A
JK Framework Agreement 6,270,000 34,000,000 N/A
© RHEZR 172 N iE A
For the Financial Year, the actual transaction amount under @i$ﬁ7fﬁz¢ﬁ EEIRDIELRW
the Hongta HB Flavours Framework Agreement, the Hongta AT S EEAE 2R Tg,’J CEERNG ﬂ:
JY Framework Agreement, the HB Flavours Framework ng- S EELSEY &iﬁ”[ B 1% 3%
Agreement, the JY Framework Agreement and the JK BT HEED EIJ;,%)\EVQ%18,469,000

Framework Agreement was RMB18,469,000, RMB56,129,000,
RMB82,464,000, RMB57,634,000 and RMB18,603,000,
respectively.

7T AR®56,129,000T * A R
82,464,0007T + A R #57,634,00070 &
AR #18,603,0007T °
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() Transactions with Weizhijia Group

Entrusted Management Agreement

On 27 November 2018, Guangdong Jiahao and Weizhijia
entered into an entrusted management agreement (“Entrusted
Management Agreement”) in relation to the provision of
consultancy and management services by members of Weizhijia
to Guangdong Jiahao for a term of three years commencing
on 1 January 2019 and expiring on 31 December 2021 (both
days inclusive).

Weizhijia is ultimately controlled by Madam Chu Lam Yiu, the
Chairlady and CEO of the Company, and therefore Weizhijia
is an associate of a connected person under the Listing Rules.
Guangdong Jiahao is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company. Transactions between the Guangdong Jiahao
and members of Weizhijia under the Entrusted Management
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of
the Company under the Listing Rules.

Under the Entrusted Management Agreement, members of
Weizhijia will provide consultancy and management services
to Guangdong Jiahao to enhance its brand awareness in the
market and assist Guangdong Jiahao to expand its market
share and gradually reach sales targets. The annual caps for
the service fees (inclusive of the sales network construction
fee and the performance fee) for the year ended 31 December
2019, and the year ending 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2021 were RMB10,500,000, RMB13,050,000 and
RMB16,350,000, respectively.

For the Financial Year, the actual service fee paid under the
Entrusted Management Agreement was R\MB4,975,000.

Sales Framework Agreement

On 14 March 2019, Guangdong Jiahao entered into a sales
framework agreement (“Sales Framework Agreement”) with
Weizhijia, pursuant to which Guangdong Jiahao shall sell and
members of Weizhijia shall purchase all products relating to
catering condiments of Jiahao (“Jiahao Products”) and related
services so as to further increase the sales of Jiahao Products
and hence bring more revenue to Guangdong Jiahao.

The Sales Framework Agreement shall be for a term of 36
months from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2021 (both days
inclusive). Transactions between the Guangdong Jiahao and
members of Weizhijia under the Sales Framework Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company
under the Listing Rules
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The revised annual cap (details of which are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 30 September 2019) under
the Sales Framework Agreement was set at not more than
RMB80,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019,
RMB 130,000,000 for the year ending 31 December 2020 and
RMB150,000,000 for the year ending 31 December 2021,
respectively.

For the Financial Year, the actual transaction amount under
the Sales Framework Agreement was RMB64,288,000.

Annual review of continuing connected transactions

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been reviewed
by the INEDs of the Company. The INEDs confirmed that the
aforesaid continuing connected transactions had been entered into:

(i)  in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company has engaged the independent auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers to report on the Group’s abovementioned
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 'Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information’ and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules’ issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. PricewaterhouseCoopers have issued their unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions for the Financial
Year in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy
of the auditors’ letter has been provided to the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange by the Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions entered into
by the Group during the Financial Year are set out in Note 34 to
the consolidated financial statements. None of these related party
transactions constitutes a disclosable connected transaction as
defined under the Listing Rules, except for the transactions described
in this paragraph headed “Continuing Connected Transactions”,
in respect of which the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have been complied.

EXERE

RIBEERBZEIEB NEBEEE2019F12
A318 1k - 2020512 A831H 1t &2021
F1I2A3MBEMNKEETFE LR (FI15
B AN A 201998300 T 2 &
NE) DRI AT B AR 80,000,000
7T AR #130,000,0007T & A R
150,000,0007T °

BHEAVBFE HEEEBETHE
BT 5 eEEHEANRT64,288,0007T °

RERERZNFEER
FRFEEEXHE AR RRNE L IFBRIT

EEER - BUFATESHR LAKER
By

(i) BAKREN-—REBEEER:
(i) R —BREBFIRRKEEGRRET
&

(i) BRREBEBEIZINMELETT  HERQF
A1 WANAARARBERNERHME -

REZEEAMASHMNBLEETRBE
H30005% [ £ 1 15 & K B RBEH AN
EETFI L2 EEHHATION[FE LT
RARENFHERER HHZEAED K]
RABZ B ZHENE B KBEMER
PIEXBHAEE LRBEAMRFE 25
BB ZEL®RE  YEREBELTHRAE
TAASEIRMEBHHERBER N B4 H
BEHBRNER - AR FE 8= 88Dk 4 &
AR T EBB AT -

BEBALXS

AEBERAFRFRITLZERBABA LR
HABERNGEE M RERM E34 - R [HF
BRERXS SIS (MEEXHE
B EHRABI4AZTNRERTE) I EZ:?
AT SMEBKATRENRE
(EER EWHRAD -

79




80

Huabao International Holdings Limited Z8 BEIEUZAYAR AR 2019 Annual Report 3

Directors’ Report

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Financial Year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Group’s corporate governance practices are set out in
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 37 to 56 of this annual
report.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

As at 31 December 2019, none of the members of the Group was
involved in any material litigation or arbitration and no material
litigation or claim was pending or threatened or made against any
member of the Group.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that was publicly available and to the best
belief and knowledge of the Directors, the Company had maintained
the prescribed public float throughout the Financial Year and up to
the date of this report as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year have
been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming
AGM of the Company.

By Order of the Board
CHU Lam Yiu
Chairlady and CEO

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020

BE HERBEARAZ LTRSS

RABBRFEAR - NQ R SEEANB ARG
BEEE LEXBEOAQRREFMLTES -

TEER
AEBTEERG R ZHFBINANFREI7
BEES6AZTEERNSE -

EEREA

R2019F12831H  REBKE R AL E S
MEMEKRFARMEEE  MEEETM
FARNERFRHRE -

PRFRE

REBEAIELARER ZERIARBES MM
P MAMBFERFARBEARAREH
ARPHER EMRAAREZ ARFRE ©

BB ED
AMREREZHFAVBEHRRE LA E TR K
BRMELAES  ZRBESERSER -
HRNTEERLBRN AR R ERERRBFK
g LEBEE -

A E
KK
TEFREEHTE

PPN
= Ap

EF78 - 20203 H27H



Huabao International Holdings Limited Z=8 BIEUZEA AR AR 2019 Annual Report 3 81

Independent Auditor’s Report

e
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HUABAO INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Huabao International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 89 to 220, which comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019;

o the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

BB RE

RRNER

BPEREBEEESAMAERTN(ERE
FHERDEITER - RIAEZFEA T AER
BEECEARSRHE A ETHEE M BREK
AENETHOFEE—PBA -

BAHEE BRAMESHETEIEETER
HEEWRBMNESERIREER -

b Avaka

REFEEGHMASRMN(ERSTAE
BTAD(ATEMEISTAL - BB &
SE YERTTRFNEMBEREREEL -

FARESEE

FREFFHRERBEUAMANEXHE  RA
HAHGAMBRRNBITRDERNEE °
ELFRRERMNBFEREAVBTRERLK
HABRBETREN HMATSHELS
HIRHEBHER -



Huabao International Holdings Limited Z=8 BIEUZEA AR AR 2019 Annual Report 3 83

Independent Auditor’s Report B 2B EN RS

BERESEMERTTIANERETS
B At

Impairment of goodwill is identified as a key audit matter identified
in our audit, and is summarised as follows:

How our audit addressed RAEMETONMFER
Key Audit Matter the Key Audit Matter BREEEE BREETEE
Impairment of goodwill Our procedures in relation to EBERE KPS EEEEER

management’s impairment assessment B ETHRREFE
Refer to Note 5 (Critical accounting | of goodwill included: MEEMBERRWNT | 35

estimates and judgements)
and Note 9 (Intangible assets)
to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 December
2019, the Group had material
goodwill balance amounting to
RMB5,867,509,000 arose from
acquisitions in previous years,
which was allocated to the
Group’s cash-generating units
("CGUs"). No impairment was
recognised in current period.

has been determined based on
value-in-use calculation.

- We used our in-house experts
to assist us in evaluating
the appropriateness of
value-in-use calculation
methodology adopted
by management.

- We tested the mathematical
accuracy of the underlying

value-in-use calculation.

- We also evaluated the

business in the current
year.
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Key Audit Matter

Management concluded that,
based on their assessment, no
additional impairment loss was
considered necessary for the
goodwill in current year.

We focused on this balance
because the determination of
whether or not an impairment
charge was necessary involved
significant judgements about
the future results of the business.
In particular, we focused on the
estimated value-in-use calculations
of CGUs of reconstituted
tobacco leaves (amounting to
RMB942,633,000) for which
there are limited headroom
as a result of the industry
environment continuing to
be difficult. Management’s
impairment assessment
involves significant estimation,
and budgeted gross margin,
estimated pre-tax discount
rate and forecast and terminal
growth rates are considered to
be the key assumptions.

How our audit addressed
the Key Audit Matter

- We discussed with management
and evaluated the underlying
key assumptions of budgeted
gross margin and forecast
and terminal growth
rates used in the cash
flow forecast taking
into account market
developments.

- We evaluated and recalculated
the pre-tax discount rate
used in the calculation
by comparing with the
industry or market data.

As a result of performing our work,
we found the management’s
estimates and judgements used
in the impairment assessment
to be supported by the available
evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Lam Sung Wan.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position #R& B BARR R

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (RS EREPEN ME2EHUARETLIIR)
As at 31 December
M128318
Note 2019 2018
B 5 20194 20184
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment MnEE - R R 7 1,391,118 1,244,569
Right-of-use assets EREEE 8 260,560 -
Land use rights + i AR 8 = 187,310
Intangible assets mEE 9 6,807,495 6,899,997
Investments in associates REENT 2/ E 10 385,881 396,685
Investment in a jointly controlled entity NHEREHEREZKE 11 3,313 7,085
Financial assets at fair value through LWAanEEsERH
other comprehensive income FE)EF AH MRS
Wz emEE 12 161,905 159,197
Financial assets at fair value through WAREBEFEEEE
profit or loss AR eRmEE 16 58,304 -
Deferred income tax assets EEFTSIREE 13 135,257 111,593
Other non-current assets HEiIERBEE 15,606 15,874
9,219,439 9,022,310
Current assets REBEE
Inventories rE 14 931,385 896,243
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk E A FE W FRIR 15 1,322,626 1,540,188
Financial assets at fair value through LWAREBEEFEEELZSE
profit or loss TABRzEREE 16 768,111 574,298
Short-term time deposits NHETHER 17 2,334,294 1,606,790
Cash and cash equivalents BeELBEEEY 17 3,387,780 5,535,601
8,744,196 10,153,120
Total assets BEE 17,963,635 19,175,430
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves attributable to EARERIFEA
the Company’s equity holders BiERAR#EE
Share capital R& ZX 18 318,636 318,647
Reserves i 20 2,540,529 2,571,885
Retained earnings IREB & F| 21 8,969,048 8,863,604
11,828,213 11,754,136
Non-controlling interests IS 1,771,260 1,991,282
Total equity g 13,599,473 13,745,418
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position #R& B BARR R

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (RS EREPEN ME2EHUARETLIIR)

As at 31 December

M128318
Note 2019 2018
B 5 20194 20184
LIABILITIES a8&
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Borrowings B 22 2,310,474 2,756,438
Lease liabilities HEaE 8 60,135 -
Deferred income tax liabilities BRIEMSHEE 13 205,736 254,520
Trade and other payables B 5 NEMENFIE 23 800 800
2,577,145 3,011,758
Current liabilities REBEE
Borrowings B 22 688,302 933,701
Lease liabilities HEaE 8 22,448 -
Trade and other payables B 5 & E e RIE 23 666,864 996,866
Current income tax liabilities BHIFTSRAasE 236,514 264,598
Contract liabilities ARAEaE 6 172,889 223,089
1,787,017 2,418,254
Total liabilities HMmeE 4,364,162 5,430,012
Total equity and liabilities BEZREE 17,963,635 19,175,430
The above consolidated statement of financial position should be — _EilL&R& BT F5R 50 2% & B2 4E J& B 5 — OF GBI o

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The financial statements on pages 89 to 220 were approved by the ~S889% 2208 #) Bf % ik 2 7202063 A27H
Board of Directors on 27 March 2020 and were signed on its behalf. EZEEZRHELET o

Ms. CHU Lam Yiu Mr. XIA Liqun
KMEL L ERNEEE
Chairlady Director

T EF
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Consolidated Income Statement melamk
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (RS EREPEN ME2EHUARETLIIR)
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
Note 2019 2018
EZ20195% BZE20185F
12A31H 12H31H
i3 LEE EN@EA
Continuing operations: BEREEK:
Revenue LXRE 6 4,241,040 3,058,707
Cost of goods sold SHE A 25 (1,495,630) (1,108,902)
Gross profit EF 2,745,410 1,949,805
Other income and other gains — net H AU R E At U 25 — 5 58 24 225,509 122,323
Selling and marketing expenses 55 R s E R X 25 (358,305) (208,417)
Administrative expenses 1THER 25 (867,398) (574,345)
Net impairment losses on financial assets CREERERKLFHE 4.1(b) (16,405) (1,616)
Operating profit EERR 1,728,811 1,287,750
Finance income IR L ON 176,956 154,344
Finance costs AE KA (188,984) (76,913)
Finance (costs)/income — net (REKAK) /BBEWA—FE 27 (12,028) 77,431
Share of results of associates and a jointly FEG B & A A R 2L [A
controlled entity TR s 10,11 29,034 9,776
Profit before income tax MRB AT B R 1,745,817 1,374,957
Income tax expense Fiisi 28 (372,076) (320,805)
Profit from continuing operations for BELEERKZ
the year/period rEE HEER 1,373,741 1,054,152
Profit from discontinued operation for RIPREEK Y
the year/period AEE/HE AT - 136,839
Profit for the year/period rEE/HEBEF 1,373,741 1,190,991
Attributable to: e
Equity holders of the Company RARERFEA 1,112,004 1,017,959
Non-controlling interests FEE SR S 261,737 173,032
1,373,741 1,190,991
Earnings per share for profit from KEE /HEARQ RS
continuing operations and discontinued B ABEFELERAIL
operation attributable to the Company’'s RK&EEKNSREF RMB cents RMB cents
equity holders for the year/period AR S ARES
Basic and diluted: EALRESE
Continuing operations FEICE R 29 35.78 27.78
Discontinued operation BIEEEETE 29 = 4.97
35.78 32.75

The above consolidated income statement should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

bl AR A W E 5K P B PR MY R — GBI RE

o
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Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income

mEZHEBER

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (RS EREPEN ME2EHUARETLIIR)
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
B Z2019%F HZE2018F
12A31H 12A31H
LFE IENEA
Profit for the year/period FE/HEERN 1,373,741 1,190,991
Other comprehensive income: Ht 2 mEUE :
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss ] & # H 4 F 187 8B 5
Fair value changes of equity investments LWAREBEFEBEEZEEHA
at fair value through other comprehensive HipirAa WSz e REEZ
income, net of tax BRIREAARBEED (17,531) 26,408
Currency translation differences of the Company AR RN HIEEINER 2
and its non-foreign operations BEREERS (13,421) -
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss A EF D EE IRz A H A
Currency translation differences of foreign BINEG BRI EERE
operations (466) 103,365
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal of HEWBAREERZ
a subsidiary SN (7% = 29,519
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for NEE HEBRBEEEM
the year/period, net of tax 2E(FE) WEF (31,418) 159,292
Total comprehensive income for AEE /HERBREEZE
the year/period, net of tax &t k] 1,342,323 1,350,283
Total comprehensive income attributable to:  F&E{5 2 [ UL 5 44 58 :
Equity holders of the Company KABIEZEA A 1,081,266 1,171,899
Non-controlling interests 4 I 1 R S 261,057 178,384
1,342,323 1,350,283
Total comprehensive income attributableto ZAAQTFERIEEAEEEZE
equity holders of the Company arises from: Wz ZEXRE :
Continuing operations SE BT 1,081,266 1,017,430
Discontinued operation BRI EET = 154,469
1,081,266 1,171,899
The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should  Fifisr & 2 mNES R EEBEM T — G HE -

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity #EEZEEX

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (RS EREPEN ME2EHUARETLIIR)

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
RRABERENEE

Non-
Share Retained controlling Total
Note capital Reserves earnings Total interests equity
iR i e RERT B FEslER s
Balance at 1 April 2018 R2018E451R 318,647 2,343,573 8,601,342 | 11,263,562 1854775 13,118,337
Fair value changes on financial assets UAREEBEREZEHA
at fair value through other e lEzeREEL
comprehensive income, net of tax BRENLLERY 2 - 26,408 - 26,408 - 26,408
Currency translation differences BEAEEE - 98,013 - 98,013 5352 103,365
Release of exchange reserve upon NEMBRARDRERINERE
disposal of a subsidiary - 29,519 - 29,519 - 29,519
Profit for the period TEFEN - - 1017959 | 1017959 173032 1,190991
Total comprehensive income for the nine BE18E12AMALAERN
months ended 31 December 2018 PEUELE - 153940 1,017,959 | 1,171,899 178384 1,350,283
Transactions with owners in their RALNAREANRS
capacity as owners;
Appropriations from net profit EPE 20,21 - 74372 (74372) - - -
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests IERGIEEREANRE - - - - (39,623) (39,623)
Acquisition of equity interest in Hunan Jishou WEBETERRRNERLA
Minzu Materials Co., Lt ("Hunan Jishou”) R i - - - - 1,750 1,750
Disposal of a subsidiary HENRBAT - - - - (5,804) (5,804)
Capital injection from non-controlling interests FEH RS T AR EAR - - - - 1,800 1,800
Repurchase of shares BERA 18 - - (352) (352) - (352)
Final dividends for the year ended BIEREZ018F3A318
31 March 2018 paid to shareholders R 7 BR RS 2 - - (405,353) | (405,353) - (405,353)
Interim dividends for the six months ended EREZ201859A308
30 September 2018 payable to shareholders A EAZRERE 30 - - (275620) | (275,620 - (275600
Total transactions with owners HEAARGAE - 74372 (755,697) | (681,325) (@1877)  (723,202)
Balance at 31 December 2018 R2018E12A318 318 647 2,571,885 8,803,604 | 11,754,136 1,991,282 13,745,418




94 Huabao International Holdings Limited Z8 BEIEUZAYAR AR 2019 Annual Report 3

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity #EEZEEX
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (RS EREPEN ME2EHUARETLIIR)

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARNABEEEAEL
Non-

Share Retained controlling Total

Note capital Reserves earnings Total interests equity

b k& i REEA A FEHMER s

Balance at 31 December 2018 R2018E12A31R 318,647 2,571,885 8,863,604 | 11,754,136 1991282  13,745418

Change in accounting policy EHBRE 3 = 5 (2,02 (2,02) (545) (2,567)

Restated total equity at 1 January 2019 R019E1 AR BEY 2 B 318,647 2,571,885 8861582 | 11,752,114 1,990,737 13,742,851
Fair value changes on financial assets at fair WARBESEREZEHA

value through other comprehensive income, EthAlas eREEL

net of tax BE 5%97 MEED 2 - (115 - (17,531) - (17,531)
Currency translation differences EHBhEEE - (13,207) - (13,207) (680) (13,887)
Profit for the year KEERA - - 1112004 | 1,112,004 261731 137374
Total comprehensive income for the year BEWENANALEEN

ended 31 December 2019 rENELE - (30,738) 1,112,004 1,081,266 261,057 1,342,323
Transactions with owners in their capacity ~ EARFEEANRS

as owners:

Appropriations from net profi Ry 2021 = 700 (700) - = -
Dividends payable to non-controling interests mEEHMERERORE - - - - (1,218) (1,218)
Dividends paid to non-controling interests BRI REE A ORE - - - - (419367)  (479,36)
Cancelation of repurchased shares FECEEZRG 18,20 (11) 1" - - - -
Share-based payments- value of consultancy senvice RIABEBH T -BERKEE 20 - 907 - 907 - 907
Disposal of equity interest in Better World HELEREEMHERAT

Naturals Co., Ltd (*Better World") to ([LBEE]) zER TIHEHE

non-controlling interests BHEEEA 20 = 1,748 = 1,748 (1,748) -
Acquisition of additional equity interestin Jiangxi RS ERUEIRES

Xianghai Biological Technology Co., Ltd ("Jiangx ~ £HREAERAA(IEEE])

Xianghai") from non-controlling interests TR 2 = (3.984) = (3.984) 884 (3,100)
Capital injection from non-controlling interests — JFE IS T ERHE AT - - - - 915 915
Forfeiture of unclaimed dividends RUKRERE 21 - - 2 28 - 28
Final and special dividends for the nine months B JEITEI 220188124318

ended 31 December 2018 paid to shareholders FhERZBRRERRE 30 - - (756,818) | (756,818) - (756,818)
Interim dividends for the six months ended BIRAEZE2019F67308

30 June 2019 paid to shareholders AEAZPERE 30 - - (247,048) | (247,088) - (247,048)
Total transactions with owners HEEARG4E (1) (618)  (1,004,538) | (1,005167)  (480,534)  (1,485,701)
Balance at 31 December 2019 R2019%128318 318636 2540529 8,969,048 | 11,828213 1,771,260 13,599,473
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be 4R A HEZS & B3R FE BL AR FERM 5T — G RI:E o

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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mE

EE:%I)ILE‘%%

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (RS EREPEN ME2EHUARETLIIR)
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
Note 2019 2018
B Z2019%F B E2018%F
12A31H 12A31H
B 5 LFE IENEA
Cash flows from operating activities EETBCESRE
Cash generated from operations LEBEHS RS 32(a) 2,031,748 1,475,538
Income tax paid BEAIFTEH (472,165) (242,632)
Net cash generated from operating EERHELECHEESFE
activities 1,559,583 1,232,906
Cash flows from investing activities RETE E’Jfﬁ.ﬁmus
Acquisition of subsidiaries g alap=p/N - (4,591,054)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HERBA Tﬁﬁﬁ‘?ﬂ - 207,146
Acquisition of an associate Ui B Bt 2 2 ) (2,411) (17,450)
Proceeds from disposal of an associate HERE QR TS IIE 18,586 -
Purchases of financial assets at fair value BANAREBEFEER
through other comprehensive income BEst AEMARE W
ZEREE (20,642) (48,331)
Proceeds from disposal of interest in HENAREEFERER
financial assets at fair value through FE)it AE MRS W
other comprehensive income L EREBEEMBHIA 2,545 -
Purchases of financial assets at fair value E%Abxﬁftfﬁfﬁafiﬁﬁ
through profit or loss It \ B cemEE (1,068,720) (579,660)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets tlj’%b/(’&ftfﬁﬁ?r%ﬁﬁ
at fair value through profit or loss FEETABR eRMEE
F1S3KIE 829,950 293,922
Purchases of property, plant and equipment, B A 4% « #28 R -
land use rights and intangible assets T REREREEE (312,097) (265,114)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEME - BBEBRREN
and equipment and intangible assets ER B EMSRE 32(b) 16,655 5,694
Short-term time deposits placed 7 A\ HATE BAfE 3K (3,134,294) (2,640,100)
Short-term time deposits released IREVE B E A K 2,406,790 2,110,265
Dividend received B E 12,805 10,161
Interest received 2 U F B 178,319 138,843
Net cash used in investing activities RETEBFIAZRSFE (1,072,514) (5,375,678)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows mEEERER
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (RS EREPEN ME2EHUARETLIIR)
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
Note 2019 2018
B Z2019%F B E2018%F
12A31H 12H31H
B 5 LFE IENEA
Cash flows from financing activities RETBNESRE
Final dividends for the year ended MR R T 8 220184
31 March 2018 paid to shareholders 3A31BIEFE Z BR
P& B - (405,353)
Interim dividends for the six months period  [A] I 58 57 < &L 20184
ended 30 September 2018 paid to 9A30H IENE A M 2
shareholders HEAAR S (275,620) -
Final and special dividends for the nine ] A% 3R 52 < 8k £ 20184F
months ended 31 December 2018 12318 1EhER
paid to shareholders HAR 2 BA R B2 R Bl AR B (756,818) -
Interim dividends for the six months ended  [A]J& 58 7 < &L 20194
30 June 2019 paid to shareholders 6H308 LE/ @l A HifE 2
HHARR B (247,048) -
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests  [A] 3E 322 il 14 4 25 2 1+ B& &, (479,367) (39,623)
Capital contributions from non-controlling  FE3R &M A A
interests FE Z TS RIE 915 1,800
New bank borrowings IR ITE T 32(c) 756,607 3,580,389
Repayment of bank borrowings EEIRITER 32(c) (1,461,703) (100,250)
Principal elements of lease payments SNHEENR A2 D 32(0) (19,599) -
Repurchase of shares B 8 % (9 - (352)
Interest elements of lease payments S NHEENRHFELD 32(0) (3,092) -
Interest paid related to bank borrowings HIRTERNEMARZ
and others EENEES] (185,814) (95,999)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BMEEE (FTA), EE2z
financing activities ReFE (2,671,539) 2,940,612
Net decrease in cash and ReRBESEEYRLFE
cash equivalents (2,184,470) (1,202,160)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning %%/ 8z RE &
of the year/period REEEY 5,535,601 6,635,651
Effects of currency translation on cash BEEBEHESR
and cash equivalents REEFEMNTE 36,649 102,110
Cash and cash equivalents at the end ER/HWRZEER
of the year/period BEZEEY 17 3,387,780 5,535,601

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

bR AR ME R E LA RN FE—HBIE -
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Huabao International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability. The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are
mainly engaged in the research and development, production,
distribution and sale of flavours and fragrances, tobacco raw
materials, aroma raw materials and condiment products in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). Ms. Chu Lam Yiu
(“Ms. Chu"), who is the Chairlady of the Board of Directors,
holds approximately 74% beneficial equity interest in the
Company as at 31 December 2019.

On 11 December 2018, the Board of Directors of the
Company announced that the financial year end date of the
Company has been changed from 31 March to 31 December
commencing from the financial period ended 31 December
2018 to align the Company’s financial year end date with
that of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries. Accordingly, the current
financial year covers twelve months from 1 January 2019
to 31 December 2019 while the comparative period covers
nine months from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018, and
thereby the figures of the comparative period are not directly
comparable.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of RMB (“RMB’000"”) unless otherwise
stated. These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March
2020.

e B RRME

(BR=BEAEIN  AESBHUAARETTIIR)

1.

— &R
EEFBRERERAR (TAQE]) B
BREEDAMKIABREBERAA -
H 5 it 3% = & Hb 3k AClarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda °

ARABNRNDEIBENRBERARIMEA
RAG LT e

KRB BEEERAR - NRARREKW
BRAI(AKE]) 2 E¥BETERLREA
EHMBE ([HE])D)AERER £E -
DEEEEER ERARHE BREHK
ARGBER AMEZET (R
ARARIZEERER - M2019F12H31
B RLTHERRGLT4% 2 -

R2018F12A118 » KA E S i85 E8
BEEEEBHIAIIBEE B12A31
B NEAREBERFBREFMELZ FA
AP RFELER B LEHZE2018
F12A318 IEBEM AR - Bt - &
BB EFEME2019F1A18BE12A318
I+ =M@ A - i & R R E2018F4
A1BZ12A31HIE @A @ At L&
MBI TR -

TrEMBREBRIERAEIN - AU
ARBFT(TARETFITL]) IR o 4R
S BWMERDN2020FE38270 EESE
LA TR o

97




98

Huabao International Holdings Limited F & EIF = AR A E 2019 Annual Report F#§

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years/period presented, unless otherwise stated. The
financial statements are for the Group.

2.1 Basis of preparation

(i)

(i)

Compliance with HKFRS and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”) and requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap.622.

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared on a historical
cost basis, except for financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”)
and financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL"), which are carried at fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

e BWRME

(BR=BEAEIN  AESBHUAARETTIIR)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHBERE(H)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEXE (&

(ii) New and amended standards adopted by (iii) FEFE FRA AT H E 15

the Group

The following standards have been adopted by
the Group for the first time for the financial year
beginning on or after 1 January 2019:

° HKFRS 16 Leases

o Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation — Amendments to HKFRS 9

° Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures — Amendments to HKAS 28

° Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards
2015 -2017 Cycle

. Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement
— Amendments to HKAS 19

. HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over
Income Tax Treatments.

The Group had to change its accounting policies
as a result of adopting HKFRS 16. The Group
elected to adopt the new rules retrospectively
but recognised the cumulative effect of initially
applying the new standard on 1 January 2019. The
impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 is disclosed in
Note 3 and the new accounting policies adopted
are set out in Note 2.23 below. Except for HKFRS
16, other new and amended standards listed
above do not have a material impact on or are not
relevant to the Group.

HHER
KEBH2019F 1A 1B HLE
MBI FE E RN 7%
Bl :

e ABUBHREERZF16
S-HE

o EHEBERMAKEMNREAE
REHB-—HBERTR
EERFESRHER]

o HEMAERREIEDE -
B E B G ER F285
HMER]

e BFEUBRMESERNFE
hE2015-201 75 5

o FTEMBN - EEKE
B-HWEBHELSE
1957 I BT

e AB(ERYBRE) R
BRAESEBRMENE
AT B2 HE Y I BEE 1

AEBERMNBEBNEHRE
ZEBIEI6SEWIEL T &5 K
REE - AEBEEENEW
ERAFER] - 20191
A1 8 R4 FE B 2E R &
B HE -RPNBT BN B K
EEAFIHO T ERK T
3T MMM LT ER
HRTXH:F2.23 - B TEHB
MR RE ERIE165% 2o
Lt ¥R R E IR A LR
BATYHAEB SEEATE
REREIR o

99




100 Huabao International Holdings Limited F & EIF = AR A E 2019 Annual Report F#§

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

e BWRME

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (RS EREPEN ME2EHUARETLIIR)
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEBTTHERE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 wREEZE (&)

(iv) New standards and interpretations not yet

(iv) KR 2 Ha] ERI R 2 FE

adopted

Certain new accounting standards and
interpretations have been published that are
not mandatory for 31 December 2019 reporting
periods and have not been early adopted by the
Group. These standards are not expected to have
a material impact on the entity in the current or
future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.

2.2 Consolidation

(a)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group. The consideration transferred includes the
fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
(a) Subsidiaries (Continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that
are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation are measured at
either fair value or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are
measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

(i)

Business combinations
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying amount
of the acquirer’'s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date; any gains or
losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognised in accordance with
HKFRS 9 either in profit or loss or as a change
to other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

(Br=BEAEIN -

e BWRME

A2 EHAARETTIIR)

TEEHERRRBE (&)

mEkE (#&)
(a) K& 217 (&F)

RERBRBEE  NREET
BARBEIIRIFEH IR
mEERRB T FEENLL
Bl - &1 & WU 75 B9 FF4E
MERE2S o JF% B 1L HE 21 B0 P
B E A AR REE A H
MR EBEFE FRIEFTE
FBBEENRELBBAE
st EEESE -

() EBBEUf
BREOHBERANEEE
By ST

WMEBA G OPEEAETT -
W iE 77 2 B B AE 7T
FRAEMESEKWERS
MAREBEEABETE
MatE EHGAEESE
B AL o] 22 85 2 18 2 P R
A='B\J\o
SEREERNTALA
HEREBEHNOA
BEFE- RE/EE
SBRENIBHELR
EEMNERED RIE
FRMBREERFEIR
MRE EBRBPHAIE
REMEEKENE

R DA ERANK
EHEIEHNGE A
ZEMNBEREEEDT A
BE o

101




102

Huabao International Holdings Limited Z8 BEIEUZAYAR AR 2019 Annual Report 3

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
(a) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)

(ir)

Business combinations (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly
in the income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries
have been adjusted to conform with the
Group’s accounting policies.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequent accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. It
means the amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRS.
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Financial Statements

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (RS EREPEN ME2EHUARETLIIR)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHBERE(H)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

2.2 #EKRE (@)
b) BELF

(b) Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recognised at cost, and
the carrying amount is increased or decreased to
recognise the investor’s share of the profit or loss
of the investee after the date of acquisition. The
Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition
of the ownership interest in an associate, any
difference between the cost of the associate
and the Group's share of the net fair value of
the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is
recognised in consolidated other comprehensive
income with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interests in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
(b) Associates (Continued)

The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in the associate is impaired. If this
is the case, the Group calculates the amount
of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to share of profit/(loss) of an associate in the
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group
and its associates are recognised in the Group's
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised
losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in
associates are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(9]

Jointly controlled entity

Investments in joint arrangements are classified
either as joint operations or joint ventures,
depending on the contractual rights and obligations
each investor has. The Group has assessed the
nature of its joint arrangements and determined
them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures are
accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests
in joint ventures are initially recognised at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and
movements in other comprehensive income. When
the Group's share of losses in a joint venture equals
or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint
ventures), the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the joint ventures.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
the joint ventures have been changed to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3

24

2.5

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors
that make strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The Company’s functional currency is
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") and majority of the
subsidiaries of the Group operate in the PRC and
their functional currency are RMB. The consolidated
financial statements are presented in RMB, which is
the Group's presentation currency.
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TEEHERRRBE (&)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

25 MEBRE (&)
(b) Transactions and balances (b)) XERZE

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except when deferred in equity
as qualifying cash flow hedges or qualifying net
investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated income statement within other
income and other gains — net.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities
such as equities held at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the
fair value gain or loss and translation differences on
non-monetary assets such as equities classified as
fair value through other comprehensive income are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency

are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i)  assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the reporting date;

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

(iii)  all resulting currency translation differences
are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHBERE(H)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

M)EEW#@EE@%%%

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial

disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a
jointly controlled entity that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the equity holders of the company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group’s losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences
are reattributed to non-controlling interests
and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all
other partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group's ownership interest in associates or jointly
controlled entities that do not result in the Group’s
losing significant influence or joint control), the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
difference is reclassified to profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Construction in progress represents the direct costs of
construction of property, plant and equipment incurred
plus interest capitalised less any impairment losses.
No provision for depreciation is made on construction
in progress until such time the relevant assets are
completed and available for their intended use.

All other property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less depreciation and impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

Buildings 20-35 years
Plant and machinery 5-20 years
Motor vehicles 5-10 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5-10 years
Leasehold improvements 2-5 years or

over the lease term,
whichever is shorter

e BWRME

(R

2.

SEEBPEIN  FBESBREOUAARETLIIR)

TEEHERRRBE (&)

2.6 W% HBERRE

ERTRNERENE  #EER
AR BEZRI N EE T BATZ
BN BINRERBERRE - &£
BIRATHE BEEHBEEEST
AR AR A LE o

PREEMYE  #s MRERESL
BRI BRI & KR BB 1R 51 BR - BE
ERABREBBELEFHBEEERRENA
HIFI

EHEEBERMEBZ BREENEH
AEERANREE - MARER MK
REEH ] SEHET B H\féﬁﬁzﬁﬁ
BREEENEREENERAL
BYBE (WMER) - %Bi*a*}@ulﬂ
BERBERLER MAEEMSE
EREEBRNEEENMBHER
W R

ME - R NRBABESREFES
E UM AERFRoBEER
RISREE - Bt ERFHOT

gF 20& 354
W38 N ER 5204
E 5Z104F
R REREE 5ZE 105
HEMERR 2E5F

RHEFH -

N E R



Huabao International Holdings Limited Z=8 BIEUZEA AR AR 2019 Annual Report 3

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

2.7

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within other income and other gains —
net, in the consolidated income statement.

Intangible assets

(a)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identified net
assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at
the CGU or group of CGUs level.
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Financial Statements
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.7 Intangible assets (Continued)
(a) Goodwill (Continued)

(b)

(d

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU or the group of CGUs to
which goodwill has been allocated is compared to
the recoverable amount of the unit, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs
to sell. Any impairment is recognised immediately
as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Customer relationships and non-competition
agreement

Customer relationships and non-competition
agreement acquired as part of a business
combination are capitalised separately from
goodwill and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost of the intangible assets
over their estimated useful lives of 5 to 10 years.

Trademarks and licenses

Separately acquired trademarks and licenses
are shown at historical cost. Trademarks and
licenses acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
They have a finite useful life and are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate the cost of
trademarks and licenses over their estimated useful
lives of 10 to 20 years.
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(BB EEAEIN FTESBEEIUARETTIIR)
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEETBERHBE(E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.7 Intangible assets (Continued) 27 BREEE (&)
(d) Computer software (d) EEEH
Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised BAMNE M ERIZE A
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and R % #%E@ 3 B o] fF
bring to use the specific software. These costs are BERTE SR AEE XN

2.8

amortised over their estimated useful lives of 3to 5

BE 3R o It F K AN A FT AT AE

years. FAFH (3259 ) 8 -

(e) Patents (e) EF
Patents include purchased technology and skills ENDEAFE =R
acquired from third parties. They have a finite BEERTEAMFERE  BKA

useful life and carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost of the technology and
skills over their estimated useful life of 3 to 10
years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example
goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use, are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the

2.8
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separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.9 Investments and financial assets

(a)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income or through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this
will depend on whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition
to account for the equity investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

(b) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.
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Notes to the Consolidated
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.9 Investments and financial assets (Continued)

(9]

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at FVPL, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other income and other gains -
net together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the consolidated income
statement.

(% BAHEAES -
IERGHHREME (&)

(c)

e BWRME

A2 EHAARETTIIR)

29 TREE (&)

it 2

IR HERE  ARBRE
AREEM(EELIEARR
BFf2E R EEHF ARR
TREE)EERBRERES
MEENRZIRAGES R
BE-UWAAREEERH
EHHABENEREEN
RPRAEEED AR

N
&
)

MEEERAMETLANS
BMEEMNBHESREREEER
SRS MF BT EEE
EESBEE -

B LA
BEBETAMNRESERFA
SEEEZEE 2 XHRA
LRZEEZHEESREBHEM
E-AEBEGHEEBTAD
BA=ZEFERER

o  EHAA:fHAKES
WEEREMBAZE
ENREREE/IN
AehME  AZFER
ERBHK ARG E - %
ETREENMERA
REBRNEOEFT A
WA RIETERELD
ERAREREEEEREN
BaER YR HEAMK
ARE M sE—FER
B W W e Ko B 1R — HF
IR - BEBEREA
WamRHPESEFAR
N

115




116

Huabao International Holdings Limited Z8 BEIEUZAYAR AR 2019 Annual Report 3

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.9 Investments and financial assets (Continued)

(c) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through
other comprehensive income, except for
the recognition of impairment gains or
losses, interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in
profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified from equity to profit
or loss and recognised in other income and
other gains - net. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.
Foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in other income and other gains -
net and impairment expenses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated
income statement.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured
at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net
within other income and other gains - net in
the period in which it arises.

e BWRME

(R

2.

SHEERES -
IEEHHREREE (&)

A2 EHAARETTIIR)

29 TWMEE (@)
iE (F)
/,%ffgzﬁ- (%)

(c)

AonEBEFTELEER
Bt AR 2 mE M
fiid MW EIE RS RE
AEtEcREEMIA
LEEMNREREER
AT RAE - BlZ%
FEENRAABEGNE
BEEHFAEMEE
Wik - lREEZ B A
Hip 2 m U - HERIE
o W B 2 R (B W 2 B
1B A B A K E R
R B 2 AR
RIBREMEER -
5T AT H 2 [ U af
%@Z%EMQ*EWEEEE
REEFOBERR
E&“w#’jﬁi\f’@ﬂ&)\&ﬁ’r&
WaH—FE - ZEEM
BEEMMNEWARER
MBIEFT A BBUA ©
PE W U N B R AT A K
i, WA B E A W 2 —F
BLBEZANGE K
aXRTIEREBEAES
o

KAREEHEARE
@Ju‘l»)\i@\ *Lﬂzﬁﬁ
AR A A A S B B

EEXBHHAH LD
mkFZEENEEUAD
/L{Eﬁfaq‘fiﬂ/ﬁ;%;ﬁ Eﬂ_
)\T,g\ﬁll ° Tézﬂl’/{ﬁﬁﬁ
CEESEY DL

5 2 18 75 1% A M 2
E’J—TEBATE /\EE S I)J_/\
EAHEEEZRNH
o A A M 25— 5
BLUFEETIR o



Huabao International Holdings Limited Z=8 BIEUZEA AR AR 2019 Annual Report 3
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.9 Investments and financial assets (Continued)

(9]

(d)

Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other
income and other gains - net when the Group’s
right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in other income and other
gains - net in the consolidated income statement
as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured
at FVOCI are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk. For trade receivables, the Group
applies the simplified approach permitted by
HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses
to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables, see Note 4.1(b) for further details.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.10

2.12

2.13

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the
counterparty.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based
on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
inventories sold in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If
not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits
held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.14

2.15

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s
equity share capital (treasury shares), the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs
(net of income taxes) is deducted from equity attributable
to owners of the Company until the shares are cancelled
or reissued. Where such ordinary shares are subsequently
reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly
attributable incremental transaction costs and the related
income tax effects is included in equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.16 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the consolidated
income statement in the period in which they are
incurred.

Borrowing costs include interest expense and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to
the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs. The exchange gains and losses that are
an adjustment to interest costs include the interest rate
differential between borrowing costs that would be
incurred if the entity had borrowed funds in its functional
currency, and the borrowing costs actually incurred
on foreign currency borrowings. Such amounts are
estimated based on interest rates on similar borrowings
in the entity’s functional currency.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHBERE(H)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.17 Trade payables 217 EZEHIR

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entity operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

218 EMRIERE Fr &8 ()
(b) EZFFEH

(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis difference

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the reporting date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided
on taxable temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements, except for deferred income tax
liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally
the Group is unable to control the reversal of the
temporary difference for associates. Only when
there is an agreement in place that gives the Group
the ability to control the reversal of the temporary
difference in the foreseeable future, deferred tax
liability in relation to taxable temporary differences
arising from the associate’s undistributed profits is
not recognised.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable
the temporary difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be
utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable entity
or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Deferred taxes recognised arising on a
lease

Assets acquired under lease contracts give rise to
temporary differences between the carrying amount
and tax base. Short-term leases and leases of low
value assets are recognized as a straight-line basis
as expense in profit or loss. The amount that is
charged to rentals by the lessee in its consolidated
income statement is likely to be the same as the
amount charged in arriving at the taxable profit. An
exception to this is where accrued rentals, deferred
rentals or lease incentives give rise to temporary
differences. The Group considers the lease which
is on balance sheet as a single transaction in which
the asset and liability are integrally linked, so
there is no net temporary difference at inception.
Subsequently, as differences arise on settlement
of the liability and the amortisation of the leased
asset, there will be a net temporary difference on
which deferred tax is recognised.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.19 Employee benefits
Pension obligations

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme ("MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong which is
generally funded through payments to insurance
companies under defined contribution plan. It pays
contributions to administered pension insurance plans on
a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. Moreover,
all the employees of the Group's entities incorporated
in Mainland China of the PRC (the “Mainland China")
participate in employee social security plans, including
pension, medical, housing and other welfare benefits,
organised and administered by the local governments.
The Group also makes defined contribution to retirement
schemes managed by the insurance company in
accordance with German regulation and rules for the
employees of the subsidiary located in Germany. In the
United States of America (“USA"), the Group makes
defined contributions at certain percentage of monthly
salary to retirement and medical schemes managed by
the federal government of USA in accordance with US
rules and regulations. It is the federal government’s
responsibility to pay the retirement benefits to those
staff who retire. The Group has no further payment
obligations once these contributions have been paid.
The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due and are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments
is available. No pension obligation is required under the
Botswana laws and regulation.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHBERBE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.20 Share-based payment 220 AR XS 2zE €
Share option scheme BREE

The Group operates an equity-settled share-based
payment under which the entity receives services
from a business consultant as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. Information relating
to these schemes is set out in Note 19.

For equity-settled share-based payment transactions, the
Group measures the services received at their fair value
unless that fair value cannot be estimated reliably, and
the corresponding increase in equity. If the Group cannot
estimate reliably the fair value of the services received,
it shall measure the services received by reference to
the fair value of the equity instruments granted at the
date the business consultant renders service. Given the
services are provided evenly over a period of time, the
expense is based on the share price over that period.

2.21 Revenue recognition

(a) Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sales
of goods and services in the ordinary course of
the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown, net of
discounts and after eliminating sales with the
Group companies. The Group recognises revenue
when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a) Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Revenues are recognised when or as the control of
the asset is transferred to the customer. Depending
on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the asset may
transfer over time or at a point in time. Control
of the asset is transferred over time if the Group's
performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer; or

. creates and enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has
an enforce able right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the asset.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of
the performance obligation is measured based on
the Group's efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of
the performance obligation, by reference to the
contract costs incurred up to the end of reporting
period as a percentage of total estimated costs for
each contract.

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration
for the effect of a financing component if it is
significant.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b) Interest income

(9]

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method. When
a receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being
the estimated future cash flows discounted at
original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired receivables is
recognised using the original effective interest rate.

Dividend income

Dividends are recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.22 Research and development costs

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense as
incurred. Costs incurred on development projects (relating
to the design and testing of new or improved products)
are recognised as intangible assets when the following
criteria are fulfilled:

(a)

it is technically feasible to complete the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

the management intends to complete the
intangible asset and use or sell it;

there is an ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset
will generate probable future economic benefits;

adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the

intangible asset are available; and

the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset
during its development can be reliably measured.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.22

2.23

Research and development costs (Continued)

Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible
assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is
ready for use on a straight-line basis over its useful life,
not exceeding five years.

Other development expenditures that do not meet
these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense
are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Development assets are tested for impairment annually.

Leases

As explained in Note 2.1, the Group has change its
accounting policy for leases where the Group is the
lessee. The new accounting policy is described below and
the impact of the change in Note 3.

Until the 2018 financial year, leases of property, plant
and equipment in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership were not transferred
to the Group as lessee were classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) were charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease. Up-front payments to acquire long-term
interests in the usage of land were classified as land
use rights, which were stated at cost and charged to
the consolidated income statement over the remaining
period of the lease on a straight-line basis, net of any
impairment losses.

From 1 January 2019, leases of property, plant and
equipment are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHBERE(H)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.23 Leases (Continued) 223710 E (1)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable

o variable lease payment that are based on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising that
option

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.23 Leases (Continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by the Group, which does not have recent third
party financing, and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in
variable lease payments based on an index or rate, which
are not included in the lease liability until they take
effect. When adjustments to lease payments based on an
index or rate take effect, the lease liability is reassessed
and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received

. any initial direct costs, and

L] restoration costs
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHBERE(H)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.23 Leases (Continued) 223710 E (1)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of properties
and motor vehicles are recognised on a straight-line basis
as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. The Group
does not have any leases of low-value assets.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount
of the underlying asset and recognised as expense over
the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The
respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet
based on their nature. The Group did not need to make
any adjustments to the accounting for assets held as
lessor as a result of adopting the new leasing standard.

2.24 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grants will be received and the Group will comply with
all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated income statement over
the period necessary to match them with the costs that
they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred government grants and are credited to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis
over the expected lives of the related assets.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.25 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the final
dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders
and interim dividends are approved by the Company’s
Board of Directors.

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16
Leases on the Group's financial statements.

As indicated in Note 2.1 above, the Group has adopted HKFRS
16 retrospectively from 1 January 2019, but has not restated
comparatives for the reporting period ended 31 December
2018, as permitted under the specific transitional provisions
in the standard. The reclassifications and the adjustments
arising from the new leasing rules are therefore recognised in
the opening consolidated statement of financial position on
1 January 2019. The new accounting policies are disclosed in
Note 2.23.

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease
liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been
classified as ‘operating leases’ under the principles of HKAS 17
Leases. These liabilities were measured at the present value of
the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate as of 1 January 2019. The lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities on 1
January 2019 ranged between 3.11% to 4.33%. There were
no leases classified as finance leases across the Group as at 1
January 2019 and 31 December 2019.
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3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a) Practical expedients applied

In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has
used the following practical expedients permitted by the
standard:

o applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with reasonably similar characteristics;

o relying on previous assessments on whether
leases are onerous as an alternative to performing
an impairment review — there were no onerous
contracts as at 1 January 2019;

o accounting for operating leases with a remaining
lease term of less than 12 months as at 1 January
2019 as short-term leases;

o excluding initial direct costs for the measurement
of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial
application; and

o using hindsight in determining the lease term
where the contract contains options to extend or
terminate the lease.

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether
a contract is, or contains a lease at the date of initial
application. Instead, for contracts entered into before the
transition date the Group relied on its assessment made
applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 “Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”.
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3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Measurement of lease liabilities

Operating lease commitments as

e BWRME

(B BAIEAES -
3. ERRE28 (&)

A2 EHAARETTIIR)

(b) HEEBEWE

HE2018%F128318 2

at 31 December 2018 KT B AR 90,281
Discounted using the lessee’s incremental BIRET B AAE AR
borrowing rate at the date of initial application EEERFREITIE 80,151
(Less): short-term leases recognised on OR) 1 BERFEAERERN
a straight-line basis as expense FREHE (7.816)
Lease liability recognised as at 1 January 2019 20195 181EERNAEE R 72,335
Of which are: HAaiE:
Current lease liabilities nEBHEEAE 14,950
Non-current lease liabilities FERBHERE 57,385
72,335

Measurement of right-of-use assets

Prepaid lease payment in respect of the land use right
in the PRC is reclassified as right-of-use assets under
HKFRS 16, which is measured at the amount equal to the
lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2018. Other right-of-use assets which had
previously been classified as ‘operating leases’ under the
principles of HKAS 17 were measured on a lease-by-lease
basis, as if the new rules had always been applied since
the commencement date, but discounted using the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial
application.

(c) FRAEEENGE
BIEEEMBREENEI6HE B
AR L ERAEMNEMNEER
HENMHDEARFAREE  RER
HEBBENSETE  YREHE
2018F 12 A3TBELH & M E AR
rKPRRANEZHESENTME
NHRREAHENREETARE -
ZRIMBEE B EAFE 1750 R A
SEAMCLEHE | WEME HE
EELRZBHEEEGS MU
BMABERZBRERE—EBEH B
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3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BFEE2F (&)
(CONTINUED)
(d) Impacts of adoption of HKFRS 16 (d) KAEEBUMKEBREERE16E 2
FE
The change in accounting policy affected the following SETHRE E H2019F1 A1H 4
items in the consolidated statement of financial position EMBERRAREOTHIEEELERE
on 1 January 2019: 2 .

31 December HKFRS 16

2018 Capitalisation 1 January
As originally  of operating HKFRS 16 2019
presented lease contracts Reclassification Restated

BRMBHRE
Consolidated statement of R2018%F  ERE16% FEMERE #2019%
financial position (extract) 128318 KeHE  EAHE16% 181H
AHEEAER (BR) NrEZ  AEEXRE ENE BEJ|
Right-of-use assets FHEEE - 69,322 187,310 256,632
Land use rights T FRE 187,310 - (187,310 -
Deferred income tax assets ERMEHEE 111,593 446 - 112,039
Lease liabilities HERE - 72,335 - 72,335
Retained earings REEF 8,863,604 (2,022) - 8,861,582

Non-controlling interests IR 1,991,282 (545) - 1,990,737
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
4.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash
flow and fair value interest rate risk, and price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out under the policies
approved by the Board of Directors. The Group identifies
and evaluates financial risks in close co-operations with
its operating units. The Board provides principles for
overall risk management, as well as policies covering
specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and investing of excess liquidity.

(a) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong
and Mainland China and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk primarily through
financial instruments that are denominated in
a currency other than the functional currency
in which they are measured. The functional
currency of the PRC subsidiaries is RMB, and
the functional currency of the HK subsidiaries
is HKD. The majority of the subsidiaries of the
Group operate in the PRC and most of their
transactions are denominated in RMB. The
Group did not have other significant exposure
to foreign exchange risk.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4. HBHRERERE (&)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 4.1 BIERAKBEE (&)
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) TEEE (&)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) () SNEEjE g (48)
If HKD and USD had strengthened/weakened B E2019F 124318 1k
by 5% against RMB during the year ended FERN - BEBERE
31 December 2019, with all other factors THRARBHE BZE
remaining unchanged, the profit after income 5% ' MFATB EMEEZ#E
tax for the year and equity as at year end BAE - AIEARFEER
date would have been affected as follows: TR AR RPN FRERS
VREMT
Change of profit after income Change of equity
tax increase/(decrease) increase/(decrease)
RERBABAN E#2%28
gesEn/ (5s) gm/ (\5)
forthe  for the nine forthe  for the nine

yearended monthsended  yearended months ended
31December  31December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
BEW19E  BE018F  HENVE  BENBF
12A318 12A318 12A318 12A318
LEE EAEA LEE LEAER

Group b33
- Strengthened by 5% ~FHE5% 1014 1,841 5,641 5378
~ Weakened by 5% —HE5% (1,014) (1,841) (5,641) (5,378)
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4.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

4.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Other than deposits held in banks, the Group
does not have significant interest-bearing
assets. Fluctuation of market rates does not
have a significant impact to the Group’s
performance.

The Group’s exposure to changes in interest
rates is mainly attributable to its borrowings
which are at floating rates, and expose the
Group to cash flow interest-rate risk.

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, if interest
rates on borrowings had been 1 percentage
points higher/lower, with all other variables
held constant, there would have been no
material impact to the profit after income tax
for the year/period.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk because of
listed equity investments held by the Group,
which are classified as financial assets at
FVPL (Note 16). The Group is not exposed to
commodity price risk.

The sensitivity analysis is determined based
on the exposure to price risk of the listed
equity investments classified as financial
assets at FVPL at the end of each reporting
period. If the fair values of the listed equity
investments classified as financial assets at
FVPL held by the Group had been 5% higher/
lower, profit after tax for the year would have
been approximately RMB2,058,000 higher/
lower for the year ended 31 December 2019
(nine months ended 31 December 2018:
RMB9,343,000).
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 4, BIKERER (&)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 41 BEEAKREZE (&)
(b) Credit risk b)) EEREE

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents
and contractual cash flows of debt instruments
carried at FVPL. In addition, the Group is exposed
to credit risk if counterparties fail to make
payments as they fall due in respect of:

° payment of trade receivables as invoices fall
due under credit terms after being raised.

o payment of other receivables fall due under
credit terms.

For financial assets originated from 1 January 2019,
the following credit risk modelling applies:

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of asset and whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk on an
ongoing basis throughout each reporting period.
To assess whether there is a significant increase
in credit risk the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the asset as at the reporting
date with the risk of default as at the date of
initial recognition. It considers available reasonable
and supportive forwarding-looking information.
Especially the following indicators are incorporated:

° internal credit rating
o external credit rating

o actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant change to the borrower’s ability to
meet its obligations
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 4., HHREAKRERE (EF)

4.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

actual or expected significant changes in the

4.1 B¥EREER (&)
(b)) ZEERE (&)
s BERANKEXEER

operating results of the borrower BASNEEHAEAERXN
21t
e significant increases in credit risk on other e EFANEMETMEE
financial instruments of the same borrower EERRBEEIE N

significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the borrower,

o MERABRHRRKET
RELBRE(L B

including changes in the payment status of EERNERXANKEBER
borrowers in the Group and changes in the B =L A& 2R R B &
operating results of the borrower. 1t

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject e MBS EEMWEAE

to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the EE E\ﬁﬁ%#&%@z/ﬁlj 9%5’],}}

identified impairment loss was immaterial. BEER EBE2HNBER

(1)

Trade receivables
The Group applies the simplified approach
to providing for expected credit losses
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use
of the lifetime expected loss provision for all
trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses of
trade receivables, trade receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The loss
allowance provision as at 31 December 2019

RKTREKN-

=) 1¢

KA BIRES BB R
HAER|ZEH AR TEER
it mr N IRHEHE
EEE ZEARTM
EESRRUFHHERE
&l 1z F3 18 2 48 Hf 78 HA &
1o

BITEBHEKRIEN
EHEERE BE2E
WHIBEEXEMNEER
SR R E B T
D4 o £20194F 2018

and 2018 is determined as follows, and the F12A31H EREE
expected credit losses below also incorporate RT3 LATTEE]
forward looking information. EHREXRABEE T

EEMONREE:
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Trade receivables (Continued)
As at 31 December 2019

Trade receivables due

EEL LN

e BWRME

(BR=BEAEIN  AESBHUAARETTIIR)

4. HHEREE(E)
4.1 B¥EREER (&)
(b) EEEAE (&)

(i) BZENRT(E)
2019%12A31H

0-90 91days- 181days- Over
days 180days 360days 360 days Total
0-908 91-180F 181-360F ##iB360A At

Effective expected loss rate  FBif A MBE=
Gross carrying amount REEE
Loss allowance provision BELS

0% 0.005% 2.36% 31.24%
792,694 41,649 53,353 35,227 922,923
= 2 1,257 11,004 12,263

As at 31 December 2018

Trade receivables due

BARYT

2018512 H31H

0-90 91days- 181days- Over
days  180days  360days 360 days Total
0-908 91-1808 181-360H ##iA3608 A&t

Effective expected loss rate T ARBHER
Gross carrying amount EHEEE
Loss allowance provision BELSE

0% 0.005% 1.14% 52.36%
1,029,914 88,053 23,781 17,304 1,159,052
- 4 270 9,060 9,334
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(BR=BEAEIN  AESBHUAARETTIIR)

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 4. BHXERERE (&)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

4.1 B¥EREER (&)
(b) EEEAE (&)

(i)  Trade receivables (Continued) (i) EZEKF(E)
The loss allowance provision for trade B 5 U 3k R E B
receivables reconciles to the opening loss EAER ¥ BHE R FE I T ¢

allowance for that provision as follows:

Nine months

Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
BZ2019%F HZE2018%F
12A31H 12A31H

LEE EAEA B

Opening loss allowance at the &% HiMRERE

beginning of the year/period 9,334 12,925
Provision for impairment on PR ELEER

trade receivables for JE W5 BR SRORU(E

continuing operations 6,515 924
Reversal for impairment on trade ~ JHI[EI4% || 48 & 2 7%

receivables for a discontinued FE W5 AR FORU(E

operation - (640)
Increase arising from acquisition of WEEZEZRRBR AT

Jiahao Foodstuff Limited and its FREWE AT

subsidiaries (“Jiahao Foodstuff”) ([Z5%Eml)

FITEE A Y 38 0 - 6

Decrease arising from disposal of HESTETAME

Qingdao Qingda Product Co., f&15 B R A A

LTD (“Qingdao Qingda”) (IB8FKXR]) 2/ - (100)
Decrease arising from disposal i & VMR Products LLC

of VMR Products LLC and its REKMBAF

subsidiaries 2L - (347)
Written off as uncollectible ESE S eI Dk ! (3,586) (3,434)
Closing loss allowance at FEXRBRBEERE

the end of the year/period 12,263 9,334
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 4. BHERER (&)

BERREE (&)
(b) EEEAE (&)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 4.1
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

() Trade receivables (Continued) () ESENZ(E)
As at 31 December 2019, the gross R2019F12A318
carrying amount of trade receivables were BB FNEmER
RMB922,923,000 (31 December 2018: AN EK 922,923,000
RMB1,159,052,000), and thus the maximum 0 (2018F12H31H
exposure to loss of trade receivables were ANEK#1,159,052,000
RMB910,660,000 (31 December 2018: i) It A HE 18 Sk A
RMB1,149,718,000). BH R AR AR
910,660,0007T (2018
F12A318: ARK
1,149,718,0007T) °
(i) Other receivables (i)  E Y
Other financial assets at amortised HEMAEEK AT ER
cost include other receivables. Other % Bl E E B FE H fh B UL
receivables mainly includes notes receivable, R EmEUKEESR
prepayments, deposits, pre-paid charges, HEEWEE - JBtEIE -
deductible input tax of Value-Added Tax, e ER K E
advances to staff, retention money and BEH CEANEIR B
others. mE KHEM -
The loss allowance provision for other H fib 8 U 3k B R (B B E
receivables reconciles to the opening loss BFYBHENFE T -
allowance for that provision as follows:
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
B Z2019F HZE2018F
12A31H 12HA31H
LFE LEAEA
Opening loss allowance at the &% HARERE
beginning of the year/period 20,693 21,11
Provision for impairment loss on H {th e W SRR (B B R
other receivables 9,890 692
Increase arising from acquisition WiESZXRMTE £
of Jiahao Foodstuff 30 = 642
Written off as uncollectible A 2 52 g [0 i o 8 (120) (1,752)
Closing loss allowance at FRBARBEERE
the end of the year/period 30,463 20,693
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 4. BHXERERE (&)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 4.1 BIERAKBEE (&)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EEREE (&)
(i) Other receivables (Continued) (i) BEuERZ (&)

As at 31 December 2019, the gross R2019F12A318
carrying amount of other receivables was HithE MW EREE
RMB412,029,000 (31 December 2018: BAR®A412,029,000
RMB356,949,000), and thus the maximum 7T (201812 H318 -
exposure to loss of other receivables was AR ®356,949,000
RMB381,566,000 (31 December 2018: IT) o = N
RMB336,256,000). SHRARBAARE

381,566,000 (2018
F12A318 : AR
336,256,0007T) °

(i) Financial assets at FVPL (i) ARAEEFEHRE
Bt A Bt B EE
The entity is also exposed to credit risk ZEREREAREAUAR
in relation to debt instruments that are BET=EEEZHT A
measured at FVPL (Note 16), of which wealth EHEZNEBKITA
management products are considered to be EEMERHRR (MF
low credit risk, where they have a low risk of 16)  HAMPEEEE
default and banks has a strong capacity to miERAEEREREER
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in E )RR E B R 1THEE
the near term. NEEERBBABITE
ARBEMERT -
The maximum credit risk exposure of RmEBAR FLTR
unlisted equity investments at the end of AEENESEERR
the reporting period are its carrying amount AELAEEBEARE
RMB58,304,000 (31 December 2018: Nil). 58,304,0007C (20184

128318 : &) -

(c) Liquidity risk (c) HEMERE

Cash flow forecast is performed in the operating RNeNEBIlREERNK
entities of the Group. The Directors monitors rolling EXRAT - FEFTEEE
forecasts of the Group's liquidity requirements to MRBE e E KA RENTEA -
ensure it has sufficient cash to meet operational ERECTHETENKESE
needs and that the Group does not breach T - EHRFEEREETER
borrowing covenants on its borrowing facilities. EERER - HLEEHEE
Such forecasting takes into consideration the TEHESERESTS &R
Group's debt financing plans, covenant compliance, B AR B RER
compliance with internal statement of financial LR BIZE - RAINEBHYESE 5L
position ratio targets and if applicable, external SEBEE Pl S8R &l (0
regulatory or legal requirements — for example, WA) -

currency restrictions.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 4. HBHRERERE (&)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 4.1 BIERAKBEE (&)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) HEMEE (&)
The table below analyses the Group's financial TRETREAEBRNTMAR
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based ZREBEMIEAR BRI
on the remaining period at the reporting date HEEBEXRBZASRZ E
to the contractual maturity date. The amounts BRRSHEETIN - &
disclosed in the table are based on the contractual FABENSZE B RAKLILR
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 HERRBESRE - ©BE—
months equal their carrying balances, as the impact FRAEBIESERERTE
of discounting is not significant. RHERUERNZETEKX -
Between Between Between Between
Less than 1and 2and 3and 4and Over
lyear 2years 3years 4years Syears 5years Total
-2 WEE =£Z [NEE
—FUF RE =f mE 1E RENLE @t
Group &8
At 31 December 2019 12019124318
Borrowings (including interest) 3 (B EEHHE) 833,952 697,787 805,518 1,046,496 = - 3,383,753
Trade and other payables B REAMEMNTE
excluding statutory liabilities (PRREEEREE) 452,058 2,137 1,750 6,631 - - 462,576
Lease labilities HERE 25442 20310 15464 9223 7177 14770 92,386
1,311,452 720,234 822,732 1,062,350 7177 14,770 3,938,715
At 31 December 2018 #2018 12A31A
Borrowings (including interest) B (A& FIS) 1,116,890 595,045 697,879 805,792 1,046,656 - 4,262,262
Trade and other payables B HREMENTIE
excuding statutory liabilities (TefteE®E) 747852 4555 3993 2,788 = - 759,188
1,864,742 599,600 701,872 808580 1,046,656 - 5,021,450

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's net current
assets is RMB6,957,179,000 (31 December 2018:

RMB7,734,866,000).

M2019%F12A31H » &
EBEZ2RHDEEFES
AR ®6,957,179,0007T
(20185 F12H3180 : AR
7,734,866,0007T) °©

145




146

Huabao International Holdings Limited Z8 BEIEUZAYAR AR 2019 Annual Report 3

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

4.2

4.3

Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern in
order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The operating cash inflows of the Group are sufficient
for investing activities including acquisition of new
businesses.

The Group monitors its capital risk based on the
debt-to-equity ratio. This ratio is calculated by dividing
the net debt by the total owners’ equity. The Group's
net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including
current and non-current borrowings) less cash and cash
equivalents. No debt-to-equity ratio is presented as the
Group had net cash surplus as at 31 December 2019 and
2018.

Fair value estimation

The following categorises financial instruments carried
at fair value based on the level of inputs to valuation
techniques within a fair value hierarchy. The different
levels have been defined as follows:

- Quoted price (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1);

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2);

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

e BWRME
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4.2

4.3
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 4, BIKERER (&)
4.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 43 AREBEME (B)

TRYRANEBER2019%2018%F
1AMBER AR EFERERDN

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

The following tables present the Group's financial assets
measured and recognised at fair value at 31 December

2019 and 2018: TREEE ¢
Note Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B &E B E-RE E=E Hit
At 31 December 2019 #2019512831H
Financial assets at FVPL NAanEEFEAR
B ABEL
PREE
- Listed equity investments —FiEREE 16 41,920 - - 41,920
- Wealth management products -UEEREM 16 = = 726,191 726,191
- Unlisted equity investment —FETRERRE 16 - - 58,304 58,304
Financial assets at FVOCI NWRAEEFEEE
S AHMEKS
WaseREE
- Unlisted equity investments in —RAP BRI LT
the PRC BRRE 12 = - 49,095 49,095
— Unlisted overseas equity —RBINIIE LT
investments ERRE 12 - = 112,810 112,810
41,920 - 946,400 988,320
Note Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B &E £ EE F=E Hit
At 31 December 2018 20185128310
Financial assets at FVPL AR BEFEEE
BEHAERL
TREE
— Listed equity investments — TSR E 16 59,121 = = 59,121
- Wealth management products -HEEEER 16 - - 515,177 515,177
Financial assets at FVOC| IRAEENEEE
BETARLMES
Wamz emEE
~ Unlisted equity investments in —RHBE/MELT
the PRC BRERE 12 - - 51,640 51,640
— Unlisted overseas equity —RBIIFE LT
investments BERRE 12 - - 107,557 107,557
59,121 - 674,374 733,495
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4.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

4.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

There were no transfers of financial assets between level
1, level 2 and level 3 fair value hierarchy classifications
for the year ended 31 December 2019.

There are no other financial instruments that were
measured at fair value as at 31 December 2019 and
2018.

The financial assets of level 1 within the fair value
hierarchy as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 were the
lised equity investments included in financial assets at
FVPL. The fair value of these financial instruments traded
in active markets is based on quoted market prices at
the reporting date. A market is regarded as active if
guoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s
length basis. The quoted market price used for financial
assets of level 1 held by the Group is the current bid
price.

e BWRME
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4.

BEHIEPEIN TESEHUAREF LIIR)
BERRERE (&)
4.3 DNREEMGE (&)
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (RS EREPEN ME2EHUARETLIIR)
4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 4. HBHRERERE (&)
4.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 4.3 DREEMGF (&)
The financial assets of level 3 within the fair value A E2019F K2018%F12A31H -
hierarchy as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 were NABEEFTNE=ZELREE
financial assets at FVOCI and financial assets at FVPL. BUAARBEF2EHEEHTAH
The following table presents the changes of the Group’s i W ENEREEMAUAR R
financial assets of level 3 within the fair value hierarchy EBEEF=Z=EHEHT AEHER
for the year ended 31 December 2019 and for the nine HNEeREE - NRINETAERE
months ended 31 December 2018: F2019F12A31B Lt FEMEZE
2018512 A31H IENE A B A R
BEEAFTFEF-"EcREENE L :
Unlisted Wealth
equity management
investment products Total
¥LEH BE
RERE EEER HEt
At 1 April 2018 20184818 80,672 102,000 182,672
Acquisition of equity interest in WESZRMRE
Jiahao Foodstuff 31 - 180,811 180,811
Additions NE 48,331 512,000 560,331
Disposal & - (282,811) (282,811)
Fair value change recognised in other ~ R E M A WP HERD
comprehensive income N EEE 28,332 - 28,332
Fair value change recognised in other R E ot A FIE 4t
income and other gain - net Wa-FRAERAZLNAR
BEE - 3,177 3,177
Currency translation differences EMmEESE 1,862 - 1,862
At 31 December 2018 A2018512 8318 159,197 515,177 674,374
At 1 January 2019 20191818 159,197 515,177 674,374
Additions NE 69,362 1,020,000 1,089,362
Disposal HE (2,545) (822,431) (824,976)
Fair value change recognised in other R E#b4R & U 25 R REA &
comprehensive income NABEEZS (17,531) = (17,531)
Fair value change recognised in other  FAE b U A F1EL 4t
income and other gain - net W FERRAZAN
BEZ 9,001 13,445 22,446
Currency translation differences BERREEE 2,725 - 2,725
At 31 December 2019 R20195128318 220,209 726,191 946,400
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4.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

4.3

4.4

4.5

Fair value estimation (Continued)

Asset-based approach, market approach and equity
allocation model are adopted in valuation the financial
assets of level 3. There were no changes in valuation
techniques during the year.

Group's valuation processes

The Group’s finance department includes a team that
performs the valuation of financial assets required for
financial reporting purposes with the assistance of an
independent valuer when necessary, including level 3 fair
values. This team reports directly to the chief financial
officer ("CFQO"). Discussions of valuation processes and
results are held between the CFO and the valuation team
at least once every six months, in line with the Group's
reporting dates.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
measured at amortised cost

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities measured
at amortised cost approximate their carrying amounts.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

5.1

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

5.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(a)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill
has suffered any impairment in accordance
with the accounting policy stated in Note 2.8.
The recoverable amounts of CGUs have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations require the use of estimates
(Note 9).

If the budgeted gross margin, estimated pre-tax
discount rate or forecast growth rate used in the
value-in-use calculation for the CGUs of flavours
subgroup under flavours and fragrances segment
had been 44.3 percentage points lower, 67.1
percentage points higher or 58.8 percentage
points lower than management’s estimates at
31 December 2019 respectively, with all other
assumptions remaining unchanged, the Group
would not have recognised an impairment of
goodwill in respect of flavours subgroup under
flavours and fragrances segment.

If the budgeted gross margin, estimated pre-tax
discount rate or forecast growth rate used in
the value-in-use calculation for the CGUs of
reconstituted tobacco leaves had been 3.2
percentage points lower, 1.3 percentage points
higher or 3.5 percentage points lower than
management’s estimates at 31 December 2019
respectively, with all other assumptions remaining
unchanged, the Group would not have recognised
an impairment of goodwill in respect of CGUs of
.reconstituted tobacco leaves.

BRBEPEN

(a)
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

5.1

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Impairment of goodwill (Continued)

If the budgeted gross margin, estimated pre-tax
discount rate or forecast growth rate used in the
value-in-use calculation for the CGUs of Jiahao
Foodstuff under condiment segment had been
4.0 percentage points lower, 1.5 percentage
points higher or 3.5 percentage points lower than
management’s estimates at 31 December 2019
respectively, with all other assumptions remaining
unchanged, the Group would not have recognised
an impairment of goodwill in respect of condiment
segment.

PRC enterprise income tax and deferred
taxation

The Group’s subsidiaries that operate in the PRC
is subject to enterprise income tax in the PRC.
Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such difference will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provision in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it’s probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. BEXEHERIBLER

The Group has organised its operations into four main
operating segments:

(1) Flavours and fragrances;
(2) Tobacco raw materials;
(3) Aroma raw materials; and
(4) Condiment.

The chief operating decision-makers have been identified as the
executive directors (the “Executive Directors”). The Executive
Directors review the Group’s internal reporting in order to
assess performance and allocate resources. Management has
determined the operating segments based on these reports.

The Executive Directors consider the business from the
operation’s perspective and assess the performance of flavours
and fragrances, tobacco raw materials, aroma raw materials
and condiment segments.

(1) Flavours and fragrances segment includes research
and development, production and sale of flavours and
fragrances products.

(2) Tobacco raw materials segment includes research and
development, production and sale of paper-making
reconstituted tobacco leaves and new materials products
that are innovative, functional and applicable to tobacco
industry.

(3) Aroma raw materials segment includes research and
development, manufacture and sale of aroma raw
materials products that are extracted from natural
materials or generated from chemical process.

(4) Condiment segment includes production, sales,
marketing and distribution of condiments. This segment
was established following the acquisition of Jiahao
Foodstuff in September 2018.

The innovative tobacco products segment has been classified
as a discontinued operation in the annual report for the nine
months ended 31 December 2018.
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXERIIBEHR (&)
(CONTINUED)
The Executive Directors assess the performance of the HITESEESERAMNN 2T (EE
operating segments based on a measure of operating profit. DECHIRIF o
The segment information for the year ended 31 December HZE2019F12A3MBILEE 2D HER
2019 is presented below: EX b N

Year ended 31 December 2019

HZ019512831ALEE
Flavours Tobacco Aroma
and raw raw
fragrances  materials  materials Condiment Others Total
ER ERRR EFER FK @ 2t @t
Total revenue BEXE 2,185,339 763,962 625,880 700,469 1,894 4,277,584
Inter-segment revenue SHEEE (21,412) (9,538) (5,471) (83) - (36,504)
Segment revenue — net PHLEE-FE 2,163,927 754,424 620,409 700,386 1,894 4,241,040
Segment result NEbEE 1,287,737 311,052 82,124 144,816 (96,918) 1,728,811
Finance income BHBA 176,956
Finance costs MEMK (188,984)
Finance cost - net BEKA—F58 (12,028)
Share of results of associates ~ JE{GEE 4 A 7] R £
and a jointly controlled entity 3Bz £/ 29,034
Profit before income tax BRai BT 1,745,817
Income tax expense iEESi (372,076)
Profit for the year AEERF 1,373,741
Depreciation neE 40,976 85,029 21,462 8,003 5,042 160,512
Amortisation B 1,762 9,951 16,841 73,672 221 102,447
As at 31 December 2019
R2019%128318
Flavours Tobacco Aroma
and raw raw
fragrances ~ materials  materials Condiment Others Total
Ef ERRR ERH K @ Hitr st

Segment assets DHEE 8,420,755 3,029,563 957,280 5,277,279 278,758 17,963,635
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(Br=BEAEIN -

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. BXHERIBERE (F)
(CONTINUED)

The segment information for the nine months ended 31
December 2018 is presented below:

2R

Nine months ended 31 December 2018
HEW18512831B LN (EA

A2 EHAARETTIIR)

HZE2018F12A31HIENWE A ZHEE

Innovative
tobacco
Flavours Tobacco Aroma Continuing products
and raw raw operations  (Discontinued
fragrances materials materials  Condiment Others (Total) ~ operation) Total
3
BECE  EEig
B ERRH BRH A i #HEd  (BiHEE) Eoh)
Total revenue ez 1,674,710 720,110 513,152 170,979 12 3,078,963 120586 3,199,549
Inter-seqment revenue PHmEHEE (10,315) (5,448) (4493) - - (20,256) - (20,256)
Segment revenue - net PHEEE-FE 1,664,395 714,662 508,659 170,979 12 3,058,707 120586 3,179,293
Seqment result pEiES 952540 325,09 57,405 451 (70,738) 1287750 155921 1443671
Finance income AHUA 154,344 4[| 154348
Finance costs BEHRA (76,913) (19,086) (95,999)
Finance incomef(cost) -net ~ BIE&MA/ (BEMK)
-5E 77431 (19,082) 58,349
Share of results of associates  JEGESA AT R
and a jointly controlled entity ~ ZHIEE 2 £ 9,776 - 9,776
Profit before income tax BHRAARN 1374957 136,839 1511,7%
Income tax expense iR (320,805) - (320,805)
Prolfit for the period RERAH 1,054,152 136,839 1,190,991
Depreciation e 21,850 61,286 11,855 2,905 2,804 100,700 1,785 102,485
Amortisation B 1,750 8364 12,343 24,534 266 47,057 15,107 62,364
As at 31 December 2018
12018F12A31H
Flavours Tobacco Aroma
and raw raw
fragrances materials materials  Condiment Others Total
R ERRE BFRH Ak m it @t
Segment assets SEEE 9,625,781 3,089,171 890,893 5,201,045 368,540 19,175,430
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6.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Segment result represents the profit earned by each segment
without inclusion of unallocated corporate expenses, finance
costs, finance income and share of results of associates and
a jointly controlled entity. This is the measure reported to
chief operating decision makers for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance.

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, land use rights, intangible
assets, investments in associates, investments in a jointly
controlled entity, financial assets at FVPL and financial assets at
FVOCI that are managed by the Finance Department, deferred
income tax assets, other non-current assets, inventories, trade
and other receivables, short-term time deposits and cash and
cash equivalents. They exclude financial assets at FVOCI and
financial assets at FVPL that are managed by the Investment
Department and intersegment eliminations.

Non-current assets other than financial instruments and
deferred tax assets of the Group as at 31 December 2019 and
2018 are mainly located in the PRC.

Revenues from external customers are derived from the sales
of flavours and fragrances, tobacco raw materials and aroma
raw materials and condiments to customers mainly located in
the PRC.

Revenue derived from sales made to the single largest external
customer for the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted
to 11% (nine months ended 31 December 2018: 13%) of
the Group’s total revenue from continuing operations. These
revenues are attributable to flavours and fragrances segment.

e B RRME

(B BEEBES - FIASEHAARE T LIR)
6. EXBRABENR (F)

DMEERRREDHZEN  Eh Y
BEBRRADESIH  BEKAK - 15
WAR GBS N R R ARZEHEREZ
XE - MO HMEETER/DEERM
AEEDRIZRBAMAERELERKE
EX:oP

DHEETEBEREDE  BELKRE
EREEE LtiERE BHEEE -
HPERAWERE  HAREHEER
RE BAMBHMERZRAABENE
BEEFHHABENZ AR EEFER
HEHAAELMGEERENSREE
EREFMBREE HEMFERPEE 7
g B MEAM R - B HE 8T
FRENREFEY EMIEEER
BHMEENNARABEFELREE

AARMEAKEMARABENER

HEPHABZNEREE  ROEMAE
A -

BReEmTAEFBREMSREENIN B
20194F K2018F 12 A31H AEFE K I
REEEFTEMPRPE -

RENBEFPHBATERFEEEER
B ERRA  BRHARERK R TE
NEP -

HZE2019F12A31HIEFE - RIER &
RN EEFHRAGEBRFELCEER
EUWA11% (B 22018128318 1L L
A :13%) FEBEWASHERD T
EER -
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EEHERSBER (H&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Liabilities related to contracts with customers () HEEFzEREMHBEWEARE
The Group has recognised the liabilities related to rEEEBRERFENERBZE
contracts with customers: &EA:
As at 31 December
M12A31R
2019 2018
20195 20184
Total contract liabilities BERAE 172,889 223,089
(i)  Significant changes in contract liabilities () BEAEBEEZEXEE
The Group receives payments from customers NREBIZBEHNOENNNR
based on billing schedule as established in ZHARPRWE FIB o« &
contracts. Payments are usually received in advance HEEBERAENBEBLHEETK
under the contracts which are mainly from sales of BTURE B AEHTERE
condiments. The decrease in contract liabilities were HEFAKZ - SFAaEBRD
mainly attributable to a decrease in ex-warehouse MEIFEREAEHAKREOLEE
time of condiments. R R > o
(ii) Revenue recognised in relation to contract (ii) BEE[EEEEEHEBFTKA
liabilities
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
BZ20195F EZE2018%F
12A31H 12H31H
LEE ENEA
Revenue recognised that was included %] 81 ¥ 2 #E R 2
in the contract liabilities balance at AR EHEENKRA
the beginning of the year/period 187,624 25,062

All contracts are for periods of one year or less.
As permitted under HKFRS 15 "Revenue from
Contracts with Customers", the transaction price
allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not
disclosed.

MEARMOBRS —FXHE
2 - REFEVBHHRS LR
FISRIBEPAHWAIHR
E ABRBRBEHNARMNR
S
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7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7. YIE - EBERRE
Furniture,
Plant and Motor fixtures and Leasehold ~ Construction
Note Buildings machinery vehicles ~ equipment improvements in progress Others Total
G %E
iR B HERRE hE L ikl ERIR At @it

At 1 April 2018 R2018%4518
Cost KA 717,109 807,794 54,461 200,957 82,497 100,627 2,953 1,966,398
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (278,540) (462,806) (40,307) (136,095) (41,512) - (113) (959,973)
Net book amount FEFE 438,569 344,988 14,154 64,862 40,985 100,627 2,40 1,006,425
Nine months ended BE2018512A318

31 December 2018 EAEA
Net book amount at 1 April RAAIBEEFE 438,569 344,988 14,154 64,862 40,985 100,627 2,240 1,006,425
Qther additions RE 965 21,003 4853 13,889 T479 203,044 8 251,41
Transfers &if 50,536 35,861 - 1434 598 (88,429) - -
Acquisition of equity interest WEEZRRRE

in Jiahao Foodstuff 31 83,633 16,556 1,830 5,044 - - - 107,063
Acquisition of equity interest WERmE g RE

in Hunan Jishou 1,560 5547 24 - - - - 7131
Disposal of subsidiaries LEMBRE RHE (10,500 (454) (#3) (6,349) (2,846) - - (20,692)
Other disposals e 32 (53) (2,545) (1,028) (1,212) - - - (4.838)
Depreciation il (24,600) (55,894) (2,987) (11,606) (7177) - (221 (102,485)
Currengy translation differences ~ £HAEEE (303) 290 33 508 19 - - 724
Net book amount at 31 December 128318 B & F(E 539,807 365,352 16,836 66,070 39,235 215,242 2,027 1,244,569
At 31 December 2018 R2018%12831R
Cost [ 861,693 911,764 58,574 205,815 78295 21582 2,962 2,334,345
Accumulated depreciation 2ithE (321,886) (546,412) (41,738) (139,745) (39,060) - (935 (1,089,776)

Net book amount BESE 539,807 365,352 16,836 66,070 39,235 215,242 2,027 1,244,569

Year ended 31 December 2019 EZE2019512831BLEE

Net book amount at 1 January P B1REEFE 539,807 365,352 16,836 66,070 39,35 215,242 2027 1,244,569
Additions FE 1471 21,434 1,488 11,898 10,096 261,958 - 308,345
Transfers 44 45978 123,589 b} 5439 11,745 (186,774) - -
Disposals e )] (3.799) (4,615) @213) (1473) (10,563) - - (20,663)
Depreciation Vit (36,137) (81,063) (3752) (13,762) (5741) - (296) (140,751)
Currengy trandlation differences £ HEZE 83 (458) [v] 4 (9) - - (382)
Net book amount at 31 December ~ #12B31BEEF(E 547,403 424239 14,380 68,176 44,763 290,426 1731 1,391,118
At 31 December 2019 R2019E12A318

Cost R 903,491 1,030,050 58,148 230,935 74,906 290,426 2,962 2,590,918
Accumulated depreciation 2iHE (356,088) (605,811) (43,768) (162,759) (30,143) - (1,231 (1,199,800)

Net book amount REAE 547,403 424,239 14,380 68,176 44,763 290,426 1,731 1,391,118
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e B RRME

(BR=BEAEIN  AESBHUAARETTIIR)

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7. WE-HBEKE(E)
(CONTINUED)
Depreciation was recorded in the following categories: WEIRUN T EL Y -
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
Note 2019 2018
BZ2019F B £2018%F
12A31H 12H31H
Bt &t LHEE IENEA
Manufacturing overheads B E A 72,681 56,532
Selling and marketing expenses HE MHEERX 1,691 850
Administrative expenses THER 66,379 43,318
Depreciation recognised in FREC & B
continuing operations WRZITE 140,751 100,700
Depreciation recognised in RIS E B
discontinued operation HRZITE - 1,785
Total depreciation TE %R 25 140,751 102,485

As at 31 December 2019, buildings with net book value of
RMB76,010,000 (31 December 2018: RMB78,771,000), were
pledged as collateral for the Group’s borrowings.

MN2019F12A318 - BREFEARE
76,010,0007T (2018512 A31H : AR
#78,771,000T) MEFEEFRIER R
EEEROEAS -
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8. LEASE 8. HME&E
(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (a) REEUBRRREINESE
statement of financial position
The consolidated statement of financial position shows HABRREBRATEHBESR
the following amounts relating to lease: M & %E -
As at As at
31 December 1 January
Note 2019 2019
R2019F #20194F
og=d 12A31H 1818
Right-of-use assets: EREEE:
Land use rights (reclassified from 13t {# A #E (L BF fE ¥R
the financial statement line I8 B [+ (s FA#E |
item “land use rights”) BHOH) (i) 181,129 187,310
Properties LIES 79,373 69,092
Motor vehicles RE 58 230
260,560 256,632
Lease liabilities: HEAEE:
Current & 22,448 14,950
Non-current ERH 60,135 57,385
82,583 72,335
Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year were REEFHEESERINZE A ARE

RMB29,871,000. 29,871,0007T °
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8. LEASE (CONTINUED)
(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position (Continued)

(i)  The Group’s interests in right-of-use assets for
land use rights represent prepaid operating lease

e BWRME

(RBEEBEN  ESEIUARETFILIIR)
8. ME (&)
(a) REAMBRRRBANSE ()

() ZAEERLHERAENOER
AREMNEEES  HE@F

payments and their net book amounts are analysed BT :
as follows:
As at As at
31 December 1 January
2019 2019
20195 H2019F
12A31H 1H1H
Outside Hong Kong, held on: EEBIEIMRIAT E A
Leases between 10 and 50 years 10E50F A 181,129 187,310

See Note 3 for explanations regarding the change
in accounting policy and the reclassification
following the adoption of HKFRS 16, and Note
2.23 for the relevant accounting policy.

Right-of-use assets for land use rights with net book
amount of RMB15,846,000 as at 31 December
2019 (31 December 2018: RMB16,426,000) were
pledged as collateral for the Group’s borrowings.

ERRABEEVEHREEL
FIREEAHRREENE
MO RBRRE - F2EMES:
ERAEHR F2EME
2.23 ¢

M2019F12A831H @ W H
BAEARE15,846,0007T A
300 A #E (522018412 A31
H: AR#16,426,0007T) 2
EAREEERNIET R -
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8. LEASE (CONTINUED)

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated income

e BWRME

(BR=BEAEIN  AESBHUAARETTIIR)

8. ME(&)

statement
The consolidated income statement shows the following SAEWBRBETRATHEHEEABRSN
amounts relating to lease: & 58
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
Note 2019 2018
B Z£2019F B 220184
12A31H 12A31H
B 5 LHEE IENEA
Depreciation and amortisation fEAEEENITEMN
charge of right-of-use assets:  #EEM :
Land use rights (reclassified from £ b {sf B4 (LB SRR
the financial statement line TH B [ L fs
item “land use rights”) ER i 6,193 -
Properties LIES 19,588 -
Motor vehicles B3 B 173 -
25 25,954 -
Interest expense B H 27 3,092 -
Expense relating to short-term REEEER
leases 25 16,249 -

The total cash outflow for leases during the year was
RMB37,235,000.

AREEMHEReREREAAR
#37,235,0007T °
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(BR=BEAEIN  AESBHUAARETTIIR)

9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 9. EBEEE
Trademarks Non-
and Customer ~ competition ~ Computer Product Domain
Goodwill licenses  relationships  agreement software Patents design name Total
B8 BERFUR EFBR  FRTHE e E EH ERt FAR) @it
Note
firsk () (o)
At 1 April 2018 201854518
Cost A 2228371 280,862 256,261 3876 13,59 50,859 7140 43587 2,948 833
Accumulated amortisation SiEE - (73,430) (243,181) (3,650) (10,830) (36,567) (29,258) (20,089) (417,005)
Net hook amount FEFE 2,228371 207432 13,080 226 2,766 14,29 42,163 23498 2,531,828
Nine months ended BZ20185128318
31 December 2018 AR
Net book amount at 1 April MABEEFE 2,228371 207432 13,080 226 2,766 1429 42,163 23498 2,531,828
Other additions AE - - - - 1361 6,414 - - 7,775
Acquisition of equity interest WEEZRRRE
in Jiahao Foodstuff 3 3,635,550 354,000 551,000 - 1,006 3 - - 4,541,559
Acquisition of equity interest hEREEe e
in Hunan Jishou 3,588 1,741 - - - - - - 5335
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBLE 2 RE - (86,486) (167) (23) (1,538) - (32,791) (18,812) (139,817)
Amortisation B - (16,000) (22971) (10) (759) (6,737) (7,257) (4,159 (57,893)
Currency translation ERHEEE
differences - 4522 7,555 (121) 120 1,776 (2,115 (527) 11,210
Net book amount at R2BNAEEFE
31 December 5,867,509 465,215 548,497 7 2,956 15,748 - - 6,899,997
At 31 December 2018 R2018%12A318
Cost AR 5,867,509 544,817 787,443 3,085 9,005 46,172 - - 7,258,031
Accumulated amortisation Zit 8 - (19602 (238,946) (3,013) (6,049) (30424) - - (358,034)
Net hook amount FEFE 5,867,509 465,215 548,497 7 2,956 15,748 - - 6,899,997
Yearended 31 December 2019 EZ2019512A31A L EE
Net book amount at 1 January ~ FME1REEFE 5,867,500 465,15 548,497 n 2,956 15,748 - - 6899997
Additions RE - - - - 403 3,349 - - 3,752
Amortisation B - (23.269) (64,581) - (175) (7,629) - - (96,254)
Net book amount at M2EIIREARE
31 December 5,867,509 441,946 483,916 n 2,584 11,468 - - 6,807,495
At 31 December 2019 20195128318 -
Cost A 5,867,509 544,817 787,444 3,085 9,407 49,521 - - 1261783
Accumulated amortisation it B - (102,871) (303,528) (3,013) (6,823) (38,053) - - (454,288)
Net book amount FEFE 5,867,509 441,946 483,916 n 2,584 11,468 - - 6,807,495

Amortisation is included in cost of goods sold and administrative

expenses in the consolidated income statement.

BHORBRESRARBERNEERARIT
BERA o
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9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)
(a)

Goodwill is mainly attributable to the anticipated
profitability of operations, the anticipated future
operating synergies and enlarged market share. Goodwill
arising from prior year is allocated to the Group’s CGUs
identified within the operating segment.

The goodwill is allocated in CGUs as follows:

e B RRME

(RBEEBEN  ESEIUARETFILIIR)
9. MILEE (&)
(a) MEXZHAKLLERBHBEHEFR

WU B HA R SR AR 2 195 R R FE AN R
RKETIZMEERTE - AEBZ2EHE
TERBEEXBEDMOEEZ @R
TEEEM -

BEIRERCELEMZ2FWT

As at 31 December 2019 As at 31 December 2018
20195128318 20185124318
Reconstituted Reconstituted
Flavours tobacco Jiahao Flavours tobacco Jiahao
subgroup leaves  Foodstuff Others Total subgroup leaves Foodstuff Others Total
®AER  BEEE  EERR 0 B RPER EEEE  ExRM 0] 3t
Goodwill BE 1,186,344 942,633 3,635,550 102,982 5,867,509 1,186,344 942,633 3,635,550 102,982 5,867,509

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use
pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets
prepared by management covering a five-year period.
Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using the estimated terminal growth rates below. The
terminal growth rate does not exceed the long-term
average growth rate for the businesses in which the
CGU operates. The discount rates used are pre-tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segments or
entities as below. Management determined budgeted
gross margin based on past performance and their
expectations for the market development.

BERCELBUNAIKRE SR
IEREEE - Ll RBAEE
REEEBEHENDFHRUHER
mBEH 2 HABBREBR S REFE -
BEROFHNRSREEMANE
KEBFBRERIIRIMT « ZKEF
BEEIEBBRATELEMZE
BoEE BN REFHERE - f
RZENESBATENRL RERT
JgRE BB ERR - BEIEE
REBBENZENEHTISERY
TEEAREE FHAT BRI XK o
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9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(BR=BEAEIN  AESBHUAARETTIIR)
9- /\\\ﬁ/ﬁé (fﬁﬁ)

(Continued) (@) (&)
The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations FREEFENTEREZDT
are as follows:
As at 31 December 2019 As at 31 December 2018
20195128318 20185128318
Reconstituted Reconstituted

Flavours tobacco Jiahao Flavours tobacco Jiahao

subgroup |eaves Foodstuff Others subgroup leaves Foodstuff Others

RAER BEEE ERRE i RA%E BiREE EERE Eff
Forecast growth rate EiERR 0% 04%-54%  3.0%~293% -14.4%~690.4% 0% 05%-~3.0%  3.0%-~354% -14.1%~334.4%
Termingl growth rate KEFERE 0% 3% 3% 0-3% 0% 3% 3% 0%-~5%
Budgeted gross margin BHERE 830%  S5A%-56.1%  S58%627%  31.2%-449% 830% 526%-530%  56.8%-598%  347%-410%
Discount rate i3 15.5% 15.4% 135%  15.5%~22.8% 15.4% 148% 135%  15.8%-24.5%

These assumptions have been used for the analysis of
each CGU within the operating segment.

Based on the assessment of the cash flow projections
of the various CGUs, the Directors considered that
there is no impairment of goodwill for the year ended
31 December 2019 and for the nine months ended 31
December 2018.

Trademarks represent Peacock, Xinghu, Samshiang,
Chunzhu, Jinba, Jiahao, Zhanwang, Jinchan, and Sanfan
trademarks.

(b)

HRERETAREES IR M FE
BEELBEMNODTA -

EHEZEARSELEBMNNE SR
TERIE - EEEREE2019F12A
31THIEFE KE £2018F12H31
BIENBEAARER 2 BB ERE -

EIRTyEE EW O MELE
BN 9B -mx -EL -8
—HBEBE-
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10. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 10. RBEQNRIZRE
The Group has interests in six (31 December 2018: six) MR2019F 128318 » A& E R X E
individually immaterial associates as at 31 December 2019. (2018512 A31H : /<{A) W I ERIE K
The following table analyses, in aggregate, the movements WS ATFESREZE TRAEKERRV
of the carrying amount of the Group’s investments in these ZEBMENTNIRENNERZEZEE N

associates, and its share of results of these associates.

AEERENAREEESNDIN -

An analysis of the movements of equity investments in RE S N RN ESIEEES DO
associates is as follows:

Nine months

Year ended ended

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

BZ2019F B 220184

12H31H 12H31H

ILtFEE IEAEA

At the beginning of the year/period F1,/ B 396,685 371,444

Share of results of associates il AN E 18,938 7,791

Dividends received BB (10,485) -
Acquisition of Yunnan Nongken Gaoyuan WHEEMELRSRR M

Food Co., Ltd. (“Yunnan Nongken") BRARI([EEEZE]) 2,411 -
Acquisition of Delion Food Service Limited WEERYI T EY Z R m

(“Delion™) BRAR (121 %]) - 17,450

Disposal of Delion HEEY X (17,264) -
Adjustment for transactions between REANEEEEE QA

the Group and associates 2R 5 (4,404) -

At the end of the year/period FERHAKR 385,881 396,685
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10. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)
(@ Asat 31 December 2019, the Group had interests in the

e B RRME

(BR=BEAEIN  AESBHUAARETTIIR)

10. RBERRAZRE (&)

A2019F 1283180 - REB R IA

following associates: TSN EEREZ
% of
Place of ownership
Name incorporation Interests Principal activities
Z8 AMRIEH FAEEREIE TEEXB
Guizhou Huangguoshu Golden Leaf Technology PRC 40% Produce and sell reconstituted
Co., Ltd. ("Huangguoshu Golden Leaf") =) tobacco leaves
EMEREeENRERAR ([ERESE] HEMEERERE
Yunnnan Hongta Blue Eagle Paper PRC 25.10% Manufacture and sales of
Co., Ltd ("Hongta Blue Eagle”) e cigarette paper and auxiliary
EHAREBARARAR([AEEE]) products
FENFEEBERAREN®
Beijing Yunji Wuyu Technology Co., LTD PRC 20% Provide software development
TR EENFREROERAA H service and sale of self-
developed software and
electronic products
RERGRAERERESET
RBE BHRETE®
Hunan Golden Leaf Reconstituted Tobacco PRC 10% Produce and sell reconstituted
Leaves Co., Ltd. (“Hunan Golden Leaf") (i) e tobacco leaves
HEeEEEERAREELAR(DAEEED) HEMEEREEE
Yunnan Ruisheng Tobacco Technology Group PRC 6.72% Research, develop, produce
Co., Ltd. ("Yunnan Ruisheng”)(i) s and sell flavours and additives
EdHARERM (RE) ERAA e £ENEHEEBEHR
(IEmmm AL ) kL
Yunnan Nongken PRC 30% Purchase and sale of
EHmER =) agricultural products, coffee

(i) The Group has significant influence over
Hunan Golden Leaf and Yunnan Ruisheng by
representations on the board of directors of
these two companies.

and tea raw materials
RENHEREER MR

AEEBBENEEEMER
WM EFEFREES Y
EMERARBERTEN -
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11.

INVESTMENT IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITY

The Group has interests in one immaterial joint venture as at
31 December 2019 and 2018. The following table analyses the
movement of the carrying amount of the Group’s investments
in this jointly controlled entity.

e B RRME

(R

11.

ZHEEREIN

A2 EHAARETTIIR)

RARZEFERZRE

20195 K2018F12A31H » "REER
— AW IEENERNRRIEFEEES
i TRAASERZARIEHEE
MIREREEERZEH EEEENERT
BEB D -

An analysis of the movements of equity investments in jointly RERE4H EENEREEZH ST
controlled entity is as follows: N
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
BZ2019F B ZE2018%F
12A31H 12A331H
LHFE IEAEA
At the beginning of the year/period F14,/ 899 7,085 5,100
Share of results of a jointly controlled entity FEMR L EEH B pE A 10,096 1,985
Dividends received 2R E (1,786) -
Adjustment for transactions between the Group — F&E & I EA 4 7] 422 )
and a jointly controlled entity BB RS (12,082) -
At the end of the year/period FRBR 3,313 7,085

(@ As at 31 December 2019, the Group had interests in the
following jointly controlled entity:

(a) BA2019¢12)5J31 B NEBERMU
HREEH ERE A ER

% of
Place of ownership
Name incorporation Interests Principal activities
£% AMBEIEE  iEEREIL ETEEK
Dianhua Benxiang Technology Co., LTD PRC 51% Research, development,
(“Dianhua Benxiang”) H manufacture and sale of

HEARMBARAR (DRELE])

Dianhua Benxiang is accounted for as jointly controlled
entity of the Group, whereby the Group and the
counterparty have joint control and rights to the net
assets of the arrangement, pursuant to Article of
Association.

cigarette capsules, cigarette

materials cigarette filter stick and

packaging materials

ﬁﬂ?% % EENEEZA
CBEMR - BRREM

ﬂ&@ R

HEABERAKENARESNE

B REE(RRIER)  AEEH
REZBFHTHBERRNFEEEH

H A PR I o
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12. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 12. UAAREBEFEEESHTAR
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME fhiEEsREcEMEE
(a) Classification of financial assets at FVOCI (a) UAAREBEFEEHEEHTAH
fHEERENESREEN S E

Financial assets at FVOCI comprise equity investments
which are not held for trading, and which the Group has
irrevocably elected at initial recognition to recognise in
this category.

Equity investments at FVOCI include the following
investments:

NAnBEFEEHEZEHTARLM
RERENEREERETIARS
AR BRERE - MAEEEL]
PRHE RS B T A U R R A AR
BV

NAnBEFEAHEEHTARLM
FEWm s EaREBRRATERE

As at 31 December

M128318
2019 2018
20195 20184
Non-current assets: IETEEE
Unlisted equity investments in the PRC E/‘EF' BHHFE L hiERRE 49,095 51,640
Unlisted equity investments overseas RIBINYIE ETRERIRE 112,810 107,557
161,905 159,197

(b) Amounts recognised in profit or loss and other
comprehensive income

(b) #EERHEMEZEREPEIN

Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
Note 2019 2018
B Z20194F B 220184
12H31H 12H31H
B 5 LFE LENE A
(Losses)/gains recognised in other A H b 2 E U5 R
comprehensive income: (BHR) M
— Related to equity investments —EERIEERE 20 (17,531) 28,332
Dividend from equity investments AR R EEzFE B HE
held at FVOCI recognised in other 5t A E fib 45 & U 25 #Y
income and other gains — net AR % B I B A HoAth
WD At Y 25 — 5B
R 2,394 -
— Related to investments held at the —HR¥REFR, HIK
end of the reporting year/period BAZIKEHEH
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12. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Fair value, impairment and risk exposure

Investments in unlisted companies represent the
investments in certain private companies. These investees
were engaged in high-tech sector, education sector
and other sectors. Taking into the probability of high
uncertainty on the expected future cash flows generated
from the business of these investees, income approach
and market approach are not appropriate under the
valuations of the fair value of the investments. Thus,
asset-based approach was used to measure the fair value
of these investments. Considering the investees of light
assets, the fair value of the investments approximated
to relative proportion of the carrying amount of the
net assets of the investees at the end of each reporting
period.

The fair value measurements of financial assets at FVOCI

are categorised within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Financial assets at FVOCI are denominated in the
following currencies:

e BWRME

(R

12. A

iR &

(c)

ZHEEREIN

A2 EHAARETTIIR)

REEFEEHEHF AR
WEzcE@MEE (&)

NREE BERRBEE
FLETRAEARERRE XL
TLERAINERE - ELHERET K
ERRREE - HEAEMAME
- ZEEIELWIRE EUAER
FMEAMNERARARBERENS
ETHETEY EFRRENAAE
B WAEMMSELER -
EiL  EEEREHARGTHEE L
KRENAARBE ZERIGEKRESE
UHMEERBEE CHEMRSH
R BRENRABEAUNREIRE
BAOFEERMEENBE L -

MR EE A E A E BB AL
A S A END A EE
EHSEALR EEERNEZE -

AAnBEFEAHEEHTARLM
REWBEZEREENTNIEET

N

As at 31 December

R12831H
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB AR 49,095 51,640
usD ESpY 112,810 107,557
161,905 159,197

Please refer to Note 4.1 for an analysis of foreign
exchange risk.

SMNER R D MTEES R T4 -
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13. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

(Br=BEAEIN -

The movements in the deferred income tax are as follows:

EEMEHEDHMT :

Deferred income tax assets

A2 EHAARETTIIR)

13. BEEFEHEE AF

Deferred income tax liabilities

ELfERER ERFERAE
Withholding
income tax
on dividends
Valuation ~ expected to
Unrealised surplus of ~ be remitted
profits assetsand ~ from group
arising from recognition entities
intra-group  Recoverable of intangible  incorporated
Note sales tax loss Others Total assets in the PRC Total
L0
ARHE EEIE ARRBELH
FELHEER BRREY REFE%Z
iF3 FEREN  TRREE it B BENER  BREEH i
At 1 April 2018 H2018%451A 60,966 12,069 13N 80,346 31,680 49,706 81,386
Acquiton of equity inferestin WEEFR R RE
Jihao Foodstuff 31 - - 13818 13818 139,663 - 139,663
Acquistion of equiy inerestin WEnEEE R
Hunan Jishou - - - - 863 - 863
Disposalof a subsidiary HENBA - - ) 29) (1,689) - (1,685)
Recognised in other REMRERAED
comprehensive income 0 - - - - 1924 - 1924
Recognised in the income statement REEZRT B 6,107 9697 1,650 17454 6,598) 39,063 32,465
Currency translation differences BHRELE - - - - (%) - (%)
At 31 December 2018 H2018E12831R 67,073 21,766 0754 111,593 165,751 88,769 254,520
Adjustment on adoption of RRBERRBas RN
HKFRS 16 £165 AL 3 - - I3 16 - - -
At1 January 2019 201951518 67,073 21,766 23200 112,039 165,751 88,769 254,520
Recognised in the income statement NERRED 28 11,498 1329 10391 B8 (12,562) (36.224) (48,780)
Currency translation differences ElREEE - - - - ) . )
At 31 December 2019 20196123318 1851 23,095 33,591 135,257 153,191 52,545 205,736
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13. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 13. EEFFEHEE BE(E)
(CONTINUED)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for temporary
differences arising from unrealised profits from intra-group
sales, and calculated under the liability method using the
tax rate which are enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date.

Deferred income tax liabilities arose from the valuation surplus
of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets for land
use rights, intangible assets and financial assets at FVOCI;
recognition of intangible assets as a result of acquisition of
subsidiaries; withholding income tax on dividends expected to
be remitted abroad by group entities incorporated in the PRC.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Laws of the PRC
approved by the National People’s Congress on 16 March
2007, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends remitted
from the PRC entities to overseas investors with effect from 1
January 2008. A lower withholding tax rate of 5% is applied
to Hong Kong investors as there is a tax treaty between the
PRC and Hong Kong. However, the 5% treaty rate is not
automatically granted. The taxpayer needs to apply to the
relevant tax bureau for an approval for the treaty rate. The
Directors estimated that a portion of profits generated by the
PRC subsidiaries would be distributed to their Hong Kong
immediate parent companies and the approval for the treaty
rate will be obtained. Therefore, deferred income tax liabilities
had been provided based on 5% or 10% of the estimated
profits to be remitted to Hong Kong. The Directors of the
Company will review the funding requirements of the Group
and revise the dividend distribution policy of its subsidiaries as
appropriate.

As at 31 December 2019, deferred income tax liabilities of
RMB138,170,000 (31 December 2018: RMB227,378,000)
have not been recognised for the withholding tax that would
otherwise be payable on the undistributed profits amounting
to approximately RMB2,755,453,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB4,528,876,000) retained by certain PRC subsidiaries.

SEARAREEMEENEBARE
ARNERSELCHMSHEE  HewH
NBBEZERBEECERKCEELEN
MR E TR T

BEFMSHRABTTARARARKREBERE
DB R RPTEB 2 Y% - et AR
THERE  EREEMARR BB
EREEYTAREMGARGEZERME
ENRIhRe B EENEAMEL -
N EBAR T BEEME AR ERE
BRI B FTEL 2 TRIBFTSH -

REZ2BEARKKKERN2007F3716
BB EEEMEHE - H2008%F
TAHIBE  FEMCXAIERELED
IRALE » HBIE10% 2 T R B FTIS T
ERFELESARIRBHE » BT
BiEXxmBEBERECXEDKEE Al Z
BEREBNHERS%EW - BZ5%H E
MEWIIFEBHES ARAFTRABBEE
EVREBEGRIHEZAERBIHE - XA A
E=EBAeBRLPEAREMNBARZ
BMNEKERETEREENERE QR
I % 15 155 TE B R AL o Bk - IRFEFR
SHBEIREHEREE ZEF A%
HI0%N B ERFAE - ARAEFTH K
B AEE 2B & FHKIUE TN B
DA ZBE R -

R2019F12A31H - REBEWAME T
FEARKENBRARZADREFNHOAR
#2,755,453,0007T (20185 12H31H :
AR #4,528,876,0007T) B ¥ X By 18
RFGHERECEMSHABEARK
138,170,0007T (20185124310 : AR
#227,378,0007T) °
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13. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 13. EXEFBHREE BE (&)
(CONTINUED)
The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred income BEIESHREENRNBBER DT ET :

tax liabilities is as follows:

As at 31 December

M12A31R
2019 2018
2019%F 20184
Deferred income tax assets: RIEMSTHEE
— to be recovered after more than 12 months — 1218 A 12 W e 5B 4 26,461 21,766
— to be recovered within 12 months — 71218 A AU B ZB 15 108,796 89,827
135,257 111,593
Deferred income tax liabilities: RIEFEHaE
— to become payable after more than 12 months ~ —7E 8181218 A 14 & & fE ~ 2815 190,532 239,905
— to become payable within 12 months — 1218 A A R R AR 1D 15,204 14,615
205,736 254,520
14. INVENTORIES 14. 78
As at 31 December
®W12A318
2019 2018
2019 20184
At cost: R
Raw materials R 441,853 444,246
Work in progress ERE 199,429 191,661
Finished goods BIAK Gh 290,103 260,336
931,385 896,243
For the year ended 31 December 2019, the cost of inventories HZE2019F12A31BEFEZ2TFERAN
recognised as expense and included in cost of goods sold RAEBERVT ABEKRANRITHRERB
and administrative expenses amounted to approximately RS54 A ARK,189,931,0007T (&
RMB1,189,931,000 (nine months ended 31 December 2018: ZF2018F12A831BIELEA : AR K
RMB871,968,000). 871,968,0007T) °
The Group recognised provision for impairment of NEEDEERSREMERRE RS
approximately RMB5,009,000 (31 December 2018: #)5 AR5 009,0007T (2018412 A31

RMB1,213,000) in respect of the losses on obsolete inventories. A AR®1,213,0007T) °
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15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 15. EZ R HEMERKE
As at 31 December
R12A831H
Note 2019 2018
Bt 5 20195 20184
Trade receivables B 5 WA (a) 922,923 1,159,052
Less: provision for impairment of BB S REWSORRERE
trade receivables 4.1(b) (12,263) (9,334)
Trade receivables - net SRR IE —F 5 910,660 1,149,718
Notes receivable fEUEE 189,187 128,312
Prepayments and other receivables T8~ 3018 K H fth FE UL R IE 212,217 244,977
Advances to staff BI#XK 6,489 4,092
Others HAp 34,536 33,782
Less: provision for impairment of other & : £ th & Y F I8 Bl (B B 18
receivables 4.1(b) (30,463) (20,693)
1,322,626 1,540,188
Except for prepayment of RMB30,400,000 (31 December K 78 1~ BR 2 A R #30,400,0007T (2018
2018: RMB54,214,000), trade and other receivables are F12H318 : AR¥54,214,0007T) ) -
financial assets categorised as those to be measured at BENEMEIWG D EAAE K
amortised cost. All trade and other receivables are either AAENETHMEE| - PITEESZNEM
recoverable within one year or on demand. Accordingly, the FEWFIE AN —F RN BEAEEFE -
fair values of the trade and other receivables approximate their WESNEMERZEERERAAN LB

carrying amounts. BE -
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15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(@  The credit period generally granted to customers ranges
from 0 to 180 days. At 31 December 2019 and 2018,
the ageing analysis of the trade receivables (including
amounts due from related parties which are trade in
nature) based on invoice date was as follows:

e B RRME

(BR=BEAEIN  AESBHUAARETTIIR)

15. EZ R HMERKIE (&)
(@) BRTEPHEEH—MKA/0E180
H - 72019%2018%12A318 -
Eo5RNFGE (BIEEBALHE
SRR E) REEZBHOKREK
DR

As at 31 December

M12831H
2019 2018
20194 20184
0 - 90 days 0%£90H 792,694 1,029,914
91 - 180 days 912 180H 41,649 88,053
181 - 360 days 181£360H 53,353 23,781
Over 360 days 360H M £ 35,227 17,304
922,923 1,159,052

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9. For
the year ended 31 December 2019, a provision of
RMB12,263,000 were made against the gross amounts
of trade receivables (Note 4.1(b)).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables
(including amounts due from related parties which
are trade in nature) are denominated in the following

AEBRBBCHALRIES S
RS R EIF TR E AT IR TE
ZEEE - & E2019F12A31H
IHFE BHEZREKFIEREE
H AR #12,263,0007T 2 & (M
T4.1(b)) °

AEENEZERRFNEmEE (2
EEBALNEZERFIE) AT
FIEW BB

currencies:
As at 31 December
R12A31H
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB AR 890,872 1,135,770
usD ETT 31,872 23,124
HKD g 179 158
922,923 1,159,052

The creation and release of provision for impaired
receivables have been included in “net impairment
losses on financial assets” in the consolidated income
statement. Amounts charged to the allowance account
are generally written off when there is no expectation of
recovering additional cash.

HERERKRBEBORLNED
EEREGERERTIEREE
WMEBKFRIA - FFABRBRP
TEBE-REERREEN DA
HNER & B W BH o
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16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 16. LA REBEEBEESET AR

PROFIT OR LOSS HmZEMEE
(a) Classification of financial assets at FVPL (a) UDAREEFEEEESEHFT AR
The Group classifies the following financial assets at AEBBUTEHREESHAUR
FVPL: ARBEFEAEZHTABERND
A E
e debt instruments that do not qualify for o =N F ) AN
measurement at either amortised cost or FVOCI, BEAEEEZH T AEM
and RAERETEMNEBHITEA
VA K
e equity instruments that are held for trading e RXIMHEANERIA
Financial assets at FVPL include: UWRAABEFEAEEH AER
ZERMEEBRRE
As at 31 December
MW128318
Note 2019 2018
s 20194 2018%F
Non-current assets: ERBEE :
Unlisted equity investments ELmiERRE (i) 58,304 -
Current assets: MENEEE
Listed equity investments iR E (ii) 41,920 59,121
Wealth management products MEEEER (iii) 726,191 515,177
768,111 574,298
Total HBET 826,415 574,298
(i) Investments in unlisted companies represent the () HIELITRAAHNRERRYE X
investments in certain private companies. These investees FERNAHRE - BLIFIKEH#
were engaged in urban management sector, high-tech EPMERTE  SEEMEMT
sector and other sectors. Their fair value measurements X -HRNABEIA=EHEALAALE
are categorised within level 3 of fair value hierarchy. BEEMTHE=E -
The fair value of one of the unlisted equity investments in HAh—BIELFFATKRE—WTE
urban management sector is based on market approach BETENAALBEENTIS A EM
and equity allocation model with unobservable inputs RESRRE  WAEA T ERY
such as price to earning ratio, dividend yield and risk free BA AR B IRE K E

ki AR A% -
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16. UARBEFEEEZEHTAR

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

(a) Classification of financial assets at FVPL (Continued)

0

(ii)

(iii)

(Continued)

The fair value of other unlisted equity investments is
based on asset-based approach given the probability
of high uncertainty on the expected future cash
flows generated from the business of these investees,
where income approach and market approach are not
appropriate. Considering the investees of light assets,
the fair value of the investments approximated to relative
proportion of the carrying amount of the net assets of the
investees at the end of each reporting period.

The fair value of listed equity securities is based on their
current bid prices in an active market, and their fair value
measurements are categorised within level 1 of fair value
hierarchy.

Wealth management products represent financial
products issued by commercial banks in PRC. These
products are principal protected and with non-guaranteed
return, the terms ranging from one day to one year.

The carrying amount of wealth management products
approximated the fair value. The fair value is based
on cash flow discounted using the excepted return
based on management judgement and their fair value
measurements are of level 3 within the fair value
hierarchy.

HZTHMEE (&)
URAREBEFEEHSHTAR
sNEMEEDE ()

(a)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(&)

ERIELRRENNEBMESL
MEBEHRRAERREREFESET
WEMEM R AN - EfbIE E i
BRENDAEBEEREEZE MK
NENTISEHTER - ZEHHK
REEUMEEE ESEAREH
RFENDARBEOURBIRE
BUFEEREEEMNEE L -

EHBRABSFOAABEERER
EEBTSTHNEMEABRTE
B HARBEAENERBER
ARBEERTHEE -

MEERERERTERERTE
FHEBER - EEERAREE
& RIERBYR - HBHEA X
B — % o

BEEEERREEEERAAAEE
HE 2R EBEERREBEEEENH
ErATEHIR R 2 FIRM SR E -
TEBRAABEERTZE=E -
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16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 16. LA REBEEBEESET AR

PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED) BZERMEE(8)
(b) Amounts recognised in profit or loss (b) RERHRAZEHE
During the year, the following (losses)/gains were RENR  NBEFIER 2 (B1E) Ik
recognised in profit or loss: =
Year Nine months
ended ended
Note 31 December 31 December
HZE20195F HZE2018%F
12H31H 12A31H
M FE IEFEE IENEA

Fair value (losses)/gains on equity RE g A K B bl 25

instruments recognised in other —EEMRAIERTA
income and other gains - net BMAREEER)
Wzs (18,191) 3,177
Fair value gains on debt instruments A E g A & H Ak 25
recognised in other income and —HEBRAIERITA
other gains - net M AR EEKE 22,446 1,858
24 4,255 5,035
(c) Risk exposure () ARES
Information about the Group’s exposure to price risk and BREANEEESHERRRMERA
credit risk is disclosed in Note 4.1. B E (= B IEMT 4.1 B EE -
17. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 17. RTREFERE
As at 31 December
M12A31H
Note 2019 2018
B 20194 20184
Short-term time deposits SHETFERRTE K (a) 2,334,294 1,606,790
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEY 3,387,780 5,535,601

5,722,074 7,142,391
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e B RRME

(BR=BEAEIN  AESBHUAARETTIIR)

17. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (CONTINUED) 17. RITREFHRS (&)

(@  The original maturity of time deposits was six month or (a) TEHTHEZMETIEAHE JH/NEA
above with average interest rate of 3.4% (31 December A ERE ? b 7(_ REFBE XA
2018: 3.4%). The fair values of the short-term time 3.4/Z (20185F12H31H : 3.4[F) -
deposits approximate their carrying amounts. None of E’Eﬁmﬁﬁﬁ,ﬂ mEED L EME
the deposits is either past due or impaired. Ao BmTE ﬁﬁﬂﬁ,ﬁz@ °
Cash and bank balances are denominated in the RIMEFERSUTHE® ST
following currencies: e

As at 31 December

MW12A318
2019 2018
2019%F 20184
RMB AR 5,009,476 6,532,668
usD S 143,587 367,082
HKD ke 565,990 241,032
EUR and others BT M H A 3,021 1,609
5,722,074 7,142,391

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group’s and the
Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk of cash and
bank balances is their carrying amounts.

20194 2018412 A31H » A&
BRAAFEENRERTRES
BemmazERkR HERAEE -
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18. SHARE CAPITAL 18. &
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: TR BRITRERE

Share Capital

Number of g <
Note shares RMB’000
B 5 RO EE AR® T
At 1 April 2018, M20185F4AH18 -

31 December 2018 and 2018F12A31H &

1 January 2019 20191 A1H 3,107,962,876 318,647
Cancellation of repurchased shares e B ERGS (a (126,000) (11)
At 31 December 2019 72019412 A31H 3,107,836,876 318,636
(@) For the nine months ended 31 December 2018, the (a) #EHZE2018%F12A318 1 NEA -

Company repurchased a total of 126,000 shares of its NRRE BT ARRELE
own ordinary shares through the Stock Exchange at an %402109073 (/ia %j/\\ AR il
aggregate consideration of approximately HKD402,000 %53\00?27% 0(?5]]% E%f}}%a&) E

. . : = NPAN , B R %
(equivalent to approximately RMB352,000, excluding S [0 B 1 48 BE TR (E 85 5 12,6007
transaction costs). The 126,000 shares with total par (FEERHAE®11,0007T) B9 I&EH
value of HKD12,600 (equivalent to approximately MR2018F12A31MB M ATEHAD
RMB11,000) repurchased are recorded as “treasury A (Eﬁﬁﬁﬂ A - 3B R2019
shares” at 31 December 2018, which were subsequently FIAVARGESH

cancelled on 14 January 2019.
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19. ROBERNOZM

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

19. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Share option scheme

On 6 May 2019, the Group granted 11,000,000 share options
with an exercise price of HKD3.708 per share and vesting
periods of 0.5 to 1 year to an eligible participant, being an
independent business consultant of the Group (the “Grantee”),
to provide professional advisory services regarding the
operation and management of the Group. The share options
shall be valid from the respective exercisable date, namely 5
November 2019 and 5 May 2020, to 30 June 2020.

The estimated fair value of the share options per share for
the year ended 31 December 2019 was from HK1.2 cents
to HK35.5 cents, by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments granted, measured at the date the business
consultant renders service. During the year ended 31
December 2019, the Group recognises the total expense of
HKD1,031,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB907,000) in
relation to these share options.

Movements in the number of shares options outstanding
during the year and their related weighted average exercise
prices are set out below:

B ESE

M2019F5H6H » AEBER —FBT ¥
M EER ([#F AL &% 1111,000,0008% &
BEAHEBRZEREEREEERRN
R 1TEEASR B3I 708T &
BEAOSFRIF - B ENE SRR
AT {7{E B (BN20194 11 A58 &20204F5
HAS5H)#E2020%6 308 1k °

HE2019F12A31BILFE > BREY
HEF AR EAESRBE1 21 E#355
i R ERRERSEL2ERKTZ
BETEAEMEE - R2019F12A31H
HFE AEEBEIABREFHE2ER
485 A H1,031,0007T (BERHO AR
907,0007T) °

RER RITENBRESRE 228K
AR 2 IHEFITEEIIR T

For the year ended
31 December 2019

BZ2019F 128310 LLFE
Weighted
average
exercise
prices Number of
In HKD  share options
per share ('000)
INEEEY
TEE BREHR
B (8RR (REUTFE)
At 1 January M1A1H - -
Granted Esdan 3.708 11,000
Exercised 1118 - -
At 31 December M12A31H 3.708 11,000

Vested and exercisable at 31 December

R1I2A3MHERB XA[17f# - 5,500
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19. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED) 19. ROAEBROI M (E)
Share option scheme (Continued) BRERTE (F)
Share options outstanding as at 31 December 2019 are R2019F 12 A31HRITEEREZ DT
analysed as follows: AN
Number of
Exercise prices share options
In HKD per share ('000) Expiry date
Grantee TEE BREHEB
AEA B (BRE) (BB T KA H
Consultant ES 0| 3.708 11,000 30 June 2020
202096 H430H
The fair values of the share options granted during the year FRREZEREN LB TR 8 H
are determined using the Binomial Option Pricing Model. The BREBEANAE FRNEFTERZY R
major assumptions during the year are as follows: /N
Volatility 25.2%~32.9% JEHRY g = 25.2%-32.9%
Share price HKD2.86~HKD3.42 R& (& HKD2.86 - HKD3.42
Dividend yield 7.1%~8.0% PSS 7.1%-8.0%
Risk free rate 1.82%~1.91% 4 [ e A & 1.82%-1.91%

Expected life 1.15 year EHI= 1.154
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20. f##E&

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

20. RESERVES

Capital ~ Share-hased Currency
Contributed Treasury Merger Share Capital ~ redemption compensation translation  Statutory Other
Note surplus shares reserve  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  Reserve  reserves Total
MR
Ex RE@N guRE
M EARH% EERG  AHEE ROEE EAREGE BORE Wefk f#E IERE HbRE @
At 1 April 2018 R2018%4A18 296,853 - (628,438) 429,861 2411 4,749 - (99,737) 698,032 1,639,842 2,343,573
Fair value changes on IR BEFZAEEY
financial assets at VOCI, st AR fHA KR
net of tax SREEZBHEN
DhEE @) - - - - - - - - - 26408 26408
Appropriations from net & 45 F% f
profit 21 - - - - - - - - 74,372 - 74,372
Repurchases of shares BER R 18 - (1) - - - 1 - - - - -
Currency translation ERREER
differences - - - - - - - 127532 - - 127,532
At 31 December 2018 R2018%12A318 296,853 (1) (628,438) 429,861 2411 4,760 - 27,795 772,404 1,666,250 2,571,885
At 1 January 2019 ®2019181A 296,853 (11) (628,438) 429,861 241 4,760 - 27,795 772,404 1,666,250 2,571,885
Fair value changes on NArBEHEALEH
financial assets at FVOC|, s AEfigaliz2
net of tax SREEZBHEN
MEEY (a) - - - - - - - - - (17,531) (17,531)
Appropriations from EEmi
net profit 21 - - - - - - - - 700 - 700
Cancellation of FHEEEE RH
repurchased shares 18 - 1 - - - - - = = = "
Share-based payments Ry BER S
- Value of consultancy -BRRBEE
service - - - - - - 907 - - - 907
Disposal of equity interest % FEZE ZEXT
in Better World to RS RERAA
non-controlling interest - - - - - - - - - 1,748 1,748
Acquisition of additional  [R3EHR B B ULEE
equity interest in Jiangi T B S INRIE
Xianghai from non-
controlling interests - - - - - - - = = (3.984)  (3,984)
Currency translation EHREER
differences - - - - - - - (13,207) - - (13,207)
At 31 December 2019 R20195125318 296,853 - (628,438) 429,861 2411 4,760 907 14,588 773,104 1,646,483 2,540,529
(@)  For the year ended 31 December 2019, the amount of (@) HZE2019F12A31BIEFE U2 AE
decreases in fair value in financial assets at FVOCI before tax B EAEZFHTAEMGEAKEZ S
is RMB17,531,000 (nine months ended 31 December 2018: RMEEZ AL BEEHHABLESEAA
increases RMB28,332,000) (Note 12), of which nil (nine months R #17,531,0007T (& Z2018F12831H
ended 31 December 2018 RMB1,924,000) was recognised in 1IENE A : & hn AR E28,332,0007T) (B
other comprehensive income as deferred tax (Note 13). 212)  ANEIWE (B E£20185F12A31H
@A - AR1,924,0007T) ARE A2
A S ERELER A (H5E13) ©
(b)  Contributed Surplus of the Company represents (i) the (b) ARBZEHBHRIB()ELERZ AHE
difference between the consolidated shareholders’ funds of the RAZEARFACHEARARFE
subsidiaries at the date on which the corporate reorganisation BT EE 2 Z %8 ¢ (i) 20064 1R %
became effective and the nominal amount of the Company’s EARABEHENREREMRBEEEZEBRND
shares issued under the reorganisation; (ii) the transfer of HEEANE -
credit balance from share premium pursuant to the capital
reorganisation in 2006 and relevant laws and regulations in
Bermuda.
() Other reserves mainly arise from transactions with (c) EMmHEHEETERBHEFETHEEZNR

non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control
and fair value changes on financial assets at FVOCI (net of tax).

5 BEXZHTEEEIRKESE - A
ARBEFEEEZEHFALMEAK
HNEMEENAABEEEY (BE) -

LS
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21. RETAINED EARNINGS 21. REBEF
Year Nine months
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
Note BZE2019% HZ=2018%F
12A31H 12A31H
B FE IEEE 1EAEA
At the beginning of the year/period F1),/ 1) 8,863,604 8,601,342
Change in accounting policy R ES) 3 (2,022) -
Restated the balance at the beginning %] B #4568 (K &)
of the year/period 8,861,582 8,601,342
Profit for the year/period FE/AEEN 1,112,004 1,017,959
Appropriations from net profit B 4% 38~ 20 (700) (74,372)
Final and special dividends for the HZ=2018%12A31H
nine months ended 31 December IEN@EAZHRR
2018 B Rl iR 30 (756,818) -
Interim dividends for the six months HZE2019%6A30H
ended 30 June 2019 IEREA ZHEIRE 30 (247,048) -
Final dividends for the year ended #HE2018F3A31H
31 March 2018 IEFEZBREE - (405,353)
Interim dividends for the six months HZ=2018%9H30H
ended 30 September 2018 IEREA ZHEIRE 30 - (275,620)
Forfeiture of unclaimed dividends RUAR R ERI AR B 28 -
Repurchase of shares 5] A% A% 17 - (352)
At the end of the year/period FRHR 8,969,048 8,863,604
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e BWRME

(BR=BEAEIN  AESBHUAARETTIIR)

22. BORROWINGS 22. EX
As at 31 December
M12A318
Note 2019 2018
B 20195 20184
Non-current FERE
Long-term bank borrowings RERITEHX
- Secured bank borrowings —BEPETER (@) 2,310,474 2,888,092
— Unsecured bank borrowings —EEERITER (b) = 12,751
Less: current portion R mENER - (144,405)
2,310,474 2,756,438
Current mE
Short-term bank borrowings WERRITE R
— Unsecured bank borrowings —EEARITER (b) 688,302 789,296
Current portion of non-current liabilities  FEZRENBE T 2R EEBH
— Secured bank borrowings —BEARITER (a) = 144,405
688,302 933,701
Total borrowings BLER 2,998,776 3,690,139

(@  The Group’s secured bank borrowings as at 31 December
2019 of RMB2,310,474,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB2,888,092,000) are repayable within four years and
secured by certain buildings, right-of-use for land with
total carrying values of RMB91,856,000 (31 December
2018: RMB95,197,000), and equity interest in Jiahao
Foodstuff Limited and Guangdong Jiahao Foodstuff Co.,
Ltd. During the year, the average interest rate of the loan
was 5.70% (nine months ended 31 December 2018:
5.70%) per annum.

(a)

NEEB2019F12 8310 B K
HIETTE R A ARE2,310,474,000
7L (2018%F12A831H : AR
2,888,092,0007T) ' Z E AR U EF
NEE TUEXERABRAFR
BREREZREmARARBERES
AR #91,856,0007T (2018512 A
318 : AR #95,197,0007T) & 18
FMIMEREEE  ARERE
EREIE - RFER ZERZFEY
B AEEFS70E (H 2018412
A31BIENEA : 5.70F) -
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22. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
(b)

The unsecured bank borrowings are repayable within
one year. During the year, the average interest rate was
3.63% (nine months ended 31 December 2018: 3.72%)
per annum.

Borrowings are financial liabilities categorised under
“financial liabilities measured at amortised cost”. The
fair values of the borrowings approximate their carrying
amounts.

Interest expense on bank borrowings for the year
ended 31 December 2019 amounted to approximately
RMB185,378,000 (nine months ended 31 December
2018: RMB76,183,000). No interest expense was
capitalised during the year and nine months ended 31
December 2018.

An analysis of the carrying amounts of the Group's
borrowings by type is as follows:

e B RRME

(Br=BEAEIN -

A2 EHAARETTIIR)

22. B ()

(b)

ERFIRTERFTR —FAEIHE
Bo-RERN  ZERFHFNERE
F3.63E (H E2018F12A31H 1t
HEAR :3.72[F) -

ERNERABRD AR REH
RAAENEREE] EXDOK
HEREALEEES -

HE2019F12A31HIEFEN
BRITERFABAZIOAARE
185,378,0007T (201812 H31H
IENEA : AR%76,183,0007T)
RNERNREH E2018F12A8318 1t
NEANLENEEREAREL -

RER ST ASEE F e R EE
T

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
At fixed rates E = 2,479,224 3,181,942
At floating rates E B FI R 519,552 508,197
2,998,776 3,690,139

At 31 December 2019, the maturities of the borrowings
are as follows:

MW2019FE12A310 - B 5 H A
N

As at 31 December

M128318
2019 2018
20195 20184
Within 1 year —F AR 688,302 933,701
Between 1 and 2 years —E_F 577,618 445,964
Between 2 and 5 years —ZhRF 1,732,856 2,310,474
2,998,776 3,690,139
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22. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 22. EX (&)
(b)  (Continued) (b) (&)
The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings were REBEFNEMBER N T EK
denominated in the following currencies: BB

As at 31 December

M12A8318
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB AR 2,479,224 3,181,942
HKD B 519,552 508,197
2,998,776 3,690,139

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. ESRHMEMNTKIE
As at 31 December

M12A8318
Note 2019 2018
s 20194 20184
Trade payables BB ER I (a) 303,171 338,697
Dividends payable FE A & B 1,218 272,320
Wages payable BT E 97,668 93,537
Other taxes payable Hip e Fi1E 107,420 144,941
Accruals for expenses EETA X 28,540 17,931
Other payables M FE AT 5RIE 129,647 130,240

667,664 997,666
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23. ESRHMEMNRKE (&)

B E fth B B R A R #107,420,0007T
(20184128318 : AR #144,941,000

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

Except for other taxes payable of RMB107,420,000 (31
December 2018: RMB144,941,000) and wages payable of
RMB97,668,000 (31 December 2018: RMB93,537,000), trade L) REMNTE AR®97,668,0007T
and other payables balances are financial liabilities categorised (2018%F12H31H : AK*93,537,000
under “financial liabilities measured at amortised cost”. The TN BEMEMENRIERAE
fair values of trade and other payables approximate their woBEA|IIRBIEKASTENSHE
carrying amounts. Bl - BHREMENRKRENAAEEB
HHEmERES -

(@) As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the ageing analysis (a) 201920184 12A31H & 5
of the trade payables (including amounts due to related ENFE(BREEBATINESE
parties which are trade in nature) based on invoice dates NRIB) RIBEZE B AR REK DT

was as follows: [N
As at 31 December
R12A318
2019 2018
20195 2018%F
0 - 90 days 0£90H 271,546 296,844
91 - 180 days 91%£180H 16,859 24,839
181 — 360 days 1812360H 4,248 5,678
Over 360 days 360H M 10,518 11,336
303,171 338,697

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables
(including amounts due to related parties which are trade
in nature) are denominated in the following currencies:

REENE S EN K (815
ITHESEMNKE) NEEERT
SIEHREN

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB AR 285,900 325,476
usD ET 7,233 6,789
HKD g 4,536 31
EUR and other BX T M E A 5,502 6,401
303,171 338,697
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24. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS - NET 24, HW AR HEftb W 2s — F 8
Year Nine months
ended ended
31 December 31 December
Note 2019 2018
HZ2019F EHZE2018%F
12A31H 12A31H
B &E LFE LENME A
Changes in fair value of financial NAnEstE EHE
assets at FVPL FFABEHNEREED
ANIREE-0) 16 4,255 5,035
Dividend income from financial assets IAREHEEEZETA
at FVPL and FVOCI BEakAorEtEEH
BE G AEMERE R
EREEZREWA 2,652 -
Gain on disposal of financial HER AR BEFEAHESH
asset at FVPL FAERN SR EENWR 7,519 665
Gain on disposal of an associate HERE QR 2z = 1,322 -
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HEHRBARZEE - (2,539)
Government grants AT 2 Rh 176,396 101,141
Foreign exchange gain - net PE 3 s — 5 36,856 15,976
Others Hit (3.491) 2,045
225,509 122,323
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25. EXPENSES BY NATURE 25. RMESENEX
Expenses included in cost of goods sold, selling and marketing ERBEBEERN - HENTHEEER
expenses and administrative expenses are analysed according Y RITHER @ WRBEMNE (B GQ)
to their nature (with the exception of “research and HRBREEMEEYN N HELERERA
development expenses” which are shown as a single item T BEBYHETBEEEBAME
and analysed according to their nature in Note (a) below) as REROSE) DITWOT :
follows:
Year Nine months
ended ended
31 December 31 December
Note 2019 2018
BZ2019F EZ2018%F
12A31H 12A31H
i LHFE LENME A
Depreciation e 7,8 142,607 85,776
Amortisation e | 8,9 98,930 44,699
Provision for impairment of inventories 17 & )3 {& 5 {85 7,589 762
Changes in inventories of finished IRk &
goods and work in progress HERRTEEEE (37,535) 108,816
Raw materials and consumables used EREMEMERER 1,141,046 709,542
Lease rentals e = 21,336
Short-term lease rentals REAERS 8 16,249 -
Auditor’s remuneration Z AN &
— Audit services —ZBUR 9,656 8,096
— Non-audit services — IR 100 949
Consulting service fee HERKE 31,162 47,918
Travelling expenses Z MR X 71,574 34,226
Employee benefit expenses EERBHAFEX 26 477,843 284,884
Share option expenses BB iEE A 19 907 -
Research and development expenses MELREREX (a) 290,674 198,408
Delivery expenses EhAX 35,029 37,141
Utilities expenses NS5 83,069 57,347
Motor vehicle expenses AEBRMAY 10,391 8,709
Maintenance expenses HEE 19,930 20,309
Advertising and promotion expenses BEREEE 96,594 59,079
Office administrative and WANBAE
communication expenses 10,449 7,026
Other surcharges Hukimii & 53,625 49,264
Others Hih 161,444 107,377
Total of cost of goods sold, BEHERA - HE M
selling and marketing expenses and MiBHEERS

administrative expenses THER 2,721,333 1,891,664
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25. EXPENSES BY NATURE (CONTINUED) 25. MEEMNRX (&)
(a) Depreciation, amortisation and employee benefit (a) HEEBRMAITBEENFE &
expenses included in research and development expenses HEEEBNEBEMNBELZY RO T

are set out below:

Year Nine months
ended ended
31 December 31 December
Note 2019 2018
HZ20195F EHZ2018%F
12A31H 12H31H
i3 LHEE LEAE A
Depreciation e 7,8 17,905 14,924
Amortisation i 8,9 3,517 2,558
Employee benefit expenses EERBAFAX 26 126,405 89,581
No development cost has been capitalised for the year EEZE2019F12A31HIEFER
ended 31 December 2019 (nine months ended 31 WHEAMBEREKADE RN (BE
December 2018: nil). 20185F12A31BIENEA - &) -
26. EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT EXPENSES 26. EEREAMAX
Year Nine months
ended ended
31 December 31 December
Note 2019 2018
BZ2019F EZ=2018%F
12A31H 12A31H
B 5 LFE LENE A
Wages, salaries and bonus TE& - FEREA 507,056 321,402
Defined contribution plans and EREBRETE R
other employee insurances Hih 8 TR (a) 65,848 33,701
Other benefits HAvzgF| 31,344 19,362

604,248 374,465
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26. EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Defined contribution plans and other employee
insurances

The expenses mainly include contribution of pension,
housing scheme and other employee insurances for
employees, of which the arrangement of pension scheme
is as below:

In Hong Kong, the Group operates a MPF Scheme for all
eligible employees. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employees are required
to contribute 5% of their monthly salaries up to a
maximum of HKD1,500 per employee with a choice to
make additional contributions. The employer’s monthly
contributions are calculated at 5% of each employee’s
monthly salaries up to a maximum of HKD1,500 (the
“mandatory contributions”). The employees are entitled
to 100% of the employer’s mandatory contributions
upon their retirement at the age of 65 years old, death
or total incapacity.

In Mainland China, the Group makes defined
contribution to retirement schemes managed by the local
governments. It is the local governments’ responsibility
to pay the retirement benefits to those staff who retire.

In Germany, the Group makes defined contributions
at certain percentage of monthly salary to retirement
schemes managed by the insurance company in
accordance with German rules and regulations. It is the
insurance company’s responsibility to pay the retirement
benefits to those staff who retire. In Botswana, no
pension obligation is required under its laws and
regulations.

e BWRME

(Br=BEAEIN -

A2 EHAARETTIIR)

26. EERAFEX (&)

(a)

ERURFEREMBETRER
It & A a%LﬁiiT\m BTER
el R EAE TR Miiqu?‘J

ZEPMTE

AEBESTEMBEREREERY
wiEEFE - REEHEcEENR
AEBEAFHEBILOH

BiEwESTE BHREBE AR
H#ﬁs%(a—mt\, B4 5 7 ¥51,500
Jo) B 5 A% 12 1E Bk
Ko EE?T/,\? BEZEEBAH

5% (& = 3 58 &8 ¥ 1,5007T)
e 4 m(f%ﬁ%M Z]) - BEAR
ATEREK B TE2EAT
TERE DS IEVE e 2 2 3058 41

AEBETEAMRBESERET
MEXAFHEETEDLRTEMTT
BFAE RN RREEMFELER
WK T RFA B TRZFENK
BEXMEKE -

HAREE T RIFERBEAERARM
/iiiﬁﬁ/\ﬁ%/\lﬁzﬂ%m%$§
D AABRR R REL K - &
A“Tﬁf&ﬁm—rﬁﬁﬂﬁ,\iﬁ
RARE - BREANBBERIE
RUBEBRFOE IXMEAREH
BfE-



Huabao International Holdings Limited Z=8 BIEUZEA AR AR 2019 Annual Report 3 193

Notes to the Consolidated A ERERMEE
Financial Statements
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (RS EREPEN ME2EHUARETLIIR)

26. EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT EXPENSES (CONTINUED) 26. EE®RFIR X (&)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEBEHFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest FRN - EAEBZOAZESHHA
in the Group for the year include 2 (nine months ended T EEMA (B £2018F12H431H
31 December 2018: 2) directors whose emoluments IAMEA M) AEE MES
are reflected in Note 37(a). The emoluments paid and ZHEFEBEREHNMFEI7@) o KE
payable to the remaining 3 (nine months ended 31 EXHNTE#S=UAL(E=2018
December 2018: 3) individuals during the year are as F12A31MBIFER : =61) 2 B
follows: ST
Year Nine months
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
BZ2019F EHE2018%F
12A31H 12A31H
LFE LENME A
Basic salaries and allowances EARF € M2 17,687 15,111
Contributions to the retirement scheme iR k4@ F 5T 2 it 2 194 143
17,881 15,254
The emoluments fell within the following bands: WE NS EATEE

Number of employees

EEAH
Year Nine months
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
220195 B ZE2018F
12A31H 12A31H
IEFE LEAME A
Emolument bands B & % [E
HKD3,000,001- HKD3,500,000 753,000,001 T — & %3,500,0007T = 1
HKD3,500,001- HKD4,000,000 753,500,001 7T — 7 %4,000,0007T 2 -
HKD4,000,001- HKD4,500,000 754,000,001 T — 78 %4,500,0007T = 1
HKD10,000,001-HKD10,500,000 % #10,000,0017T— & #10,500,0007T - 1

HKD12,000,001-HKD 12,500,000 /& #12,000,001 T — #%12,500,0007C 1 =
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27. FINANCE INCOME AND FINANCE COSTS 27. BB AR EE KA

Year Nine months
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
B Z2019F EZ2018%F
12A31H 12A31H
ILEE LENE A
Finance income: P 3 ONE
— Interest income on bank deposits —RITIF 2 FEWA 176,956 154,344
Finance costs: BEMA
— Interest expense on bank —RITEFREMZ
borrowings and others MEER (185,892) (76,913)
— Interest expense on lease liabilities - HEAGBZMNEER (3,092) -
Finance (cost)/income - net (REKA) B RA—FE (12,028) 77,431

28. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 28.

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income
statements represents:

Fr S ®
AAARBRERZRIASEIIRAT

Year Nine months
ended ended
31 December 31 December
Note 2019 2018
HZ20195F EHZ2018%F
12A31H 12A31H
Lk LHFE LEREA
Current income tax ENER G 18
- Hong Kong profits tax —BEMEH (a) 13,657 8,577
— PRC corporate income tax —hECEMER (b) 429,987 295,947
— Germany company income tax — BRI EFEH (0) = 122
- Botswana company income tax —BREMEEMER (d) 436 1,148
Deferred income tax BEIEFTSH 13 (72,004) 15,011
372,076 320,805
(@) Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of (@) EAMEBHEAEEGTERHE

16.5% (nine months ended 31 December 2018: 16.5%)
on the estimated assessable profit for the year.

F AL %16.5% (& =2018F12H
3MTBIENEA  16.5%) B -




Huabao International Holdings Limited Z=8 BIEUZEA AR AR 2019 Annual Report 3

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

28.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

(b)

PRC corporate income tax has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the tax rates
applicable to respective companies of the Group.

The income tax rates enacted or substantively enacted to
the major subsidiaries of the Group incorporated in the
PRC are derived from various tax policies as follows:

(i) The Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC
stipulates the applicable income tax rate at 25%
for domestic enterprises in the PRC.

(i)  Enterprises supported by Western Development
Strategy can continue to enjoy tax rate of 15%
until 2022. Enterprises, simultaneously enjoy
additional tax incentives from Tibet Autonomous
Region Government that the output value of
the company’s High/New Tech products can be
exempted from the local share of corporate income
tax, can accrue income tax expenses at reduced
rate of 9% for the output value of High/New Tech
products and of 15% for that of non- High/New
Tech products. For the nine months ended 31
December 2018, due to uncertain tax treatment,
Huabao Flavours & Fragrances Co, Ltd (“Huabao
Flavours”), a subsidiary of the Group, accrued
income tax expenses at 15% for the output value
of High/New Tech products and at 25% for that of
non- High/New Tech products, which resulted in
adjustments for current tax of prior period.

(i) The Corporate Income Tax Law also stipulated that
the Corporate Income Tax shall be levied at the
reduced rate of 15% for High/New Tech Enterprises
that are specifically supported by the State.

Germany company income tax has been provided at the
rate of 15% (nine months ended 31 December 2018:
15%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Botswana company income tax has been provided at the
rate of 15% (nine months ended 31 December 2018:
15%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.

e B RRME

(R

SEEBPEIN  FBESBREOUAARETLIIR)

. Fr5
(b)

(9

(d)

S (&)

TERECEASHBERASEESD
BARERERAFENEFIALE
RBBEME

AREBPFBEAEFHZIENE
RFTISRERRERE TR BE
m

(i) GEMBHRZEIATTEBEA
CENBRAEGHBREXR
25% °

(i) XABRAZHEBZEND
XU NEEZZ15%H X
B22002F L ERBEXA
HERE BT EINES
BEM EesHEMERE
@T%ﬁm%% i 75 o

ZEM o A% RIS
%ﬂsﬂhﬁuu&ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ Gk
BA - RI5%TIRIER TR
MEMEBLEMEHER -
H Z£2018F12A318 It L@
A BERTHEERBFEE - K
EEMNTFRRIEBEEERHG
ERAE (TEERH]D HE
FIHRITE REBKIS%:IE
FEHER S FHEM
EEEE25%HIRFTEH
B BRAFEMGHE
FAE EHAMMETT T FHEE -

(i) DEMESMREBELEMS
HREBEERIBERIEBEOSH
FMN2EA15%MTHR R -

BRECEMSRIEANFE G ER
BB M AT 2= 15% (8, 2018412
A31BIENAMEA : 15%) B -

BREMEEMESRILZANFE G5t
FERTR BT AT B15% (# 22018
F12A318IEER  15%) B -
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28. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 28. Fr8® (&)

(e)  No provision for income tax in other jurisdictions has
been made as the Group had no assessable profit in
other jurisdictions during the year.

(f)  The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
using the standard tax rates applicable to the respective
companies of the Group as follows:

(e) AEERAFEAHMAEERIL
ERSERASHEA  RESH
ity RUERE IR B P 1S 0 4 L 4 o

(f) AEEBERFSH AR OHIE -
HEASEE TN EBEARAERESR
HHRERANREEMNIEmTEAR
PR - #5a T

Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
Note 2019 2018
BZE HE
20194 2018%F
12A31H 12H31H
Bt 5E LEFE IEAEA
Profit before income tax I F51 A1 &2 F) 1,745,817 1,374,957
Less: Share of results of W BRI E AT R
associates and HEEH E S
a jointly controlled entity ZEE 10,11 (29,034) (9,776)
1,716,783 1,365,181
Tax calculated at statutory tax rate  1ZiE B B+ B gy Fi 18 485,411 426,499
Tax incentives BB E bii) i) (217,066) (145,075)
Adjustments for current tax of prior [ = B%: W 1 E M )
period due to tax uncertainty BTG E
treatment b(ii) (8,739) -
Super deduction for research and 25 & B NG
development expenditure wa (18,494) (11,881)
Utilisation of previously B A AT RERA
unrecognised tax losses W% EE (5,958) (5,648)
Expenses not deductible for tax LE 1
purposes MBETE 6,622 3,067
Income not subject to tax EARBWARN & (6,850) (6,392)
Withholding tax on the earnings B /88 A &) B A AR EFT
from subsidiaries EECZTERFER 120,840 55,315
Tax losses for which no deferred I TR L FTIS 7
income tax assets were recognised ~ ZAE®HEERE 16,310 4,920
Income tax expense PR 372,076 320,805
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28. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

As the Directors are not certain whether future taxable profit
would be available in certain subsidiaries, the Group did not
recognise deferred income tax assets of RMB73,946,000 (31
December 2018: RMB81,088,000) as at 31 December 2019 in
respect of tax losses of such dormant subsidiaries amounting
to RMB379,894,000 (31 December 2018: RMB474,676,000).
The tax loss will expire in the following years:

(BR=BEAEIN  AESBHUAARETTIIR)

28.

Fres (&)
EAEEEIBTETRARESESERH
ERBRFBEEE  ANEBEW LG HE
RETHBRARAZAEREBARK
379,894,0007T (201851283180 : A
R #474,676,0007T) MIELEFT S & &
#) N R #73,946,0007T (2018512 A31
H : AR#81,088,0007T) Al E Bl 518
BR T FEERIH :

As at 31 December

®12A318
2019 2018
2019 20184
Year FE
2019 20194 - 24,378
2020 20204 53,848 81,756
2021 20214 13,954 27,065
2022 20224 60,228 68,508
2023 20234 18,464 58,046
2024 20244 46,117 -
No expiring date BAEEIHAH 187,283 214,923

379,894 474,676
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29. EARNINGS PER SHARE 29. BRER
Basic and diluted HEARARE#E
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit GIRERBFBBERNEE BREARA
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted FEXEBAELREN  BULENR H
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year/ NE BT B (HBEFR) B ntEFE
period excluding treasury shares. HYEHE-
Year Nine months
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
HZE2019F HZE2018%F
12A31H 12A31H
IEEE LENEA

Profit attributable to equity holders of the RATERFTAE ARERE
Company from continuing operations FELEER 2 BT 1,112,004 863,440

Profit attributable to equity holders of the RARERFFA AEGERE

Company from discontinued operation RIEREEE 2B - 154,519
Profit attributable to equity holders RAREEFEA

of the Company FEfE & 1,112,004 1,017,959
Weighted average number of ordinary shares %17 v & @M% 2

in issue ('000) g8 (F5H) 3,107,837 3,107,958
Basic and diluted earnings per share RARERFFE ARG

attributable to owners of the Company BRAAREERF

(RMB cents per share): (BElRARES):
From continuing operations REFELLEER 35.78 27.78
From discontinued operation RER | FEEETR - 4.97

35.78 32.75

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the outstanding share HZE2019F12831BIEEE  AFEYE
options granted by the Company have no potential dilutive THERITEZERESEIRELREFE
effect on the basic earnings per share, and thus the diluted E#ENE - WERBEERFEGIEE
earnings per share was the same as the basic earnings per KBRS -

share.
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30.

e BWRME

(BR=BEAEIN  AESBHUAARETTIIR)

DIVIDENDS 30. RE
Year Nine months
ended 31 ended 31
December December
2019 2018
BZE20195% B E20184F
12A31H 12A31H
ILFEE LENE A
Paid interim dividend of HK8.8 cents B B B = AR B 148 81l
(nine months ended 31 December 2018: (B E2018F12A31H L AEA -
HK10.0 cents) per share BE10.000) 247,048 275,620
Proposed/paid final dividend of HK10.0 cents  ##k,/ & 1 BA R I S &R #10.0
(nine months ended 31 December 2018: il (B Z=2018512A318 I AL #
HK8.8 cents) per share A B8l 278,394 240,433
Paid special dividend of HK18.9 cents per S EE20185F12A318 IEAEA
share for nine months ended HIR R AR B3 B8 818,911
31 December 2018 - 516,385
278,394 756,818
525,442 1,032,438

On 27 March 2020, the Board proposed a final dividend
of HK10.0 cents per share, totalling approximately
RMB278,394,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019. The
proposed dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2019 is calculated based on the total number of shares in issue
as at the date of this report. The proposed dividend is subject
to the shareholder’s approval at the Company’s forthcoming
Annual General Meeting. The financial statements do not
reflect this dividend payable.

F2020F3A27H - EEF @ EZH IR EH
F2019F 12 A3MBIEFENBHREES
A& S ®10.01L - 4 AR %278,394,000
JC o Bl E2019F 12 A318 It FE M HR
BETEBHAREBBHEBRTRDR
B8 -ERRBEIBREFTERARR
FRIM RITHR R AT K ERRIE -
FBHmERARBIEMRE -
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31.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Acquisition of Jiahao Foodstuff

In September 2018, New Generation Global Limited, a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an
agreement with independent third parties to acquire 100%
equity interest in Jiahao Foodstuff, for a cash consideration of
approximately USD695,985,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB4,745,437,000). Jiahao Foodstuff is principally engaged in
the production, sales, marketing and distribution of condiment
products in the PRC.

On 4 September 2018, the Group completed acquisition
of Jiahao Foodstuff and has effective control over it. After
the acquisition, the Group will focus on the complementary
products in the taste-based fast-moving consumer products,
including products in the niche markets such as flavours and
fragrances, additives, ingredients and packing materials,
condiments, etc. It is expected to play a synergistic effect.

The goodwill of RMB3,635,550,000 arising from the
acquisition is attributable to the synergy and economics of
scale expected from combining the operations of the Group
and Jiahao Foodstuff. None of the goodwill recognised is
expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

e BWRME

(Br=BEAEIN -

31.

FiE S EHAARE T TIR)
EBast

KBEER®

R2018F9H  KRRRlz2EWB QA
New Generation Global Limited #2387 5
= H%ZEWE - LR SR E695,985,000
Fot (& 4 AR ¥4,745,437,0007T)
WHEEZRRN100%ER 25 R M
TEAFRNRELE HE EHED
SHAAK ME M °

REBEN2018FIA4H TR E R =
Ral S EBRIZS - EIFL REWE
‘B AEEREERERRERZEE
Em BRERBED HNMNE - K&
BEMH FARBEADTHIER
JEHA R B R AR o

W E AR EE ARK3,635,550,0007C
DRERBEAEEREZRAIKLE
1% T8 HA B A B9 155 [R) A% B A A 8 8L 5 o T
REENHEBB ARG -
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31. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

Acquisition of Jiahao Foodstuff (Continued)

Details of net assets acquired and goodwill are as follows:

e BWRME

(BR=BEAEIN  AESBHUAARETTIIR)

31. ¥BE 6 (&)
WEEsRm (&)
WEELZFEERBEFBOT

Consideration — cash paid WEHE RN 4,745,437
Less: fair value of identifiable net assets W BBRIHRFEE 2

acquired — shown below ARBE-FITX (1,109,887)
Goodwill (Note 9) 2 (f5E9) 3,635,550
The fair value of assets and liabilities arising AWEmMEEZEENR

from the acquisition are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment (Note 7)
Land use rights*

Intangible assets (Note 9)

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

FVPL (Note 4.3)

BEMNRAEENT

Y - R AR (M RE7) 107,063

(s A 16,620
s A E (M3E9) 906,009
ey 22,694
%ﬁ%&ﬁﬂﬂ}ﬂﬂz% 13,845

i\\)bl: Ffﬁnﬁ_iﬂﬁﬁzﬁbd—)\
BmrzemEE (M:F4.3) 180,811

Cash and cash equivalents HERBELZEEY 163,760
Deferred income tax assets (Note 13) BEFTSHEE (MH5E13) 13,818
Trade and other payables B 5 I H fth N IR (77,373)
Contract liabilities /—\WE% (97,697)
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 13) EEFTISHAE (HFE13) (139,663)
Fair value of identifiable net assets acquired Wiz BEEARBE 1,109,887
Outflow of cash to acquire business W% 2B R

(net of cash acquired) (BRI BB 2 FIR &)
Consideration — cash paid AR & IR E 4,745,437
Cash and cash equivalents in KB B RRANMIE S R

a subsidiary acquired ReEEY (163,760)
Net cash outflow on acquisition W FIR B M 4,581,677

* Land use rights have been reclassified to “Right-of-use
assets” since 1 January 2019.

* T E RS N2019F1A1H
WEHEE[FEREEE] -
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32. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS HETEELENIES
(a) Reconciliation of profit before tax to cash (d) BB BFESEEEFAERE
generated from operations FBHEAGE
Year Nine months
ended ended
31 December 31 December
Note 2019 2018
HZ2019F EHE20184F
12A31H 12H31H
B 5T LHFE IENEA
Profit before income tax B AT &
Continuing operations i%ﬂ&%j‘i 1,745,817 1,374,957
Discontinued operation YIRS = 136,839
Profit before income tax including [k %4 B & %)
discontinued operation (BIERIFEEET) 1,745,817 1,511,796
Adjustments for: I
— Depreciation %ﬁ% 7,8 160,512 102,485
— Amortisation — Y 8,9 102,447 62,364
— Provision for impairment —-FERBEREE
of inventories 7,589 762
— Provision for impairment of — B 5 R H A EYGRIA
trade and other receivables BB 4.1(b) 16,405 976
— Equity-settled share option — AR ER
compensation expenses BREmES 19 907 -
— Interest expense —FMEEH 6 188,984 95,999
- Interest income —F B8 M A 6 (176,956) (154,348)
— Share of results of associates —EHBE N R K&
and a jointly controlled HAEHER XS
entity 10,11 (29,034) (9,776)
— Adjustment for transactions —REREEMERENE R
between the Group and HEEHIEEE QA
associates/jointly controlled )
entity 10,11 16,486 -
— Loss/(gain) on disposal —HEYE - HER
of property, plant and mEEE S (les)
equipment 4,008 (856)
— Gain on disposal of —HEUAREBEE
financial assets at FVPL BHEZSHT ABRD
DELEE 2 W 24 (7,519) (665)
— Gain on disposal of -~ HEMRBARZ
subsidiaries — net wE WS —F5 - (180,334)
— Gain on disposal of —HEBENRZ
an associate— net B Wz 24 (1,322) -
— Changes in fair value of ~UAfEEER
financial assets at FVPL HEH ABREH
CRMEEZAREE 24 (4,255) (5,035)
— Dividend income from *Jz)(ﬁjffﬁ%‘l’%ﬂ/ﬁ:g@
investment in financial FFABEEA AR ER
assets at FVPL and at FVOC| £ H A S8 AH iR
Al ENNEREE Y
H&L A 24 (2,652) -
— Foreign exchange gain - net —[EH e — 558 24 (36,856) (15,976)
Changes in working capital: LBEESEE
— Inventories -F8 (42,732) (141,458)
— Trade and other receivables — B REMEKE AIE 202,277 (81,331)
— Trade and other payables — B REHMEMNR (62,158) 165,542
— Contract liabilities —-&RAaE (50,200) 125,393
BEXBFREFHE 2,031,748 1,475,538
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32. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 32. KEFZBHEENEAS (H)

(CONTINUED)

(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds (b) MEAEBERERN LEWME
from disposal of property, plant and equipment R NEBEZFTERBE
comprise:

Year Nine months

ended ended

31 December 31 December

Note 2019 2018

HZ2019F HZE2018%F

12A31H 12A31H

P 5E LHFE LENE A

Net book amount BREFE 7 20,663 4,838
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEME  WRELERE

plant and equipment (B18) Mz (4,008) 856

Proceeds from disposal of property,  HEWE BB REBEL
=

plant and equipment Fi 153 16,655 5,694
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32. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 32. KEFZBHEENEAS (H)
(CONTINUED)
() Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing () MEEBYHER
activities
An analysis of the movements in liabilities from financing DM EBGEZEH25 0T

activities is set out below:

Liabilities from financing activities

MERE
Note Borrowings Lease liabilities Total
P& B HEaE st
At 1 April 2018 #2018F4A1H 210,000 - 210,000
Changes from financing BEEHNES
cash flow: mEEL:
Proceeds from borrowings EEmER 3,580,389 - 3,580,389
Repayments of borrowings BEER (100,250) - (100,250)
Total changes from financing & & E#RIR 3,480,139 - 3,480,139
cash flow mEZLEE
At 31 December 2018 2018 12H31H 3,690,139 - 3,690,139
Recognised on adoption of HAEBHERSE 3 - 72,335 72,335
HKFRS 16 ERIE165ERHR
At 1 January 2019 H2019F181H 3,690,139 72,335 3,762,474
Changes from financing MEZTHHRS
cash flow: mER
Proceeds from borrowings fE & fT§ 5% 756,607 - 756,607
Repayments of borrowings &&= (1,461,703) = (1,461,703)
Principal elements of lease FENFHZ = (19,599) (19,599)
payments reim
Interest elements of lease HENHKZ = (3,092) (3,092)
payments FELHH
Total changes from HETHNES (705,096) (22,691) (727,787)
financing cash flow RESLA
Other changes: Hitt# g :
Increase in lease liabilities 2~ H 5T L 5 - 29,847 29,847
from entering into new HE L Y
leases during the year HERE
Interest expenses AMEXH 27 - 3,092 3,092
Currency translation ERER 13,733 - 13,733
difference
Total other changes Hitt @ 8@t 13,733 32,939 46,672

At 31 December 2019 20195128318 2,998,776 82,583 3,081,359
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33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 33. EREAIE
Capital expenditure contracted for but not yet incurred at the RER/BREBZNBNRBEENER
end of the year/period are as follows: HXT :

As at 31 December

M12A8318
2019 2018
20194 20184
Property, plant and equipment I ER Y 110,441 193,080
Intangible assets mvEE 1,455 -
Investment in an associate E\Aﬁﬁﬁ%’&ﬂz&uﬁ 43,420 43,420
Financial assets at FVOC| WRAREE BT A
HiiralWm e emERE 92,193 127,016
Financial assets at FVPL AR AR{ETEBZEHA
BRzemEE 17,597 -

265,106 363,516
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Name and relationship with related parties

Name

=L

BABALRS

(a) BEAEEAN X BFEEERAR
Relationship
2R

Huangguoshu Golden Leaf

Hongta Blue Eagle

KIEEE
Hunan Golden Leaf

B E

Yunnan Ruisheng

EwFt

Dianhua Benxiang

HEXRE
Yingtan Weizhijia Food Co. Ltd. (“Weizhijia"”)

EBERZRRBEBERAA (K2R

(b) Key management compensation

Key management includes directors (executive,
non-executive and independent non-executive) and
senior management. The amounts of compensation paid
and payable to directors is disclosed in Note 37(a). The
amounts of compensation paid and payable to senior
management for employee services is shown below:

(b)

An associate indirectly held by
the Company
ARREEFEOBE QTR
An associate indirectly held by
the Company
RABIEEFA N E QR
An associate indirectly held by
the Company
NS Ee SR SR 0) R /NC]
An associate indirectly held by
the Company
AAREEFENBERF
A jointly controlled entity indirectly
held by the Company
ARREEEENARES TR
An entity controlled by the Company’s
ultimate holder

RETHEESEZ AT

FEEBEAEME
TRERABBRES (WTES
FRNTEFTEBUIFNITES)M
EREBAE EBNEENTES
BB & B A FE37(a) R EE - ME AR
EEABXMNEREERBNEN
KEMBEMT

Nine months

Year ended ended

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

BZ2019F EHZE2018F

12A31H 12H31H

LHFEE EREA

Fees, salaries and bonus T& - FMRIEa 21,107 18,391
Employer’s contributions to retirement EIEJ RIKEHEIE R

benefit scheme 449 346

21,556 18,737
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 34. BBBA LR Z (&)

(c) Transactions with related parties (c) EHBEBALHNRS

Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
EZ2019% BZE2018%F
12A31H 12A31H
LFE EREA

Sales of goods: HEE M
— Huangguoshu Golden Leaf —ERBEE 15,432 11,205
— Hongta Blue Eagle —HBEE 68 21
— Hunan Golden Leaf —EeE 294 341
— Dianhua Benxiang —EELREH 47,271 18,367
— Weizhijia K2R 64,288 132
127,353 30,066

Purchase of goods and services: BERMB MR

— Huangguoshu Golden Leaf - ERHeE 1,438 40
— Yunnan Ruisheng —EmHt 177 82
- Dianhua Benxiang —HELRE 17,508 11,621
— Weizhijia —RZK 4,975 13
24,098 11,756

Dividend revenue: AR BURA -
— Hongta Blue Eagle — AR EE 10,485 -
— Dianhua Benxiang —EERE 1,786 -

12,271 =

207
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 34. BEA TR 5 (&)
(d) Balances with related parties (d) BAEEA L4&ER

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2019 2018
20194 2018%F
Balances due from a related parties: i dea L N
- Huangguoshu Golden Leaf - EREEE
— trade and other receivables —B 5 R E MWK 5,689 14,630
— Dianhua benxiang —AERRH
— trade and other receivables — 8B 5 R H M BB 51,088 21,305
— Weizhijia —KRZK
— prepayments —TBR R - 10,500
— other receivables — H i FE WK 5,226 -
— Hongta Blue Eagle —HIBEE
— trade receivables — 8B 5 EUBGR 48 -
62,051 46,435
Balance due to related parties: FEST BAES A AR
— Huangguoshu Golden Leaf —EBERBeE
— trade payables —EBSEMNR - 40
— Yunnan Ruisheng —ZEmiHt
— trade payables —BZEMNR 42 -
— Dianhua Benxiang —AEXRR
— trade payables —BS5EMNK 1,330 12,971
— Weizhijia —KZ R
— trade and other payables —B 5 REMERK 43 13
— contract liabilities —&RAaE 10,269 2,900
11,684 15,924
The balance with related parties was unsecured, FTEE: AT AEIEWN - 8

interest-free and repayable on demand. FERBAEEE o
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SEEREN
35. TEME AR ZFHE

A2 EHAARETTIIR)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Place of Nominal Ownership
incorporation and value of issued/ interest Principal activities and
Name kind of legal entity registered capital held by the Group % place of operation
EMRLEER BERTEER/ REBREN
NAEB EETHRER EMEREE EREE% TEXBREERY
Direct Indirect
E# i
Aromascape Development Centre GmbH #"  Germany, Limited liability EUR25,000 - 100 Research and development
company §77£25,000 of flavours & fragrances in
8 FRELLT Germany
HeEh £H
F&G (Botswana) (Pty) Limited Republic of Botswana, BWP100 - 100 Production and sales of natural
Limited liability company ~ &41007T extracts in Botswana
BRAMARE FENEERRARRY
BEREAAT ERRHARNE
Guangdong Golden Leaf Technology PRC, Limited liability company ~ RMB100,000,000 - 100 Research & development,
Development Co., Ltd. HE - BERERAT AE 100,000,000 manufacture and sale of
BRESENFBEER A0 reconstituted tobacco leaves
in the PRC
e rERBERERR
G
Guangdong Jiahao Foodstuff Co., Ltd PRC, Limited liability company ~ RMB115,000,000 - 100 Production, sales, marketing
EXEZRMERLFC e FREMLAA AE115,000,0007T and distrioution of
condiment products
in the PRC
HE HE SRRABER
me
Guangdong Jinke Reconstituted Tobacco PRC, Limited liability company ~ RMB40,000,000 - 55.375  Manufacture & sale of
Leaves Co., Ltd. R BERERAAT AR 40,000,000 reconstituted tobacco leaves
ERENBEEEERAFN in the PRC
FEREERESL &
Guangzhou Huabao Food Co., Ltd. PRC, Limited liability company ~ RMB10,000,000 - 100 Research, development,
EMNZEERRERAA 1B ERERAT AR 10,000,000 manufacturing & sales of
flavours & fragrances in the
PRC

% LERHEER TE
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(BR=BEAEIN  AESBHUAARETTIIR)

35. TEMB AT Z2FH1E (&)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)
Place of Nominal Ownership
incorporation and value of issued/ interest Principal activities and
Name kind of legal entity registered capital held by the Group % place of operation
EMALBER ERTEER/ REBREN
NEER EEEREH EMEREE EREL% TEERREEHE
Direct Indirect
E# i
GuangZhou Hua Fang Tobacco Flavors Ltd. PRC, Limited liability company ~ RMB23,380,000 - 51 Manufacturing & sales
ENESERERERAFY B ERERAAH AE 23,380,007 of tobacco flavours &
fragrances in the PRC
FEREEERER &
Huabao Flavour & Chemical (Shanghai) Co.Ltd.  PRC, Limited liability company ~ RMB530,000,000 - 100%  Manufacturing & sale of new
ZERMEEE (LR BRAF HE EREMLF AE530,000,0007T materials products applicable
to tobacco industry in PRC
& FERBEFRAREE
IENIFHHER P
Huabao Flavors & Fragrances (HK) Limited Hong Kong, Limited liability ~HKD3,000,000 - 100 Research, development,
SEER(FE)ERAFOC company #13,000,0007T manufacturing & sales of
% BREALH flavours & fragrances in
Hong Kong
e EEREERR BE
Huabao Flavors & Fragrances Co, Ltd PRC, Limited liability company ~ RMB615,880,000 - 81.103  Manufacturing & sales
EZRRRHER DA wxR R RHERAR AR 615,880,000 of tobacco flavours &
fragrances in the PRC
TERBEERER &
Huabao Korea Company Limited Korea, Limited liability company WON16,320,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of filter
SERF S @100 &0 EREFAT £18116,320,000,000 materials in Korea
& FERHEERZEREE
W
Huabao Qiangi Leasing (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. PRC, Limited liability company -~ RMB300,000,000 = 100 Equipment leasing, office
ZETHRE (M) ERA AV o000 mE - EREEAR ARH300,000,0007C stationary leasing assets

management, investment
management, investment
and leasing consulting in the
PRC

BERXERE BORRA
§ AEER RAER.
REZANBERFHA
G
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35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 35. TEMBLAR TS (&)

(CONTINUED)
Place of Nominal Ownership
incorporation and value of issued/ interest Principal activities and
Name kind of legal entity registered capital held by the Group % place of operation
EMALBER BRTEER/ AREREN
NEER EETHRER EMEREE B ER% TEXBREERY
Direct Indirect
E# 3
Hunan Jishou Minzu Materials Co., Ltd PRC, Limited liability company ~ RMB30,000,000 - 85 Production of tabacco raw
BT aTREEN BRAF 0 B ERERAAH AR 530,000,000 materials and cigarette filter
in PRC
RERHEERER T8
Jiangxi Xianghai Biological Technology Co., Ltd  PRC, Limited liability company ~ RMB10,010,000 - 100 Produce, research and sale of
TEEEENHRARAT HE - BRELRA AE#10,010,0007T synthetic perfume in the PRC
RERHERRM &
Jiangxi H&K Food Technology Development PRC, Limited liability company ~ RMB300,000,000 - 100 Manufacturing and sales of
Co., Ltd PE - EREMAH AR 300,000,007 food flavours and fragrances
TEEEEHERMMBERBRAFN W in the PRC
EERBERRH &
Owada Flavours (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. PRC, Limited liability company  HKD60,000,000 - 100 Research, development,
BEEFRE(BM)BRAE BB BEREAAR 760,000,000 production and sale
of tobacco flavours &
fragrances in the PRC
RERHERRERER T
Shanghai H&K Flavors & Fragrances Co., Ltd. PRC, Limited liability company ~ RMB260,000,000 - 100 Manufacturing & sales of food
HREFHEERER LA N0 B ERERAAT A 260,000,007 flavours & fragrances
in the PRC
REREERRER T8
Shanghai Huabao Biological Technology Co, Ltd  PRC, Limited liability company ~ RMB10,000,000 - 100 Production and sale of tobacco
EBEEENHBBRAF 2o PE BRALRA AK#10,000,0007T raw materia
RERHEERRH &
Smart Sino International Investment Holdings PRC, Limited liability company  USD55,640,000 - 100 Investments holding in the PRC
(China) Co,, Ltd HE BRELRT F7155,640,000 RARRK

FRERRALR (PE)FRAFOLLY
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(BB EEAEIN FTESBEEIUARETTIIR)

35. TEMB AT Z2FH1E (&)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)
Place of Nominal Ownership
incorporation and value of issued/ interest Principal activities and
Name kind of legal entity registered capital held by the Group % place of operation
EMALBER BRTEER/ AREREN
NEER EETHRER EMEREE B ER% TEXBREERY
Direct Indirect
E# 3
Shanghai Xiangyue Technology Development PRC, Limited liability company ~ HKD10,000,000 - 100 Investments holding in the PRC
Co, Ltd hE AREAAA 710,000,000 RERR PH
LEEUHRERARAAN
Xiamen Amber Daily Chemical Technology PRC, Limited liability company ~ RMB30,000,000 - 51 Research, development,
Co,, Ltd. FE - RABRAR AR %30,000,0007 distribution and retail of
EMRBBERERABRAFN ™ fragrances in the PRC
- £2 #ERTEER
tIEm &
Yancheng City Chunzhu Aroma Co., Ltd PRC, Limited liability company ~ RMB6,000,000 - 100 Production and sales of
EYmENEHERA T e EREAAA AR #6,000,0007 aromatic raw materials in
the PRC
EERBERRH &
Yingtan Huabao Flavors & Fragrances Co., Ltd. ~ PRC, Limited liability company ~ RMB96,500,000 - 100 Production and sale of tobacco
EEEZERERLFO BB ERERAAR AE 96,500,007 flavours & fragrances in the
PRC
RERBERR ©
Yongzhou Shanxiang Flavour Co., Ltd. PRC, Limited liability company ~ RMB35,000,000 - 94.14  Production and sale of flavours
MNLEERERAF B ERERAAH AR 35,000,007 & fragrances in the PRC
REREETH
Yunnan Tianhong Flavor & Frangrance Co., Ltd.  PRC, Limited liability company ~ USD2,550,000 - 60 Production and sale of tobacco
ERAEERARATN HE AREALA F712,550,000 flavours & fragrances in the
PRC
TERHEERER &
Zhaoging Perfumery Co., Ltd. (Guangdong) PRC, Limited liability company ~ RMB11,000,000 - 100 Manufacturing & sales of food
EREEEAHMBERAR nE - BREFAR ARE11,000,0007T flavours & fragrances in the

PRC
LTERHERRER T8
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Material non-controlling interests

The total comprehensive income attributable to
non-controlling interests for the year ended 31
December 2019 is RMB261,057,000 (nine months
ended 31 December 2018: RMB178,384,000), of which
RMB252,820,000 (nine months ended 31 December
2018: RMB186,037,000) is from Huabao Flavours
and its subsidiaries (“Huabao Flavours Group”). The
non-controlling interests in other subsidiaries are not
material.

Set out below are the summarised financial information
for group of subsidiaries that have non-controlling
interests that are material to the Group:

Summarised consolidated statement of financial
position of Huabao Flavours Group

e B RRME

(BR=BEAEIN  AESBHUAARETTIIR)

35. TEMB AT Z2FH1E (&)

(a) EARFEFIMUEER

B E2019F12A31BILFE » 3
THIEESEOEERNERESR
AR #261,057,0007T (& £2018
F12A31HBIENEAR : AR
178,384,0007T) ' HEHF KRB EERK
PREMBAR([EERHEE])
ZIHETHURSEEEARER
%A ANR%252,820,0000T (B =
2018F12A31HIE @A : AR
#186,037,0007T) - REAMKTE A
AIMIEESIME RS TEKX -

AT #E I ANEE B E R IEES T
BENMBEARNYKEERRBE
EEROEEZGSUBARR R
E:3

As at 31 December

MR12A831H
2019 2018
20194 20184

Current mE
Assets BE 6,659,787 7,940,296
Liabilities aE (502,683) (523,231)
Total current net assets REFEEHLRE 6,157,104 7,417,065
Non-current JERED
Assets BE 1,760,968 1,686,786
Liabilities afE (39,261) (2,481)
Total non-current net assets FARBFEELT 1,721,707 1,684,305
Net assets EEFE 7,878,811 9,101,370
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Financial Statements
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (RS EREPEN ME2EHUARETLIIR)
35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 35. TEMBATZFHE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Material non-controlling interests (Continued) (a) EARFEEHIMRER (E)
Summarised consolidated income statement and EEROEEAZGARBZRRES
consolidated statement of comprehensive income 2HEHRERBE

of Huabao Flavours Group

Nine months

Year ended ended

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

BZE20195% B ZE20184F

12A31H 12A31H

IFEE LENEA

Revenue B 2,185,339 1,674,630
Profit before income tax Fr 5 B & ) 1,442,195 1,086,504
Income tax expense Fristi& M (190,783) (176,547)
Profit for the year/period KEE /HIEZEF| 1,251,412 909,957
Other comprehensive income H fth 2 T W 2 9,852 29,762
Total comprehensive income EHE WG AR 1,261,264 939,719

Total comprehensive income allocated to % Bt T JE 12 Il 14 #E 25 49

non-controlling interests U AAE 252,820 186,037

Dividends paid to non-controlling ) FE 22 1) 1t 4 2 R A< 2 A% R
interests 14,920 16,091
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(BB EEAEIN FTESBEEIUARETTIIR)

35. TEMB AT Z2FH1E (&)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

(@) Material non-controlling interests (Continued)

(a) EARFEFMEES (F)
EAROVEESREREREREE

Summarised consolidated statement of cash flows

of Huabao Flavours Group

Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
BZ20195F HZE2018%F
12A31H 12A31H
LEE LEAE A
Cash flows from operating activities RETHZHERE
Cash generated from operations EEBELE RS 1,500,080 1,073,823
Income tax paid ERFEH (202,538) (127,091)
Net cash generated from operating CEEHEEA RS FE
activities 1,297,542 946,732
Net cash used in investing activities REZBAA RS FE (1,342,744) (2,203,784)
Net cash used in financing activities MERHMAEE RS 75 (2,476,307) (147,818)
Net decrease in cash and HRERESEEYRDBEE
cash equivalents (2,521,509) (1,404,870)
Cash and cash equivalents at the EV/HNzRe kRS
beginning of the year/period ZEY 4,509,430 5,889,492
Effects of currency translation on E¥mnEHReRAS
cash and cash equivalents EEMNTE 6,488 24,808
Cash and cash equivalents attheend RER HRXZEHER
of the year/period Re%EY 1,994,409 4,509,430
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36.

e B RRME

(Br=BEAEIN -

A2 EHAARETTIIR)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 36. AT MM BARR R KR #EEE
RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY
Statement of financial position of the Company N A B B B RS AR R 3R
As at 31 December
R12A831H8
Note 2019 2018
B 5 20194 20184
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RB AT ZEE 1,115,322 1,090,943
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables 25N HE b ERFIE 4,307 2,580
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEU BB A RIFA 6,104,237 6,302,799
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEY 408,182 111,389
6,516,726 6,416,768
Total assets BEE 7,632,048 7,507,711
EQUITY &
Capital and reserves attributable to AAFERIFEA
the Company’s equity holders EERAR &EE
Share capital & s 318,636 318,647
Reserves i (a) 752,997 652,494
Retained earnings fRE & F 3,386,160 2,448,767
Total equity s 4,457,793 3,419,908
LIABILITIES 8E
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Borrowings B 2,310,474 2,743,688
Current liabilities RBEE
Borrowings BX 519,552 652,601
Amounts due to subsidiaries RGN/ CE] 337,000 395,520
Trade and other payables B REMENKIE 7,229 295,994
863,781 1,344,115
Total liabilities =R 3,174,255 4,087,803
Total equity and liabilities wEZREE 7,632,048 7,507,711

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2020 and

was signed on its behalf.

Ms. CHU Lam Yiu

KMEZ LT
Chairlady

FE

KRR Z AR KE HR202083H27
BEHEEZRMETEE -

Mr. XIA Liqun
ERBEE
Director

EF
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 36. ZNAMNHBRRRRZABED
RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (&)
(CONTINUED)
(@) Reserve movements of the Company (a) D EfHEES
Capital ~ Share-based Currency
Contributed Treasury Share Capital  redemption compensation Other ~ Translation
surplus shares premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
HRBAER
B4RR  ERRA  RARE  EREE ETEEGE  HHERRE AR EHARERE Eh
At1 April 2018 R201854A1R 296,853 - 429861 24 4,749 - 39,120 (420,824) 352,170
Repurchases of shares mERfR - i) - - 1 - -

Curreny tranlation differences ~ EEERZE - - - - - - 300324 300324

At 31 December 2018 R018512431A 296,853 (1) 429861 241 4,760 - 39120 (120,500) 652,49
At 1 January 2019 R2019E1A1R 296,853 (1) 429,861 241 4,760 - 39,120 (120,500) 652,494
Cancellation of repurchased shares ~ FHEEEE 2R (3 - 1 5 = - 5 - - 11
Share-based payment- value of R BERSZ B

consultancy senice REEE - - - - - 907 - - 907
Curency translation differences ~ EBE¥ZE - - - - - - 99,585 99,585

At 31 December 2019 H2019%12A31A 296,853 - 429,861 2 4760 907 39,120 (20915) 752,997

217
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Notes to the Consolidated FEPBRRME
Financial Statements
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (RS EREPEN ME2EHUARETLIIR)
37. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 37. EENRENER
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments () EERTHREAZHE
The remuneration of each director and chief executive of SEENTHAZENEE20194F
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019 and 128318 It F & %2018 12 A31
the nine months ended 31 December 2018 are set out HIEAEAZBMESWT :
below:
Year ended 31 December 2019 Nine months ended 31 December 2018
WOENANBLEE W8ENANBINER
Employer's Employer's
contribution contribution
to pension Other o pension
Name of directors Note fees  Salaries Bonus  scheme  benefits Total fegs Salaries Bonus scheme Total
ExEh EEER
fEE] i Bt it L OHEER AHER it 3 i3 T EER i
Executive directors: yfEes:
M. Chu Lam Yiu kgt f 17,595 - - - 1861 19456 6,59 - - B
M. Poon Chiu Kok BRELE - 203 264 632 - 2919 - 1153 - 780 1933
M. Xa Liqun EflEst - 5078 3519 16 - 8813 - 380 - n 3854
. LamKa Yu e 3079 - - - - 3079 1921 - - - 1921
M. Xiong Qing Elink i) - 807 - 16 - 3 - 1474 - 2 149
Independent non-executive  BUHEHTES :
directors;
Dr. Ding Ningning EEfiT ) 51 - - - - 51 154 - - - 154
Mr. Lee uk Shiu ki il - - - - 2 154 - - - 154
M. Ma Yunyan &3 il - - - - M 154 - - - 154
Hir. W ChiKeung HEEtE il - - - - Wil 154 - - - 154
Mr. YAN Jonathan Jun Jonathan Jun Yank £ () 13 - - - - 13 - - - - -
21490 8,108 3783 664 1861 35,906 9127 6,469 17017 813 33486
(i) Ms. Chu Lam Yiu is also the chief executive officer of the (Y SMELZTHFRETAARDEFENT
Company. B e
(i) Mr. Xiong Qing resigned on 25 May 2019. (i) RREDSEHERM2019F 58258 R ©
(i) Dr. Ding Ningning resigned on 28 March 2019. (i)  TEEEHLR2019F3A28HRE -
(iv)  Mr. YAN Jonathan Jun was appointed on 17 May 2019. (iv) Jonathan Jun YANZEAER201945

A17TBERE-




Huabao International Holdings Limited Z=8 BIEUZEA AR AR 2019 Annual Report 3 219

Notes to the Consolidated e HmRME

Financial Statements
(BB EEAEIN FTESBEEIUARETTIIR)

37. EEWNEMER (F)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

37. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

No directors waived any emoluments during the year
ended 31 December 2019 and the nine months ended
31 December 2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and the nine
months ended 31 December 2018, no emoluments
had been paid by the Group to the directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as a
compensation for loss of office.

Directors’ retirement benefit

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and the
nine months ended 31 December 2018, no retirement
benefits paid to the directors of the Company by a
defined benefit pension plan operated by the Group
in respect of the director’s services as a director of
the Company and its subsidiaries or other services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company or its subsidiary undertaking.

Directors’ termination benefit

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and the nine
months ended 31 December 2018, no payments to the
directors of the Company as compensation for the early
termination of the appointment.

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and the nine
months ended 31 December 2018, the Company did not
provide any consideration to any third party for making
available director’s services.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

ESERTHAZME (&)

HZ22019%F12A31HIEFE R
2018F12A31BIE @A &E
EREEMAL -

HE2019F12A31HIEFE R
2018%F12A31HB It @A &KN&E
B ERESIAMESEAMAR
SEMERNIERBEREE -

EERNKER

HE2019F12A31HIEFE R
2018%F12A31HB It @A A&
EWERESINREERLRAT
MEFRAESRHREMBEE
EBHRTEWZRIRFFEI MM E S
RTHRIRAEF)

EERBEN

HE2019F12A31HEFER
2018 12A31HIE LA - A&
B EmmESI MR EEBM

o
BE1E -

ME=ZAXFRHESERE 2R
L
HZE2019F12A3MBIEFE K
2018F12A31H Lt W@ A » K" &
B ERREEESREMAE =
REHEE -
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37. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and the nine
months ended 31 December 2018, no loans, quasi-loans
or other dealings in favour of directors of the Company,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such directors.

(f) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and the
nine months ended 31 December 2018, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year/period or at any time during the year/
period.

38. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Novel Coronavirus Pneumonia (“COVID-19") broke out
in the beginning of 2020 and the prevention and control
measures to combat the disease have been continued to be
implemented nationwide. So far, the Group has fully resumed
to work and the state of production and operation is normal.
As the COVID-19 continues, there is impact on the Group in a
certain extent. The Group will continue to closely monitor the
development of the COVID-19 outbreak and assess its impact
on the financial position, and operational results of the Group.
Given the dynamic nature of the outbreak, the Group is not
yet able to quantify the impact as at the date on which this set
of financial statements were authorised for issue.

e BWRME

(BR=BEAEIN  AESBHUAARETTIIR)

37.

38.

EsmAENERS (F)

(e) FEANES EFZZEF
REBERAZBAZER £
ERREMXRGZ2EHR

HE2019F12A3MHIEFE R
2018F12A31B It @A A&
EUVEMES IREEEEHH
EANBRBRZESHEETBREM

BERMEE

(f) EENRS  ZTHREHNZEKX
E
HE2019F12A31MHIEFER
2018F12A31BIE @A - AQ
AT BB ERPERAEE 2 X5
MARG 2 EEEESEEAEES
BEEARGZEERS TR

&R -

HREE

AU R & il A ([ fb & 1) 722020
FFENEZEEE  HENEIEES
HEEANFELET BB QRFE
EHETL LEKLLLET - ARFHEH
REBHE E—ERELHAEEER
e - AEESRHET YT RR
BEREN - FHEEHAEEM AR -
RERRETENTE  BEXRYBR
RUERE B AR RRIEERTE S
HWARRE  AEBEEEAGETEZEDN
HEe®m -
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Five Year Financial Summary IFHBRE
(All amount in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (RS EREPEN ME2EHUARETLIIR)
RESULTS E
Nine
Months Year
Year ended Year ended Year ended ended ended
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 December 31 December
2016 2017 2018 2018 2019
(Restated)
HE2016%F #HE2017F #HZE2018F #HZE2018F HZE2019F
3A31H 3A31H 3A318 12A3181k 128318
HEE HEE IEFE NEA L+=M@A
(e=5))
Revenue L 3,200,436 3,482,894 3,628,116 3,058,707 4,241,040
Gross Profit E] 2,203,988 2,270,823 2,463,927 1,949,805 2,745,410
Profit before income tax % Bt R & 7 1,493,331 1,409,112 1,859,553 1,374,957 1,745,817
Income tax expenses Frig®s (297,686) (294,573) (349,687) (320,805) (372,076)
Profit for the year INFE AT 1,195,645 1,114,539 1,396,120 1,190,991 1,373,741
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEENERE
As at As at As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 December 31 December
2016 2017 2018 2018 2019
M2016%F M20174 M2018% R2018%F A2019F
3A31H 3A31H 3A31H 128311 12A831H
Total assets BB E 9,654,219 11,497,751 14,300,910 19,175,430 17,963,635
Total Liabilities 4@ E & (879,748) (890,839)  (1,182,573)  (5,430,012)  (4,364,162)

Net assets FERE 8,774,471 10,606,912 13,118,337 13,745,418 13,599,473
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(All amount in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (RS EREPEN ME2EHUARETLIIR)
OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION Hth 71 15 B35
As at As at As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 December 31 December
2016 2017 2018 2018 2019
20165 20175 20185 420185 20195
3A31H 3H31H 3H31H 12A31H 12A31H
Earnings per share, basic BhEH  EX
(RMB cents) (ARESD) 38.04 34.29 40.66 32.75 35.78
Earnings per share, diluted GRREMN  #E
(RMB cents) (AR%D) 38.01 34.29 40.66 32.75 35.78
Aggregated dividend per share iR E2F K5t
(HKD cents) B Gl - 22.00 25.30 18.80 18.80
Aggregated special dividend BR2E R
per share (HKD cents) RIS (Bl - - 5.70 18.90 -
Financial year-end share price HREEHEE
(HKD) %8 (B T) 2.92 4.54 5.20 3.33 2.86
EBIT ratio EBIT 44.5% 38.5% 47.7% 42.1% 40.8%
EBITDA ratio EBITDAXR 50.1% 44.7% 52.4% 46.9% 47.0%
ROE ROE 15.0% 11.6% 12.0% 8.8% 9.4%




Glossary

AGM
Board
Bye-laws
CEO

CFO

CG Code

China, Mainland or PRC
Company or Huabao
COVID-19 Pneumonia
Director(s)

EPS

Executive Director(s)
FCCA

FCIS
FCPA

FCPA (Aust.)
FCS

Group or Huabao Group

Guangdong Jiahao
Guangdong Jinke

Guangdong Jinye
Guangdong Jinye Group

Guangdong Tobacco
Guangdong Tobacco

Company
Guangdong Zhaoging
Guangzhou Hua Fang
Guangzhou Huabao
HKD

HKICPA
Hong Kong or HKSAR
Hong Kong Stock

Exchange
Hongta Tobacco
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Annual general meeting

The board of directors of the Company

Bye-laws of the Company

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Corporate Governance Code as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules

The People’s Republic of China

Huabao International Holdings Limited

Novel Coronavirus Pneumonia

The director(s) of the Company

Earnings per share

Executive director(s) of the Company

Fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants

Fellow member of The Chartered Governance
Institute

Fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants

Fellow member of CPA Australia Ltd.

Fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries

the Company and its subsidiaries

Guangdong Jiahao Foodstuff Co., Ltd.

Guangdong Jinke Reconstituted Tobacco Leaves
Co., Ltd.

Guangdong Golden Leaf Technology
Development Co., Ltd.

Guangdong Jinye and its subsidiaries and
affiliated companies

Guangdong Tobacco Guangdong Industrial Co., Ltd.

Guangdong Tobacco and its subsidiaries and
related companies

Zhaoging Perfumery Co., Ltd (Guangdong)

Guangzhou Hua Fang Tobacco Flavors Ltd.

Guangzhou Huabao Food Co., Ltd.

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong
Kong

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the
People’s Republic of China

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Hongta Tobacco (Group) Co., Ltd.
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Glossary bl

Hongta Tobacco Group ~ Hongta Tobacco and its subsidiaries and related 4T EE £ NEBEERANBARREHCE
companies

Huabao Flavours Huabao Flavours & Fragrances Co., Ltd., a joint EERMD EERBROHBRAR - R
stock limited company established in the PRC KRGO EBRAR - BEAR
with limited liability and an indirect non-wholly AIEREBREZEMB AR
owned subsidiary of the Company

Huabao Flavours Huabao Flavours and its subsidiaries and related ~ ZFEE % {72 & EERMREMB AT A E

Company companies

Huabao Kongque Shanghai H&K Flavors & Fragrances Co., Ltd. EEI A FREEAERRBERAA

INEDs Independent Non-executive Director(s) of the BUERTES ARRAZEUENTES
Company

Jiahao Jiahao Foodstuff Limited and its subsidiaries 25 2XEMBRAGRENBEAR]

Jiahao Foodstuff Jiahao Foodstuff Limited R2EREm REREmARAR

Jiangxi Xianghai Jiangxi Xianghai Biological Technology Co., Ltd. I 7E& & TIREGEMEEBRAG

Listing Rules the Rules Governing the Listing of Securitieson i3 8l B ERES EWAR
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

Model Code Model Code for Securities Transactions by bl R AT SR ET S A E T ETT A
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in ERETELFRHNZLETH
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules

Remaining Group the Group, excluding Huabao Flavours Company ~ # T £ AEE TEEEFEROLA

R&D Research and development if 3 N ERE

RMB Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC AR AR REEEEE

RTL Reconstituted Tobacco Leaves BiEEE HERE

Scheme Mandate Limit The Maximum number of Shares in respect of STEIREREE IR EERE S MR E MR
which share options may be granted under NRIERERT B 2 Bk E
the Share Option Scheme and any other share BUEZBRMOEE LR
option scheme(s) of the Company

SFO the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter EHEREBERN  BEENESTIEERRBE KD
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong

Shareholder(s) Shareholder(s) of the Company e /N ) §:L

Share(s) or ordinary Ordinary share(s) of HKD0.10 each in the capital ~ F% {3 5% & i@ i% RRBIRARFREEEE0.10

share(s) of the Company TLH)E B

Shenzhen Stock Exchange  Shenzhen Stock Exchange in the PRC RNBHEZ G FRERINELRZA

STMA State Tobacco Monopoly Administration Bl /& BREEEER

u.s. United States of America ES ZHBAEBH

usb US dollars, the lawful currency of the United E I XBETEEY
States of America

Weizhijia Yingtan Weizhijia Food Co., Ltd. K2R BERKEMAERAR

Weizhjia Group Weizhjia and its subsidiaries KeREHE K2 REEKMERA]

Xiamen Amber Xiamen Amber Daily Chemical Technology Co., Ltd. B P93E3 EFMRBBLERERNERAR

Yancheng Chunzhu Yancheng City Chunzhu Aroma Co., Ltd. =) ERmAEMTENARAR

Yongzhou Shanxiang Yongzhou Shanxiang Flavour Co., Ltd. KM E AKMUBEBRBRAF

Yunnan Hehe Yunnan Hehe (Group) Co., Ltd. EEAM EFHAM(EE)BRNERAT

Yunnan Tianhong Yunnan Tianhong Flavor & Fragrance Co., Ltd. EMAR EEARERERADA

Yunnan Xinyun Yunnan Xinyun Technology Development ERELEH EELHNEREERAA

Co., Ltd.
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